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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

603-271-9474 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9474

Fax:603-271-4230 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

April 7, 2025

Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic Stability,
to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Southern New Hampshire
Services, Inc., (VC# 177198), Manchester, NH, to continue providing child care related services,
modify the scope of work and repurpose available funding to allow additional eligible families to
utilize the New Hampshire Child Care Scholarship Program, by exercising an available contract
renewal option increasing the price limitation by $366,387 from $3,839,269 to $4,205,656, and
extending the completion date from September 30, 2025 to June 30, 2026 effective upon
Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 28, 2023, item #19,
and amended on September 25, 2024, item #33.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2025 and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2026, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

05-95-42-421110-29780000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPf OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, CHILD DEVELOPMENT, CHILD CARE DVLP-
QUALITY ASSURE

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

2024
074-

500589

Grants for

Pub Assist

and Reli

42117709 $960,000 $0 $960,000

2025
074-

500589

Grants for

Pub Assist

and Reli

42117709 $1,287,000 -$781,911 $505,089

2026
074-

500589

Grants for

Pub Assist

and Reli

42117709 $568,454 -$568,454 $0

Sub Totaf $2,815,454 -$1,350,365 $1,465,089

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providins opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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05-95-42-421110-29770000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, CHILD DEVELOPMENT, CHILD
DEVEUDPMENT PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

2025
536-

500377

Employment
Related

Child Care
42117709 $1,023,815 $0 $1,023,815

Sub Total $1,023,815 $0 $1,023,815

05-95-4

SVCSD

DVLP-G

5-451110-23360000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN
EPT OF, HHS: DIV ECONOMIC STABILITY, CHILD DEVELOPMENT, CHILD CARE
UALITY ASSURE

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

2026
074-

500589

Grants for

Pub Assist

and Reli

TBD $0 $1,716,752 $1,716,752

Sub Total $0 $1,716,752 $1,716,752

Total $3,839,269 $366,387 $4,205,656

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because MOP 150 requires all amendments to agreements
originally approved as sole source to be identified as sole source. The Contractor holds the
affiliate/branding agreement with the nationally recognized Child Care Aware of America. As such.
Child Care Aware of New Hampshire has access to extensive support services for the state to
provide resources and referral services, staff training, family outreach supports, child care
provider professional development, and extensive data and research activities from the national
level. The affiliation links the New Hampshire child care community, and particularly families
seeking child care, with a nationally recognized and reliable organization. Furthermore, the
Contractor holds the licensing and management contracts for the Teacher Education and
Compensation Helps (TEACH) and Department of Labor (DOL) Apprenticeship programs, which
are essential parts of the plan to increase the child care workforce.

The purpose of this request is to modify the scope of work for the Child Care Resource
and Referral and TEACH services and repurpose available funding to allow eligible families to
utilize the New Hampshire Child Care Scholarship Program to pay for child care. The Contractor
will continue their statewide work to assist families in securing high quality child care, provide a
network of child care resource and referral services, training and technical assistance as well as
mentor TEACH recipients and administer the DOL Apprenticeship Program.

Through June 30, 2026, The Department anticipates more than 500 families will be
served by utilizing child care resource and referral services and more than 2,700 child care
providers will receive training and technical assistance. In addition, the Contractor will provide
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support and mentoring to a minimum of 15 TEACH recipients and continue to administer the DOL
Apprenticeship Program by offering a minimum of eight 8 apprenticeships.

The Department will monitor services by meeting with the Contractor and ensuring the
performance measures in the contract are met.

As referenced in Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions, Section 1., the
original agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to two (2) additional
years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the
parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew
services for nine (9) months of the one (1) year available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, fewer working families in New
Hampshire may have access to child care and child care providers may have limited access to
professional development.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds; Assistance Listing Number #93.575, FAIN #2501NHCCDD.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

\

Lbr\A. Weaver (\
lissioner v

The Department of Health and Human Seroices' Mission is to join communities and families



Docusign Envelope ID: 81FCC361-F497-4EA1-8BED-38D5D0B299E0

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Resource and Referral for NH Child Care Facilities contract is by and between
the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 28, 2023 (Item #19),as amended on September 25, 2024 (Item 33), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7., Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2026.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8., Price Limitation, to read:

$4-,205.656.

3. Modify Exhibit B - Amendment #1, Scope of Services, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit B
- Amendment #2, Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms; Section 1.1. and 1.2. to read:

1.1. 100% Federal funds. Child Care and Development Block Grant, as awarded on October
28, 2022, October 02, 2023, and October 16, 2024, by the United States Administration for
Children and Families, ALN #93.575, FAIN #2301NHCCDD, 2401NHCCDD and
2501NHCCDD.

1.2. Reserved.

5. Modify Exhibit C-4, Budget Sheet - Amendment #1, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-4,
Budget Sheet - Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

6. Modify Exhibit C-6, Budget Sheet - Amendment #1, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-6,
Budget Sheet - Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

7. Modify Exhibit C-7, Budget Sheet - Amendment #1, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-7,
Budget Sheet - Amendment #2, \vhich is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

8. Modify Exhibit C-8, Budget Sheet - Amendment #1, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-8,
Budget Sheet - Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

9. Modify Exhibit C-9, Budget Sheet - Amendment #1, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-9,
Budget Sheet - Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

-IntUil

%
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials

SS-2024-DES-03-CHILD-01-A02 4/6/202S
Page 1 of 3 Date

v7.12.23



Docusign Envelope ID; 81FCC361-F497-4EA1^BED-38D5D0B299E0

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

4/7/2025

Date

^•^DoeuSlfln*^ by:

I ^luOSfllA^ SiWAKiUU
BDeOMPFECE[>tB4

Name: Christine Santaniello

Title:
Associate Commissioner

4/6/2025

Date

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.

by:

I  J)6\a}aAju^
V  Fr.AiBT7«.nc7fmQ

Name: oonnalee Lozeau
Title:

CEO

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.

SS-2024-DES-03-CHILD-01-A02
V. 7.12.23

A-S-1.3

Page 2 of 3



Docusign Envelope ID; 81FCC361-F497-4EA1-8BED-38D5D0B299E0

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

4/7/2025

—OocuSlgnedby:

Date Name: Robyn Guarino

Title. Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE •

Date Name:

Title:

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. A-S-1.3

SS-2024-DES-03-CHILb-01-A02 Page 3 of 3
V. 7.12.23



Docusign Envelope ID: 81FCC361-F497-4EA1-8BED-38D5D0B299E0

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Resource and Referral for NH Child Care Facilities

EXHIBIT B - Amendment # 2

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor must provide a statewide centralized network for child care related
services to current and prospective licensed and license-exempt child care providers
as identified in 1.2., to assist providers in building capacity and improving the quality of
and access to child care. Centralized network services include, but are not limited to:

1.1.1. Academic Scholarships and Apprenticeships to the child care workforce.

1.1.2. Assisting child care providers and designated staff to create and update their
user profile and all related program information within New Hampshire
Connections Information System: www.nh-connections.org (NHCIS).

1.1.3. Child Care Resource and Referral Services.

1.1.4. Training, Technical Assistance, and Coaching.

1.2. For the purpose of this Agreement, all references to licensed and license-exempt child
care providers (CCP) mean:

1.2.1. A licensed center-based or home-based child care program as defined by New
Hampshire Administrative Rule He-C 4002, Child Care Licensing Rules, that
serve children in any age group from six (6) weeks through twelve (12) years
of age; or

1.2.2. Are license-exempt in accordance with New Hampshire Revised Statutes
Annotated (RSA) 170-E:3, I (a), (c). (f). (g), and (h).

1.3. The Contractor must provide services Monday through Friday from 8:00 AM to 5:00
PM. Meetings and referrals, referenced herein must also be provided during non-
traditional business hours, which include, but are not limited to a minimum of one (1)
night per week, and a minimum of one (1) Saturday per month.

1.4. The Contractor must ensure statewide services are provided twelve (12) months a year
with no breaks in services.

1.5. Child Care Resource and Referral Services - The Contractor must provide a network
of child care resource and referral (CCR&R) services to assist individuals and families
seeking to secure licensed and license-exempt child care (including summer camps
with a child care component and Head Start and Early Start programs) for children from
birth through age twelve (12). CCR&R services include, but are not limited to:

1.5.1. Providing virtual or in-person meetings to referrals for families seeking or in
need of child care.

1.5.2. Providing customized referrals to families requiring specialized services
including but not limited to children who have a disability, an emotional and/or
behavioral need, special health care needs, reside in an underserved
community, or who need non-traditional hours of care.

1.5.3. Providing customized referrals that consider the unique needs of the family and
child, and the unique aspects of the child care program, including referring
children to programs demonstrating high performance levels In qua
evidenced by: Granite Steps for Quality (GSQ) level. National Assop

SS-2024-DES-03-CHILD-01-A02 B-2.0 Contractor Initials

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. Page 1 of 17 Dale

as

on for



Docusign Envelope ID: 81FCC361-F497-4EA1-8BED-38D5D0B299E0

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Resource and Referral for NH Child Care Facilities

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #2

the Education of Young Children Accreditation; Strengthening Families
endorsements, or quality indicators such as curriculum, developmental
screenings, primary caregiving in infant/toddler care, etc.

1.5.4. Providing virtual or in-person meetings and referrals with businesses,
employers, human resource Departments, and community leaders to support
child care needs.

1.5.5. Responding to inquiries by email, telephone, and in-person.

1.5.6. Supporting families and employers in accessing services online through NH
Connections: www.nh-connections.org.

1.6. The Contractor must follow up with clients within thirty (30) calendar days after an initial
referral is received, using one (1) or more of the methods below which include, but are
not limited to:

1.6.1. A satisfaction and outcome survey via:

1.6.1.1. Hard copy, via email or USPS.

1.6.1.2. NHCIS.

1.6.1.3. Survey Monkey or similar tool.

1.6.1.4. Telephone contact.

1.7. The Contractor must enter all information concerning follow-up attempts and completed
surveys into NHCIS and provide quarterly reports to the Department.

1.8. The Contractor must ensure CCR&R services are provided statewide, specifically by
region, in accordance with regions as identified in Exhibit B-1 - Child Care Access &
Regional Systems Coordination.

1.8.1. Region 1 - (Greater Monadnock, Greater Sullivan & Upper County):
Monadnock United Way.

1.8.2. Region 2 - (Capital Area): Granite United Way.

1.8.3. Region 3 - (Greater Nashua): United Way of Greater Nashua.

1.8.4. Region 4 - (Greater Derry & Manchester): Amoskeag Health.

1.8.5. Region 5 - (Central NH. Lakes): Granite United Way.

1.8.6. Region 6 - (Strafford County & Seacoast): Granite United Way/United Way of
the Greater Seacoast.

1.8.7. Region 7 - (North Country & Carroll County): Children Unlimited.

1.9. The Contractor must provide a central office with a designated statewide Resource and
Referral manage to supervise and support the Regional Area Representative that will
provide consistent and uninterrupted, year-round [twelve-(12) months a year] resource
and referral services across all regions.

1.10. The Contractor must ensure services, specific to each region, include, but are not
limited to:

Initial

PL
SS-2024-DES-03-CHILD-01-A02 8-2.0 Contractor Initials

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. Page 2 of 17



Docusign Envelope ID; 81FCC361-F497-4EA1-8BED-38D5D0B299E0

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Resource and Referral for NH Child Care Facilities

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #2

1.10.1. A monthly meeting with the Early Childhood Regional Lead as described in
Section 1.8. Each Region Is assigned an early childhood professional identified
as a Regional Lead to identify strengths and needs of the early childhood
systems within their prospective regions.

1.10.2. Developing and maintaining a working relationship with NHEP and Department
staff in each District Office to include providing statewide CCR&R service to
families who may or may not be receiving assistance or services from the
NHEP or other programs within the Department.

1.10.3. Maintaining comprehensive knowledge including, but not limited to:

1.10.3.1. Children with disabilities.

1.10.3.2. Current child care supply and capacity.

1.10.3.3. Current child care staffing levels.

1.10.3.4. Family and community support services, agencies and non-profits
to maximize child care resource services.

1.10.3.5. Language, ethnic and culture diversity.

1.10.3.6. Local ordinances as they relate to child care.

1.10.3.7. Major employers.

1.10.3.8. Major challenges, strengths, and weaknesses.

1.10.3.9. McKinney-Vento Liaison (https://www.education.nh.gov/who-we-
are/division-of-learner-support/bureau-of-instructional-
support/ehcy).

1.10.3.10. Unmet child care needs.

1.10.4. Participation in monthly regional activity, meeting and/or event impacting child
care, Head Start, and/or families.

1.10.5. Provide an "Introduction to CCR&R Services" at New Hampshire Employment
Program (NHEP) orientations, Family Resource Center workshops and at the
locations as requested by the Department, during traditional and non-
traditional business hours.

1.11. The Contractor must ensure all staff are familiar with and can explain how families
access the NH Child Care Scholarship Program (https://www.nh-
connections.org/families/child-care-scholarship/) and other related assistance
programs (https;//nheasy.nh.gov/#/).

1.12. The Contractor must ensure that services provided to families and CCP are culturally
competent and responsive and include, but are not limited to:

1.12.1. Ensuring all staff are trained annually in cultural competence.

1.12.2. Possessing knowledge and understand the cultural variations across the state
to individualize services when necessary to meet the needs of each region (see
Exhibit B-1 - Child Care Access & Regional Systems Coordination).

InlUal

SS-2024-DES-03-CHILO-01-A02 B-2.0 Contractor Initials^ ' " ""
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Docusign Envelope ID: 81FCC361-F497-4EA1-8BED-38D5D0B299E0

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Resource and Referral for NH Child Care Facilities

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #2

1.12.3. Providing translation and interpretation services, in accordance to the selected
Vendors Culturally and Linguistically "Appropriate Services (CLAS)
Requirements.

1.12.4. Providing video remote option(s) for American Sign Language.

1.12.5. Marketing and Outreach.

1.13. The Contractor must provide, promote, and market linguistically and culturally
responsive CCR&R services statewide, regionally, and locally to families, providers,
businesses and community members in accordance with the Statement of Work and
Department-approved marketing guidelines. Marketing materials include, but are not
limited to:

1.13.1. Brochures.

1.13.2. Display posters.

1.13.3. Flyers.

1.13.4. Other marketing tools and material as requested and approved by the
Department.

1.13.5. Promotional merchandise.

1.14. The Contractor must disseminate Department-provided and/or Department-approved
informational videos, websites, regional marketing materials and information to
promote public awareness, through various means include, but are not limited to:

1.14.1. 211 NH.

1.14.2. Local hospitals, including prenatal classes.

1.14.3. Child health support services and workplace success programs.

1.14.4. Churches.

1.14.5. Community action agencies, (including Head Start).

1.14.6. Community boards.

1.14.7. Community events

1.14.8. Department district offices.

1.14.9. Early intervention programs.

1.14.10. Family Resource Centers.

1.14.11. Fuel assistance offices.

1.14.12. Grocery stores. •

1.14.13. Health clubs.

1.14.14. Libraries.

1.14.15. Local retailers and businesses.

1.14.16. Malls.

1.14.17. NHEP offices and partner meetings.

SS-2024-DES-03:CHILD-01-A02 B-2.0 Contractor Initials
91

Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc. Page4of17 Date



Docusign Envelope 10: 81FCC361-F497-4EA1-88ED-38D5D08299E0

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Resource and Referral for NH Child Care Facilities

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #2

1.14.18. Pediatrician, obstetric and general practitioner offices.

1.14.19. Realtors.

1.14.20. Restaurants.

1.14.21. School districts and local community colleges.

1.14.22. Women, Infants and Children's program (WIG).

1.15. The Contractor must receive advance approval from the Department to ensure
marketing aligns with the Department's branding and marketing guidelines.

1.16. The Contractor must ensure District Offices and Family Resource Center addresses
and contact information are provided to families, employers and CCP's as requested.

1.17. The Contractor must conduct regionally specific marketing and outreach to families,
employers and CCPs, including live informational presentations as requested.
Presentation locations include DHHS District Offices. identified at:
https:/Avww.dhhs.nh.gov/about-dhhs/locations-faciiities, and at Family Resource
Centers, identified at: https://vww.fsnh.org/, and other agreed-upon locations.

1.18. The Contractor must provide current information regarding CCR&R services to the
Department for publishing on New Hampshire Connections: www.nh-connections.org
and the Contractor's website: www.caphr.org.

1.19. The Contractor may, in accordance with Department's guidelines and with Department
advance approval, maintain their own social media accounts to promote resource and
referral services. Social media posts should promote Department initiatives, including
offerings from other vendors and state agencies as appropriate. Social media posts can
be a combination of promotional, educational, and fun provided they are professional
in nature and reflective of high quality and developmentally appropriate practices and
philosophies and monitor responses and posts from the community, bringing to the
Department's attention anything impactful. Posts and social media content are subject
to Department monitoring and approval.

1.20. The Contractor must, as applicable, make connections with McKinney-Vento Liaisons,
to identify children who may not be school age. but require child care services, as well
as school age children who are in need of before/after school care. Connections may
be made through the Director of the Office of Homeless Education at the NH
Department of Education and will minimally include information about Child Care
Resource and Referral and the services they provide. Tracking of all activity is required.

1.21. The Contractor must maintain current relationships and collaborations with other
agencies and organizations to maximize child care resource services.

1.22. The Contractor must promote awareness of CCR&R professional development
activities for child care programs and providers including, but not limited to:

1.22.1. Maintaining, on a daily basis or as needed, an up-to-date training calendar on
NHCIS and NH Connections with Information and registration links to relevant
trainings that are not offered/funded by the Department.

1.22.2. Promoting training and technical assistance opportunities using Constant
Contact. Regional Leads, and similar tools. .—iniu.i

a
SS-2024-DES-03-CHILD-01-A02 B-2.0 Contractor Initials
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Docusign Envelope ID; 81FCC361-F497-4EA1-8BED-38D5O0B299E0

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Resource and Referral for NH Child Care Facilities

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #2

1.23. The Contractor must participate in committees or councils as appropriate or requested
by the Department based on the priorities of the strategic plan. Examples of such
committees include, but are not limited to:

1.23.1. Bureau of Child Development and Head Start Collaboration State Leadership
Team.

1.23.2. GSQ Advisory Committee GSQ Advisory Committee - NH Connections (nh-
connections.org).

1.23.3. Pyramid Model State Leadership Team: The National Center for Pyramid
Model innovations - Child Care Aware of NH (nh-connections.org).

1.24. Training - The Cpntractor must provide training opportunities in person and virtually to
CCPs in collaboration and as requested and by the Department; Trainings must:

1.24.1. Comply with Child Care Licensing and Federal Office of Child Care training
requirements.

1.24.2. Be delivered at a local, regional, and statewide level to include both in person
and virtual options.

1.24.3. Include a variety of evidence-based adult learning principles.

1.24.4. Be offered at times convenient for workforce including weekend and evening
options.

1.24.5. Be posted on NHCIS with prior approval by the Department's training office.

1.24.6. Reflect and support statewide initiatives, Department projects, and the
priorities of the Department's strategic plan, as often as is possible and
appropriate.

1.24.7. Be updated on a schedule as required by the Department's training office or
ongoing as needed.

1.25. The Contractor must have qualified training staff who meet the specific qualifications
described in the New Hampshire Early Childhood Professional Development System
(Revised 2022). These qualifications may be waived, on a case-by-case basis only
when a written request is approved by the Department.

1.26. The Contractor must coordinate With the Department's training office to obtain approval
for trainings added to the Online Training Calendar in NHCIS and NH Connections to
create local, regional, and statewide training opportunities so that participants can
register online for trainings.

1.27. The Contractor must provide foundational level trainings to be approved by the
Department.

1.28. The Contractor must offer other workshops on a statewide level, which must include
health and safety training in addition to the health and safety trainings available on
ProSolutions: https://wvw.nh-connections.org/providers/health-and-safety-trainings/
as requested by the Department using data on gaps and needs.

1.29. The Contractor must provide training on business best practices for operating child care
programs in applying best pfaetwes:

[%
SS-2024-DES-03-CH1LD-01-A02 B-2.0 Contraclor Initials
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Docusign Envelope ID: 81FCC361-F497-4EA1-8BED-38D5D0B299E0

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Resource and Referral for NH Child Care Facilities

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #2

https;//www.chiIdcareaware.org/providers/opening-running-child-care-
center/operating-chiid-care-center-program-practices/.

1.30. The Contractor must provide training on how to create individualized professional
development plans designed to increase teacher competency and retention using PD
plan templates based on New Hampshire's specialized competencies, as is required
for credentialing.

1.31. The Contractor must provide training on how to implement the NH Early Learning
Standards: The NH Early Learning Standards - Child Care Aware of NH (nh-
connections.org). The training and technical assistance provided will delivered as
specified below:

1.31.1. Flexible to allow for the unique accommodations of children and families.

1.31.2. Developmentally appropriate for each age group.

1.32. The Contractor must support and reflect the philosophy of the CCPs, the Contractor
must provide as needed, orientation on enrolling and/or renewing as a New Hampshire
Child Care Scholarship Provider. Orientation includes but is not limited to:

1.32.1. Application process.

1.32.2. Agreements.

1.32.3. Background checks.

1.32.4. Health and safety requirements.

1.32.5. Marketing.

1.32.6. Monitoring requirements.

1.32.7. Programming.

1.32.8. Transitloning as a license-exempt provider to a licensed provider.

1.32.9. Web-billing.

1.33. Technical Assistance - The Contractor must provide specialized and qualified
technical assistance program staff who meet the qualifications set forth in the NH Early
Childhood Professional Development Guidebook (Revised 2022), to administer on-site
technical assistance activities to potential and current licensed and licensed exempt
CCP, as requested and required by the Department. These qualifications may be
waived, on a case-by-case basis only when a written request is approved by the
Department.

1.34. The Contractor must provide specialized and region-specific technical assistance
program staff to work with the Department to support CCPs. At the request of the
Department, all technical assistance program staff must work effectively and
cooperatively with Department approved collaborators. Technical assistance program
staff must provide support in the following areas:

1.34.1. Child care management.

1.34.2. Child Care Scholarship Program enrollment and renewal.

1.34.3. Care for children with disabilities. (
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1.34.4. Care for children with special health care needs, including emotional and
behavioral needs.

1.34.5. Cultural competency.

1.34.6. Developmentally Appropriate Practice.

1.34.7. Emergency Preparedness plan based on the Incident Command System, and
in completing a written Continuity of Operations Plan {COOP)
(https:/Avww.nh-connections.org/providers/continuity-of-operations-plan-
coop/)

1.34.8. Infant and Toddler care.

1.34.9. NHCIS (https://www.nh-connections.org/providers/nh-connections-
information-system/).

1.35. The Contractor must provide technical assistance to CCPs regarding New Hampshire
Early Childhood Professional Credentials (https://www.nh-
connections.org/pr6viders/credentiaiing/). Professional Development Pathways and
Granite Steps for Quality.

1.36. The Contractor must provide technical assistance on how to write child care program
policies. These policies may include, but are not limited to, inclusion policies and health
and safety policies.

1.37. The Contractor must provide technical assistance to expand program capacity, with an
emphasis on unmet child care needs statewide, including, but not limited to:

1.37.1. Infants and toddlers.

1.37.2. Children with disabilities and special health care needs.

1.37.3. Children needing care during non-traditional hours

1.37.4. Underserved geographical locations and populations.

1.38. Professional Development System Recognition - The Contractor must provide,
coordinate, and fund the Annual Celebration for Early Childhood Professionals; and
collaborate with the Department on the planning and implementation of the event
including presentation of the Gwen and Henry Morgan Award.

1.39. The Contractor must survey all participants after the Annual Celebration for Early
Childhood Professionals and provide feedback to the Department by no later than three
(3) months after the event.

1.40. Academic Scholarships - The Contractor must provide a Teacher Education And
Compensation Helps (T.E.A.C.H.) counselor and must create, promote and market the
T.E.A.C.H. NH Early Childhood Scholarship Program, which will focus on the need for
a well-qualified, fairly compensated and stable workforce.

1.41. The Contractor must prioritize T.E.A.C.H. NH and NH Child Care Aware of NH (nh-
connections.org), for early childhood programs and teachers who care for and teach
infants and/or toddlers.

1.42. The Contractor must develop an infrastructure which includes, but is not limited to:
—Initial
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1.42.1. Creating and establishing a streamlined service delivery system that promotes
efficiencies and maximizes resources within all the Child Care Resource and
Referral (CCR&R) activities, which include, but are not limited to;

1.42.1.1. Sharing the CCR&R email distribution list.

1.42.1.2. Promoting T.E.A.C.H. NH opportunities at CCR&R meetings and
trainings.

1.42.2. Marketing the T.E.A.C.H. NH Program at early childhood stakeholder meetings
and events.Creating and establishing a T.E.A.C.H. NH Advisory Committee
under the guidance and expertise of the National Center to include NH early
childhood stakeholders.

1.42.3. Creating and implementing outreach and marketing resources to all early
childhood programs, including center-based and family child care, with a focus
on infant/toddler programs and infant/toddler professionals, in order to promote
T.E.A.C.H. NH

1.42.4. Establishing and maintaining relationships between the T.E.A.C.H. NH
program staff and the T.E.A.C.H. National Center in order to adhere to and
embrace the T.E.A.C.H. core values and principles.

1.42.5. Providing scholarships and stipends to T.E.A.C.H. NH recipients.

1.42.6. Providing support and mentoring for T.E.A.C.H. NH recipients in their efforts to
obtain a Child Development Associate credential (CDA), Child Development
Associate Credential Child Care Aware of NH {nh-connections.org), leading to
an Associate's Degree, or an Associate's Degree in Early Childhood
Education.

1.42.7. Providing support and mentoring for T.E.A.C.H. NH sponsors (participating NH
Early Childhood/Child Care Programs).

1.42.8. Providing T.E.A.C.H. NH staff with the necessary resources and supports to
assist in the facilitation of this project as outlined by the National Center to
include specific technology, integration, professional development and
technical assistance.

1.43. The Contractor must provide scholarships, stipends, support and mentoring to a
minimum of fifteen (15) T.E.A.C.H. NH recipients annually, with priority being given to
individuals working in infant and or toddler classrooms in early care/child care
programs.

1.44. The Contractor must provide a United States Department of Labor (DOL)
Apprenticeship: ECAP-2-8-21.pdf (nh-connections.org), program coordinator and must
administer the DOL Apprenticeship Program - Early Childhood Education and
Teaching Preschool Teacher (COP Code13.1210).

1.44.1. Southern New Hampshire Services and the United States Department of Labor
Early Childhood Apprenticeship Program (ECAP) is a training opportunity for
individuals employed in the early childhood field and is designed to combine
classroom instruction and work experience to enhance the quality of care for
children while increasing the apprentice's skill level and wages. The-goal of

%
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ECAP is for Individuals to obtain the credential required to work as a teacher
in a state licensed child care center, increasing the supply of skilled
professionals and the delivery of high-quality early education. This ECAP will
be coordinated and administered by the Contractor.

1.45. The Contractor must recruit a minimum of eight (8) apprentices for the DOL
Apprenticeship Program.

1.46. The Contractor must ensure DOL enrollment priority is given to Individuals committed
to working with infants and/or toddlers in early care/child care programs

1.47. The Contractor must coordinate efforts with the Department and document all contact
attempts to CCP's to maintain the CCR&R functions in NHCIS, including but not limited
to: ,

1.47.1. Assisting CCPs in populating and updating program specific data and CCP
staff demographics in the professional registry.

1.47.2. Conducting a bi-annual update survey of all CCP program information.

1.47.3. Documenting all CCR&R, Training and. Technical Assistance activities.

1.47.4. Requesting changes and deletion of records.

1.48. The Contractor must submit a final Annual Performance Report to the Department no
later than July 15^ 2025.

1.49. The Contractor must maintain detailed supporting documentation for the required
Annual Performance Reports, which must be available to the Department for review
upon request and must be retained for up to seven (7) years of the contract completion
date.

1.50. The Contractor may be required to provide other reports, data and metrics, not collected
and stored in NHCIS, to the Department in a format and on a date specified by the
Department.

1.51. The Contractor must participate in meetings with the Department on a monthly basis,
or as otherwise requested by the Department.

1.52. Performance Measures

1.52.1. The Department will apply the following measures to assist in monitoring the
Contractor's performance by demonstrating:

1.52.1.1. Eighty percent (80%) of CCPs will update program information in
NHCIS bi-annually.

1.52.1.2. 50% of CCPs will meaningfully engage with business management
practices

1.52.1.3. 50% of CCPs will meaningfully engage in technical assistance and
support or training on ̂ health and safety activities, background
checks or quality activities.

1.52.1.4. Provider enrollment in the Child Care Scholarship Program will
increase by 5% of CCPs

91
SS-2024-DES-03-CH1LD-01-A02 B-2.0 Contraclor Initials

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. Page 10 of 17 pate



Docusign Envelope ID: fi1FCC361-F497-4EA1.8BED-38D5D08299E0

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Resource and Referral for NH Child Care Facilities

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #2

1.52.1.5. A minimum often percent (10%) of the contract funds are dedicated
to infant and toddler activities.

1.53. Reporting

1.53.1. The Contractor shall report quarterly on the following activities:

1.53.1.1. Number of OCRs assisted with business management practices.

1..53.1.2. Number of OCRs assisted with Scholarship enrollment.

1.53.1.3. Number of CCPs assisted updating profile information in NHCIS.

1.53.1.4. Number of CCPs assisted with Infant and Toddler activities.

1.53.1.5. Number of CCPs who received Technical Assistance for.

1.53.1.5.1. professional development plans.

1.53.1.5.2. Family Childcare Start up support.

1.53.1.5.3. Family Childcare ongoing support.

1.53.1.5.4. License-exempt providers for health and safety,
background checks and monitoring.

1.53.1.5.5. Number of families served by Resource and Referral
services.

1.53.1.5.6. Of those, the number of TANF eligible families.

1.54. Background Checks

1.54.1. Rrior to permitting any individual to provide services under this Agreement, the
Contractor must ensure that said individual has undergone:

1.54.1.1. A criminal background check, at the Contractor's expense, and has
no convictions for crimes that represent evidence of behavior that
could endanger individuals served under this Agreement and

1.54.1.2. A name search of the Department's Division for Children, Youth and
Families (DCYF) Central Registry pursuant to RSA 169-C:35, with
results indicating no evidence of behavior that could endanger
individuals served under this Agreement.

1.55. Privacy Impact Assessment

1.55.1. Upon request, the Contractor must allow and assist the Department in
conducting a Privacy Impact Assessment (PIA) of its
system(s)/application(s)/web portal(s)/website(s) or Department
system{s)/application(s)/web portal(s)/website(s) hosted by the Contractor, if
Personally Identifiable Information (Pll) is collected, used, accessed, shared,
or stored. To conduct the PIA the Contractor must provide the Department
access to applicable systems and documentation sufficient to allow the

Department to assess at minimum, the following:

1.55.1.1. How Pll is gathered and stored;

1.55.1.2. Who will have access to Pll" ,—mm

%
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1.55.1.3. How Pll will be used in the system;

1.55.1.4. How individual consent will be achieved and revoked; and

1.55.1.5. Privacy practices.

1.55.2. The Department may conduct follow-up PIAs in the event there are either
significant process changes or new technologies Impacting the collection,
processing or storage of Pll.

1.56. Department Owned Devices, Systems and Network Usage

1.56.1. Contractor End Users authorized by the Department's Information Security
Office to use a Department issued device (e.g. computer, tablet, mobile
telephone) or access the Department network in the fulfillment of this
Agreement must:

1.56.1.1. Sign and abide by applicable Department and New Hampshire
Department of Information Technology (NH DolT) use agreements,
policies, standards, procedures and guidelines, and complete
applicable trainings as required.

1.56.1.2. Use the information that they have permission to access solely for
conducting official Department business and agree that all other use
or access is strictly forbidden including, but not limited, to personal
or other private and non-Department use. and that at no time must
they access or attempt to access information without having the
express authority of the Department to do so.

1.56.1.3. Not access or attempt to access information in a manner
inconsistent with the approved policies, procedures, and/or
agreement relating to system entry/access.

1.56.1.4. Not copy, share, distribute, sub-license, modify, reverse engineer,
rent, or sell software licensed, developed, or being evaluated by the
Department, and at all times must use utmost care to protect and
keep such software strictly confidential in accordance with the
license or any other agreement executed by the Department.

1.56.1.5. Only use equipment, software, or subscription(s) authorized by the
Department's Information Security Office or designee.

1.56.1.6. Not install non-standard software on any Department equipment
unless authorized by the Department's Information Security Office
or designee.

1.56.1.7. Agree that email and other electronic communication messages
created, sent, and received on a Department-issued email system
are the property of the Department of New Hampshire and to be
used for business purposes only. Email is defined as "internal email
systems" or "Department-funded email systems."

1.56.1.8. Agree that use of email must follow Department and NH. DolT
policies, standards, and/or guidelines; and

a
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1.56.1.9. Agree when utilizing the Department's email system:

1.56.1.9.1. To only use a Department email address assigned
to them with a affiliate.DHHS.NH.Gov."

1.56.1.9.2. To include in the signature lines information
identifying the End User as a non-Department
workforce member.

1.56.1.9.3. To ensure the following confidentiality notice is
embedded underneath the signature line:

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE; "This message may contain
information that is privileged and confidential and is intended
only for the use of the individual(s) to whom it is addressed. If
you receive this message in error, please notify the sender
immediately and delete this electronic message and any
attachments from your system. Thank you for your cooperation."

1.56.1.10.Contractor End Users with a Department issued email, access or
potential access to Confidential Data, and/or a workspace in a
Department building/facility, must:

1.56.1.10.1. Complete the Department's Annual Information
Security & Compliance Awareness Training prior to
accessing, viewing, handling, hearing, or
transmitting Department Data or. Confidential Data.

1.56.1.11. Sign the Department's Business Use and Confidentiality Agreement
and Asset Use Agreement, and the NH DolT Department wide
Computer Use Agreement upon execution of the Contract and
annually throughout the Contract term.

1.56.1.12.Agree End User's will only access the Department' intranet to view
the Department's Policies and Procedures and Information Security
webpages.

1.56.1.13. Agree, if any End User is found to be in violation of any of the above-
Department terms and conditions of the Contract, said End User
may face removal from the Contract, and/or criminal and/or civil
prosecution, if the act constitutes a violation of law.

1.56.1.14.Agrees to notify the Department a minimum of three business days
prior to any upcoming transfers or terminations of End Users who
possess Department credentials and/or badges or who have system
privileges. If End Users who possess Department credentials and/or
badges or who have system privileges resign or are dismissed
without advance notice, the Contractor agrees to notify the
Department's Information Security Office or designee immediately.

1.56.2. Workspace Requirement

—Initial

%
SS-2024-DES-03-CHILD-01-A02 B-2.0 Contractor Initials

Southern New Hampshire Senflces, Inc. Page 13 of 17 Date



Docusign Envelope ID: 81FCC361-F497-4EA1-8BED-38D5D0B299E0

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Resource and Referral for NH Child Care Facilities

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #2

1.56.2.1. If applicable, the Department will work with Contractor to determine
requirements for providing necessary workspace and State
equipment for its End Users.

1.57. Contract End-of-Life Transition Services

1.57.1. General Requirements

1.57.1.1. If applicable, upon termination or expiration of the Contract the
Parties agree to cooperate in good faith to effectuate a smooth
secure transition of the Services from the Contractor to the
Department and, if applicable, the Contractor engaged by the
Department to assume the Services previously performed by the
Contractor for this section the new Contractor must be known as
"Recipient"). Ninety (90) days prior to the end-of the contract or
unless otherwise specified by the Department, the Contractor must
begin working with the Department and if applicable,. Jhe new
Recipient to develop a Data Transition Plan (DTP). The Department
must provide the DTP template to the Contractor.

1.57.1.2. The Contractor must use reasonable efforts to assist the Recipient,
in connection with the transition from the performance of Services
by the Contractor and its End Users to the performance of such
Services. This may include assistance with the secure transfer of
records (electronic and hard copy), transition of historical data
(electronic and hard copy), the transition of any such Service from
the hardware, software, network and telecommunications equipment
and internet-related information technology infrastructure ("Internal
IT Systems") of Contractor to the Internal IT Systems of the Recipient
and cooperation with and assistance to any third-party consultants
engaged by Recipient in connection with the Transition Services.

1.57.1.3. If a system, database, hardware, software, and/or software licenses
(Tools) was purchased or created to manage, track, and/or store
Department Data in relationship to this contract said Tools will be
inventoried and returned to the Department, along with the inventory
document, once transition of Department Data is complete.

1.57.1.4. The internal planning of the Transition Services by the Contractor
and its End Users must be provided to the Department and if
applicable, the Recipient in a timely manner. Any such Transition
Services must be deemed to be Services for purposes of this
Contract.

1.57.1.5. Should the data Transition extend beyond the end of the Contract,
the Contractor agrees that the Contract Information Security
Requirements, and if applicable, the Department's Business
Associate Agreement terms and conditions remain in effect until the
Data Transition is accepted as complete by the Department.

1.57.1.6. In the event where the Contractor has comingled Department Data
and the destruction or Transition of said data is not feastbie^-'the

%
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Department and Contractor will jointly evaluate regulatory and
professional standards for retention requirements prior to
destruction, refer to the terms and conditions of Exhibit K: DHHS
Information Security Requirements.

1.57.2. Completion of Transition Services

1.57.2.1. Each service or Transition phase must be deemed completed (and
the Transition process finalized) at the end of fifteen (15) business
days after the product, resulting from the Service, is delivered to the
Department and/or the Recipient in accordance with the mutually
agreed upon Transition plan, unless within said fifteen (15) business
day term the Contractor notifies the Department of an issue requiring
additional time to complete said product.

1.57.2.2. Once all parties agree the data has been migrated the Contractor
will have 30 days to destroy the data per the terms and conditions of
Exhibit K: DHHS Information Security Requirements.

1.57.3. Disagreement over Transition Services Results

1.57.3.1. In the event the Department is not satisfied with the results of the
Transition Service, the Department must notify the Contractor, by
email, stating the reason for the lack of satisfaction within fifteen (15)
business days of the final product or at any time during the data
Transition process. The Parties must discuss the actions to be taken
to resolve the disagreement or issue. If an agreement is not reached,
at any time the Department must be entitled to initiate actions iri
accordance with the Contract.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor must use and disclose Protected Health Information in compliance with
the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information (Privacy Rule)
(45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability
Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in accordance with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate
Agreement, which has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor must manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor must comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached hereto
and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Additional Terms

3.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

3.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal legislation or
court orders may have an impact on the Services described herein, the State
has the right to modify Service priorities and expenditure requirements under
this Agreement to achieve compliance therewith.

3.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically Ap^opriate
Programs and Services

V (/
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3.2.1. The Contractor must submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement Effective
Date, a detailed description of the communication access and language
assistance services to be provided to ensure meaningful access to programs
and/or services to individuals with limited English proficiency; individuals who
are deaf or have hearing loss; individuals who are blind or have low vision; and
individuals who have speech challenges.

3.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

3.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials
prepared during or resulting from the performance of the services of the
Agreement must include the following statement, "The preparation of this
(report, document etc.) was financed under an Contract with the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in
part by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were
available or required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

3.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement must have prior
approval from the Department before printing, production, distribution or use.

3.3.3. The Department must retain copyright ownership for any and all original
materials produced, including but not limited to:

3.3.3.1. Brochures.

3.3.3.2. Resource directories.

3.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

3.3.3.4. Posters.

3.3.3.5. Reports.

3.3.4. The Contractor must not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

4. Records

4.1. The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to:

4.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data evidencing
and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the
performance of the Contract, and all income received or collected by the
Contractor.

4.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and
practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and expenses,
and which are acceptable to the Department, and to include, without limitation,
all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as purchase
requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories,
valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records
requested or required by the Department.

4.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, ̂ any of
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their designated representatives must have access to all reports and records
maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and
transcripts.

4.3. If, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department must disallow any
expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder, the Department retains the
right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to
recover such sums from the Contractor.

■Initial
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New Hampsh

Contractor Name

Budget Request for

Budget Perior

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable

re Department of Health and Human Services

ISouthem New Hampshire Services

Resource artd Referral (or NH Child Care

July 1. 2024 through June 30. 2025 (SPY 25)

10.40%

Line Item Program Cost • Funded by DHHS

1. Salarv & Waaes

' S56D.OOO

2. Frinoe Benofits

S210.000

3. Consultants

S82.500

4. Equipment

hdiroct cosi rote carmol bo applied to equipment eoslapof 2 CFR 200.1 wxf
Apoendfx fV to 2 CFR 200.

$0

5.(a) Supplies • Educational

S10.D00

5.(b) Supplies-Lab
$0

5.(c) Supplies-Pharmacy $0
5.(d) Supplies - Medical so
5.(e) Supplies Office

S22.500

6. Travel
$23,000

7. Software SO

8. fat Other - Marketino/Communications

534.000

8. (b) Other • Education and Tranina

S45.000

8. fct Other • Other (specify belowt

Occuoancv

- S38.275

Colebration 520,000

Provider hcentives $2,000
Other ioJease soeciM

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $1,047,275

Total indirect Costs S106.629

TOTAL $1.153.9(14

Contractor Initiate
I a

a I*
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name Southern New Hampshire Services

Budget Request for:'teach WH

BudgetPerlcKi July 1.2024 through June 30,2025 (SPY 25)
Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 10.40%

Line Item Program Cost - Funded.by DHHS

1. Salary &Waoe8 $60,000

2. Fringe Benefits
$24,050

3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment
M/eci cost rate cannor be app/iee/ (o 9<pApmeni coats per 2 CFR 200.1 and

Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.
'  SO

5.(a) Supi^ies - Educational
$0

5.(b) Supplies - Lab
$0

5.(c) Supplies • Pharmacy
$0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical
$0

S.(e) Supplies Office
$2,000

6. Travel
.  $2,000

7. Software $0

8. (a) Other • MarketinofCommunications $0

$5,500

8. (b) Other - Education and Trainina

8. (c) Other • Other (specify below)

Licensina/Consullations • $7,500

ScholBrships/SuDOorts ' ' . S188.441

Other (olease soeciM $0
Other (olease soeclM ■  $0

9. Subreciplent Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $289,491

Total Indirect Costs ■  ' $10,509

TOTAL $300,000

Contractor Initials

'MW

a

Page 1 of 1
4/6/202S

Dale



Doeustgn Envalope 10; aiFCC361-F497-4EA1-6B£O-38O9O0e299E0

BT-I.O Exhibit C-7, Budget Sheet - Amendment #2 SS-2024.0ES-03-CHILCM)1-A02

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Uame:'Southem New Hompshlro Servicea

Budget Request for; Resource and Referral for NH Child Care.

Budget Period July 1. 2025 through June 30. 2026 (SPY 26)

indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 10.40%

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. SaiaryS Wooes S704.000

2. Frinoe Benefits S328.0(X)

3. Consultants $50,000

4. Equipment
inatoci cost roto cannot be applied to eouipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 end
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0

5.(a) Supplios - Educational $7,500
5.(b} Supplies - Lob $0
S.(c) Supplies - PharmacY $0
5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0
5.(o) Supplies Office $22,500,

6. Travel $25,000

7. Software $0

8. (a) Other • MaHrotirxj/Communications $22,000
6. (b) Other • Education and Trainino $40,725
8. (c) Other • Other (specify below)

Occuoancv $38,275
Celebralion $15,000
Provider Incentives •  SO

Other (please soeciM so

9. Subroclpient Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $1,253,000

Total indirect Costs $128,752

TOTAL $1,381,762

fpf
Contractor initials^

Page l o( 1 Dale
4/6/2025
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BT-1.0 Exhibit C-8. Budget Sheet - Amendment HI
SS-2024-DES-03-CHtLD-01-A02

New Hampsh

Contractor Name

Budget Request for

Budget Period

Indirect Cost Rate (rf applicable

re Department of Health and Human Services

Southern New Hampshire Services

9..
c■

1

1

O
Q

July 1. 2025 through June 30. 2025 (SPY 26)
10.40%

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Sdarv&Waaos
$39,000

2. Frirxje Benefits
$18,750

3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment
Mine/ cosi nte cannot be appf/ed to equipment coats pet 2 CFR 200 1 and
Appendix rv to 2 CFR 200.

$0

S.(a] Supplies • Educational
$0

5.(b) Supplies • Lab
so

5.(c) Supplies • Pharmacy
$0

S.(d) Supplies - Medical
$0

5.(e) Supplies OfHce
$1,000

6. Trovd $2,656

7. Software
$0

8. (a^ Other - Marketlno/Communicatlons $0

8. (b) Other • Education and Trainina
$2,000

8. (cl Other • Other (specify below)

Mentor Stipends $5,000
Miscellaneous SO

Other (please speciM
$0

Other (please speclM SO

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $68,406

Total Indirect Costs $6,594

TOTAL $76,000

Contractor Initials

Page 1 d 1 Date
4/6/2025
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BT-I.O Exhibit C-9. Budget Sheet • Amendment #2 S$.2024-DES-03-CHILO-01-A02

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name:'Sotrfhern Wew WampsWre Semces

Budget Request for: \TEACH NH
BudgetPeTiod July 1.2025 through June 30. 202$ (SPY 26)

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) ;10.40%

Line Item

1

Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. SalarY& Wages $63,000

2. Frinoe Benefits
$29,000

3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannoT be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR 300.1 end
Appendix tV to 2 CFR 200.

$0

5.(a) Supplies - Educational .  $0
S.(b) Supf^ies-Lab $0
5.(c) Supplies • Pharmacy -  $0
5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0
5.(6} Supplies Office

S2.'000

6. Travel
$2,000

7. Software $0

6. (a) Other • Marltetina/Communlcations . $0

8. (b) Other - Education and Trainina

$5,500

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)

Licensina/Consultations $7,500

Schdarshios/SuDDorts $140,444

Other (olease soeciM $0
Other (olease soeciM ■ $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $249,444

Total Indirect Costs ' , ' ' ' ■ $10,556

TOTAL $260,000

Contractor lniliais~

Page 1 of 1

4/6/202S

Dale
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlaii, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

SERVICES INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 28, 1965.

1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Sccrclaiy- of Slate's office have been received and is in good standing
as far as'tliis olTicc is concerned.

Business ID: 65506

Certificate Number: 0007I5J493

ft

Bad

O

€3

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my liand ajid cause to be affixed

the Seal of the Stale of New Hampshire,

this 7lh day of April A.D. 2025.

David M. Seanlan

Secretary of Stale
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I. Qrville Kerr hereby certify that;
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. I am a duly elected Clerk/Secretarv/Officer of Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc. dba Community Action
Partnership Hillsborouah and Rockinaham Counties.

(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following Is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on September 9 . 2024 . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

VOTED: That Donnalee Lozeau. CEO. Rvan Clouthier. COO: James Chaisson. CFO. and Cara Aliherti
Financial Analyst (may list more than one person )is duly authorized on behalf of Southern New Hamnshirp
Services. Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or
departments and further is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments and
any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to
effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
dale of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate Is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that It is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporaUcm. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contractsniRTh the State of New Hampshire
all such limitations are expressly stated herein. y/^ ^

Dated:_ h\i hs-
Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Orville Kerr

Title: Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20
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Accmc? CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DDnrVYY)

04/03/2025

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S) AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Cross Insurance-Manchester

1100 Elm Street

Manchester NH 03101

name"^ Dianne Solo
K.EX,,: (603)669-3218 (603)645^331
AOMEss- '^^'^ch-csrtsigcrossagency.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICt

INSURER A Philadelphia Indemnity Ins Co 18058

INSURED

Southern New Hampshire Ser\ices. Inc.
PC Box 5040

Manchester NH 03108-5040

INSURER B Midwest Employers Casualty Corp 23612

INSURER C

INSURER 0

INSURERS

INSURERF

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS

TfJSiri n'DDLlSUBRI
'-TR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSO WVPl POLICY NUMBER (MMrt«VYYYY| rMWDOAYVYI LIMITS
X COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABILITV

CLAIMS-MADE I X] OCCUR
EACH OCCURRENCE

UAUAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES tEa oeeurrerKo^

PHPK2670953-004 04/01/2025 04/01/2026

MEO EXP (Any one pfon)

PERSONAL A AOV INJURY

OENX AOGREQATE LIMIT APPUES PER;□ PRO
JECTPOLICY

OTHER:

GENERALAGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGO

1.000,000

100,000

5.000

1,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTOX

X

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(E» >cdaeni> 1,000,000

OSVNED
Al/TOSONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS UAB

BODILY INJURY {P« per»on)
SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

PHPK2670952-004 04/01/2025 04/01/2026 BODILY INJURY (Per acdoent)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per ectidcnil

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE PHUBd058594}04
EACH OCCURRENCE 5,000,000

04/01/2025 04/01/2026 5.000.000

OED X RETENTION S ^0.000
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILTTY

ANY PROPRIETORff-ARTNER^XECUTIVE
OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
H vet. deeoUie under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS t>elO«

R02587HCHS2025-01 (3a.) NH 01/01/2025

X PER
STATUTE

OTH-
ER

01/01/2026 E.LEACHACaOENT 1.000,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 1.000,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT 1,000,000

Professional Liability
PHPK2670953-004 04/01/2025 04/01/2026

Each Prof incident

Aggregate
$1,000,000

$2,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACOR0101. Additional Remark* Schedule, may be attached If more space It required)
Refer to policy for exclusionary endorsements and special provisions.

NH DHHS

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301
1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATJON DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORO 25 (2016/03)
® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



Docusign Envelope ID: 81FCC361-F497-4EA1-8BED-38D5D0B299E0

na tttim I

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES
The Community Action Partnership for Hillsborough and Rockingham Counties

Helping People. Changing Lives.

MISSION STATEMENT

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (SNHS) is a private non-profit corporation chartered in the State of New
Hampshire, May 21, 1965 to ser\'e as the Community Action Partnerehip for Hillsborough County iri compliance
with the Economic Opportunity Act of 1964. From 1965 through 1969, SNHS was known as the Community
Action Agency for Hillsborough County and served the City of Nashua and the twenty-nine towns. In 1969 SNHS
beeame the Community Action Partnership for the City of Manchester as well. In 1974 the agency's name was
changed to Southern New Hampshire Ser\'iccs, Inc. In July 201 1, Rockingham Community Action (RCA), the
Community Action Agency serving Rockingham County, was merged with Southern New Hampshire Services. As
a result of this merger, SNHS now provides ser\'iccs to residents of the 65 towns and 3 cities in Hillsborough and
Rockingham Counties.

The Economic Opportunity Act of 1964 and subsequent federal legislation establishing the Community Services
Block Grant define our basic mission. Under these provisions the fundamental mission of SNHS is:

A. To provide a range of services and activities having a measurable and potentially major impact on causes of
poverty in the community or those areas of the community where poverty is a particularly acute problem.

B. To provide activities designed to assist low-income participants including homeless individuals and
families, migrants, and the elderly poor to:

1. Secure and retain meaningful employment
2. Attain an adequate education
3. Make better use of available income

4. Obtain and maintain adequate housing and a suitable living en\qfonment
5. Obtain emergency assistance through loans or grants to meet immediate and, urgent individual and

family needs, including the need for health services, nutritious food, housing, and employment related
assistance

6. Remove obstacles and solve problems which block the achievement of self-sufficiency
7. Achieve greater participation in the affairs of the community, and
8. Make more effective use of other prograins related to the purposes of the enabling

federal legislation.

C. To provide on an emergency basis for the provision of such supplies and scr\'ices, nutritious foodstuffs, and
related services, as may be necessary to counteract conditions of starvation and malnutrition among the
poor.

D. To coordinate and establish linkages between governmental and other social service programs to assure the
effective delivery of such services to low-income individuals.

E. To encourage the use of entities in the private sector of the community in efforts to ameliorate poverty in
the community,
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Leone, ,
McDonnell
& Roberts

I'ROniSSIONAi. .VSSOCIAIION

Cl-RTlFIKD PUllUC ACCOUNTANTS

WOLFEBORO. • NORTH CONVtW

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
o1 RAl nAW

To the Board of Directors of

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Southern New Hampshire Services,
Inc. and Affiliate (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the combined statements of
financial position as of July 31, 2022, and the related combined statements of activities and
changes in net assets, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then and the related
notes to the combined financial statements.

In our opinion, the combined financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate as of July 31, 2022,
and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for" the years then erided in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent
of the Southern New Hanipshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our audit. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these combined
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, and for the design, implementation, and rriaintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the combined financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether
there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate's ability to continue as a going concern
within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the combined financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,.and
to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with generally accspted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentation, or the override
of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood
that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable
user based on the combined financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
Government Auditing Standards, we;

•  Exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the combined financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the combined financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit In order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but riot for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.
and Affiliate's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the'financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.
and Affiliate's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time!

We are .required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain
internal control.-related matters that we identified during the audit;

Prior Period Financial Statements

The combined financial statements of Southern New Hampshire. Services, Inc. as of July 31,
2021 were audited by other auditors whose report dated March 3, 2022, expressed an
unmodified opinion on those statements. In our opinion, the summarized comparative
information presented herein as of and for the year ended July 31, 2021, Is consistent, in all
rhaterial respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

2
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Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the combined financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Co.de of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the combined financial statements.
Additionally, the supplementary information as required by New Hampshire Housing is
presented for additional analysis and is not a required part of the combined financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the combined
financial statements.

The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
combined financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the combined financial statements of to the combined financial statements themselves,
and .other additional procedures in accordarice with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, jn all material
respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Governrhent Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
February 2, .2023, on our consideration of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and
Affiliate's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and cprripliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on the effectiveness, of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate's internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance.'That report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Southern New Hampshire
Services, fnc. and Affiliate's internal control over financial reporting and compliance-

Dover, New Hampshire
February 2, 2023
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRF SERVICES. INC. AND AFFir IflTF

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JULY 31. 2022 AND 2021

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash

Investments
Grants receivable
Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses

total current assets

PROPERTY

Land

Buildings and improvements
Vehicles and equipment

Total,property

Less: accumulated depreciation

Total fixed assets, net

OTHER ASSETS

Restricted cash

TOTAL ASSETS

2022

$  11,441,623

9.696,836
4.458,963
949.902
129.210

26.676:534

3.575,080

13,936,225
1.470.617

18,981,922

6.720.057

12.261.865

511.966

2021

$  8,496,942
10,396,716
3.451,639

778.610
136,692

23.260.599

3,045,918

13,565,3.16
i!575.022

18; 186.256

6.204.453

11.981.803

468,276

$  39,450.365 $ 35,710,678

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current portion of'long term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Accrued compensated absences
Other liabilities

Refundable" advances
Tenant security deposits

Total current liabilities

LONG TERM Liabilities
Long terrn debt; less current portion shown above

Total liabilities

netassets

Without donor restrictions

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

$  83,656
991,023

1.646,168
407,125

222,094
4.390,640

95,757

7.836.463

1.905,793

9,742,256

29.708.109

$  39.450.365

79,998

691,695

i.187.344'
424,497
243,122.

1,424,138
89,232

4,140.026

,2,878,216

7,018,242

28.692.436

$ 35.710.678

See Notes to Combined Financial, Statements

4
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021

REVENUES. GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grant.revenue $ 131,572,939 $ 57.659.302
Program service fees 930,848 822;662
Local funding 162,140 193,876
Rental Income 1,248,788 1.227,156
Gifts and. other contributioris 375,231 301,421
interest and dividend income 403,230 228.980
Unrealized (loss) gain on Investments (1,101,886) 1,066,602
Miscellanepus 162,429 744,238
In-kind revenue 992,197 1.203,823
Forgiveness of debt 900,000 .

Gain on disposal of property 8,545 3,398

TOla! revenues, gains and other .support 135,654,461 63.451,458

See Notes to Combined Financial Statements

5

EXPENSES

Program services
Child development 9,709,703 10,810,566
Community services 1.365,889 1.363,706
Economic and workforce development 4,855,488 5,786,299
Energy 15,581,785 10,666,407
Language and literacy 355,546 302,502
Housing and horneless 94,232,589 23.360,337
Nutrition and health 2,192,705 2,111,260
Special projects 1,798.981 2,317,802
Volunteer services 109,401 112,210
SNHS Management Corporation; 2,458,985 2,370^028

Total program services 132,661,072 59,201,117

Supporting activities
Management and general 1,977,716 1,943,894

Total expenses 134,638,788 61,145,011

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 1,015,673 2.306.447

NETASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 28,692,436 26.385,989

NET ASSETS; END OF YEAR $ 29,708,109 $ 28,6.92.436
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFnUATE

COMBtNED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2022

EXPENSES

Payroll
Payroll taxes

Fringe benefits
Workers compensation insurance
Retirement benefits

Consultant and contractual
Travel and transportation
Conferences and meetings
Occupancy
Advertising
Supplies
Equipment rentals and maintenance
Insurance

Telephone
Postage
Printing and publications
Subscriptions
Program support
Interest

Depreciation
Assistartce to clients

Otber expense
Miscellaneous

In-kind expenses

Child

Development

S 4.662,659
348.302

1,503,860

97.375

345,542

52,542

70,049

634,228

1,188
269,441

17.789

19,075

71,994

1,628

1,488

1.873

7,811

133,424

238,519

346,271

12,952

Community
Services

$ . 558,156
42,274
97,032

7,094

51,651

289,776
14,684

10,660

147,065

24,289
3,090

47.462
17,062

7

4,588

120,345

19.673

23.297

2,816
44.591

Economic and

Workforce

Devoloomont

$  1,990,951
149,819

429.260
4,336

166,504

309,531
37,586

554,837

1,660

15,592

5.139

5,982

37,827

1.432

44,930

1,107,003
4,642
1,036

Program Services

Energy

1,547.109

117,947

421,614
11,681

114,842

1,922,755
42,224

5,378

129,718
13,322

105,391
12,244
23,078

40,509

29,767

16,531

704

20,585

8,533
11,032,479

10,508
1,696

Language and

Literacy •

$  236,067
17,294

26.123

5,631

9,313

1,017
491

29,924

100

12,122

10,403

3,114
246

645

2,906

150

Housing

and Homeless

S 2,016,252
153,374

363,941

4,375

59,619
927,682

1,928

1,016
52,641

50

81,566

18.919

2.463

24.751

25.363

90.504.018
3.203

2,088

Nutrition

and

Health

864,686
65,249

241.067

24,217
64,339

10,004
15,486

825

56,192

150

254,026
10,377

4,717

79,510

3,753

4.617

13,778

486,654

4,744

1,822

SUBTOTAL 9,830,207 1,525,612 4,868,067 15,628,615 355,646 94,243,249 2,206,243

Eliminations (120,5041 (159.7231 (12.5791 (46.8301
• (10.6601 (13,5381

TOTAL EXPENSES $  9,709.703 $  1,365,889 S 4,855,488 S 15,581.785 $  355.546 S 94,232,589 $ 2,192.705

See Notes to Combined Financial Statements
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFtLIATP

COMBINED STATEMEffT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2Q22

EXPENSES

Payroll

Payroll laxes
Fringe benefits

Workers compensation Insurance
Retirement benefits

Consultant and contractual
Travel and transportation
Conferences and meetings
Occupancy
Advertising
Supplies
Equipment rentals and maintenance

Insurance

Telephone
Postage
Printing and publications
Sutiscriptions
Program support
Interest

Depreciation
Assistance to clients

Other expertse

Miscellaneous

In-kind expenses

SUBTOTAL

Eliminations

TOTAL EXPENSES

Support
Program Services Services

SNHS Management
Special Volunteer Management Total Program and 2022
ProlRcts Services CoroorsMon Services General Total

$ 70,027 S  66,286 $  680.957 $ 12,693,150 S 1,250,623 . S  13,951,973
5,334 4.777 51,276 955,646 91.302 1,046.948
5.415 17,932 124,330 3,230.574 172,052 3,402,626
631 146 12,763 168,249 4,964 173,213

5.861 5,739 51,873 875,273 123,402 998,675
1.576.097 2,790 154,643 5,246.837 181,115 5.427.952

2.535 1,347 43.639 229,969 6,137 236,106
1,867 - 36,679 56,425 2,276 58,701

20,274 • 653,118 2,277,997 44,863 2,322,860
25 500 1,641 18,636 338 18,974

9.264 3,099 22,434 797,224 44,635 841,859
5.673 21 10,928 94.583 1,052 95,635
3,706 1,762 46,929 155,174 16,931 172,105
2.770 3,137 24,285 304,959 14,673 319,632

7 752 766 63,721 11,966 75,687
• - 1,477 24,729 - 24,729
0 900 665 2,269 1,029 3,298

3,336 - 73,105 223,861 . 223,861
• - 47.746 55,557 . 55,557

48,286
- 395,803 667,333 4,114 671,447

41.099
- 24,779 103,457,878 103.457,878

-
- 7,175 379,359 1,539 380,898

120 213 66,702 131,370 209 131.579
- • - 992.197 . 992.197

1,802,317 109,401 2,533,713 133,102.970 1,981,420 135,084.390

(3.336) . (74.7281 (441,898) (3,7041 (445,6021

$ 1,798.981 S  109.401 $ 2,458,985 $ 132.661,072 S 1.977,716 S  134.638.788

See Notes to Combined Financial Statements
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHtRE SERVICES. INC. AND APRLIATE

COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2021

Program Services

EXPENSES

Payroll
Payroll taxes
Fringe benefits
Workers compensation insurance
Retirement benefits

Consultant and contractual
Travel and transportation
Conferences and meetings
Occupancy
Advertising

Supplies
' Equipment rentals and maintenance

Insurance

Telephone
Postage
Printing and publications

Subscriptions
Program support
Interest

Depreciation
Assistance to clients

Other expense
Miscellaneous

In-kind eiqsenses

SUBTOTAL

Over applied indirect costs

EliminaSons

TOTAL EXPENSES

Economic and Nutrition
Child Community Workforce language and Housing and

Develooment Services Develooment Enerov Literacv and Homeless Health

$ 5.475,948 $  797,163 $  2,740,989 S 1,286,379 $ 204,412 S  725,286 $  912,550
409,962 59,844 204,551 97,778 15,619 54,970 68,761

1,677,691 138,364 623,172 382,294 23,750 112,040 242,822
127,833 9,424 6,924 11,934 6,245 2,469 27,215
375,917 69,893 194,325 96,055 8,755 16,206 74,893
72,997 85,282 695,516 970,317 801 238,467 9,785
35,627 3,264 13,780 15,113 . 1,045 9.210

• 7,250 - 2,245 - . 1,914
569,678 136.788 540,570 123,460 24,409 23,349 49,916

574 640 800 2,418 . 600 384
286,505 32,374 12,180 61,729 7,224 53,747 25,794

2.430 478 (4,515) 16,962 3,495 2,579 8.745
22,375 28,204 9,341 27,769 • 527 3,822
80,815 21,885 32,839 36,030 2,712 14,294 55,657
3,368 40 1,150 27,045 417 6,622 1,931

40 - • 6,012 1.156 .

• • - 570 ' .

- 181,694 - 59,109 . .

9,335 - - .

129,615 6,300 42,909 5,276 1,266 . 13,187
234,976 3,992 676,974 7,518,979 . 22,107,876 393,992
167,824 - 10,872 2,937 . 300 224,649
37,305 1,391 915 1,424 • 2,241 830 1,905

1,203,823 - - . . .

10,924,838 1,584,270 5,803,292 10,751,835 X2,502 23,361,206 2,127,132

(114.272) (220.564) (16,993) (85.428)

-

(869) (15.872)

$ 10.810,566 $  1,363,706 S  5.786,299 S 10.666.407 $ 302.502 $ 23.360.337 $  2.111.260

See Notes to Combined Rnancial Statements
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRF SERVICES. INC. AND AFHLIATF

COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2021

EXPENSES

Payroll
Payroll taxes
Fringe benefits
Workers compensation insurance
Retirement benefits
Consultant and contractual
Travel and transportation
Conferences and meetings
Occupancy
Advertising
Supplies
Equipment rentals and maintenance
Insurance

Telephone
Postage
Printing and publications
Subscriptions
Program support
Interest

Depreciation
Assistance to clients
Other expense
Miscellaneous

In-kind expenses

SUBTOTAL

Over applied indirect costs
Eliminations

Special

Proiects

84.906

6,517

6.176

1,770
6,118

2,122,049
1,141

1,454

15,201

593

2,645

2,636

3,079

560

60.191

2,101

1,225

2,318,352

(560)

Program Services

Volunteer

Services

1  60,715
4,220

17.742
157

5,287

2.780
1,973

50

1,766

6,819

41

1,762

2,633

60S

900

4.760

112,210

SNHS

Management

Corporation

S  579,814
45,415

223,039
10,661

43,218

129,628
33,587
14,412

641,741

3,232

21,240
8,933

55,107

26,997

1,470

630

45,948
51,209

405.478
24,342

7,306

47.257

2,420,464

(50.436)

Support

Services

TOTAL EXPENSES $  2,317.802 $ 112.210 S 2.370,028

Management
Total and 2021

Proaram General Total

$ 12,867.961 $  1.290.991 S 14.158,952
967,637 94,236 1,061,873

3,447,290 183,099 >,630,389
204,632 7.679 212,311
890,667 121,520 1,012,187

4.327.622 106,077 4,433,699
114,740 4,283 119,023
27,325 1,025 28,350

2,125,112 44,854 2,169,976
10,414 25 10,439

508,205 58,393 566,598
41.793 1,457 43,250
151,543 10.161 161,704
276,941 6,779 283,720
42,648 13,123 55,771
7.208 - 7,208
2,100 • 2,100

287,311 ■ 287,311
60,544 . 60,544

664,222 2,670 666,892
30,963,232 30,963,232

413,688 797 414,665
99,253 2,711 101,964

1,203.823 . 1.203.823

59,706,111 1,949,890 61,656,001

. (809) (809)
(504.994) (5,187) (510,181)

$ 59,201,117 $  1,943,894 s 61.145.011

See Notes to Combined Financial Statements
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFRLIATF

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2022 AND 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Charige in netrassets
Adjusiments to reconcile change In net assets to
net cash from operating activities:
Depfeciatloh
Gain on disposal of property
Unrealized loss (gain) on investments
Forgiveness of debt
Loss on construction

Decrease (increase) In assets:
Grants recelvabie
Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related expenses.
Accrued comperisated absence's'
Other liabilities

Refundable advances

Tenant security deposits

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Pyrchase of property
Proceeds from disposal of property
Purchase of ihvestmerits. relnvesled dividends and capital gains

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING.ACTIVIJIES

CASH FLOWS FROM.FINANCING.ACTIVITIES
Repayrhent of long term debt

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND REStRICTED CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid:during Ihe year for inleresl

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH

Cash

Restricled cash

Total cash and restricted cash

2022 2021

■$ 1,015.673 $ 2.306;447

671.447 666:892
(8,545) (3.398)

1,101,886 (1.066.602)
(900.000) -

70,044
-

(1,007.324) (105,204)
(171,292) (57,015)

7;482 23..150

299,328 (37,405)
458,824 97,663
(17.372) (45,804)
(21,028) 9,632

2.966,502 1,087:338
6,525 6,202

4.472,150 2.881,696

(1.058.436) (560.313)
45,426 48,500

(402.006) (227.693)

(1.415.014)

(68.765)

(68.765)

2,988,371

.8,965,218

(739.506)

(91.051)

(91.051)

2,051,339

6,913.879

$ 11.953.589 $ 8.965.218

55,557 $ 60.544

$ 11,441,623 $ 8,496,942
511.966 468.276

$ 11.953.569 $ 8.965.218

See Notes to Combined Financial Statements
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO GOMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE years ENDED JULY 31. 2022 AND 2021

NpTEl. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (the Organization) is a nonprofit umbrella,
corporation that offers an array of services to the elderly, disabled, and low-
incpme hpuseho.lds in New Hanipshire's Hillsborough County and RpcKingham
County. The Organization's programs provide assistance in the areas of
education, child, development, employment, energy and its conservation, housing,
and homelessness prevention. The Organization is committed to' providing
respectful support services and assisting individuals and families inachieving self-
sOfficiericy by helping them overcome the causes of poverty" The primary source
of revenues is. derived from governmental contracts:. Services are provided
through Southern New Hampshire Services, Jnc. and SNHS Management
Corporation.

Basis of Accounting

The Organization prepares its combined financial statements utilizing the accrual
basis of accounting in accprdance with accounting principles generally acoepted
in the United States of America.

Basis of Presentation

The combined financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAPj, which
require the Organization to report information regarding its financial position and
activities according to the following net asset classifications. The classes of net
assets are determined by the presence Or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to
donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose" in
performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These, net assets
may be used at the discretion of the Ofganizatiori's managemenf and the
Board of Directors.

1

Net assets with donor restrictions - Net assets subject to stipulations
imposed by donors, and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in
nature; those restrictions will be fulfilled and removed by actions of the
Organization pursuant to those stipulations or by passage of time. Other
donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated
the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

Donor restricted contributions' are reported as an increase in; net assets
with donor restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets are
reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to net asset's without
donor restrictions in the statement of activities.

11



Docusign Envelope ID: 81FCC361-F497-4EA1-88ED-38D5D0B299E0

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

^ NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2022 AND 2021

As of July 31, 2022 and 2021, the Organization had no net assets with donor
restrictions.

Combined Financial Statements

All significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the
basic combined financial statements. The combined financial statements include
the accounts of SNHS' Management Corporation because Southern New
Hampshire Services. Inc. controls more than 50% of the voting power.

Estimates

The preparation of combined financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reported period. Actual results may differ from these amounts.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the combined statements of cash flows, the Organization
considers all unrestricted highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents. The Organization has no cash
equivalents as of July 31, 2022 and 2021.

Current Vulnerabilities Due to Certain Concentrations

The Organization is operated in a heavily regulated environment. The operations of
the Organization are subject to the administrative directives, rules and regulations of
federalj state and local regulatory agencies. Such administrative directives, rules
and regulations are subject to change by an act of Congress or Legislature. Such
changes may occur with little notice or inadequate funding to pay for the related
cost, including the additional administrative burden, to comply with a change.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Organization maintains its cash balances at several financial institutions
located, in New Hampshire and Maine. The balances are insured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Organization (FDIC) up to $250,000 per financial institution. In
addition, on October 2, 2008, the Organization entered into an agreement with its
principal banking partner to collateralize deposits in excess of the FDIC insurance
limitation on some accounts. The balances, at times, may exceed amounts covered
by the FDIC and coliateralization agreements. It is the opinion of management that
there is no significant risk with respect to these deposits at either July 31, 2022 and
2021.

12
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2022 AND 2021

Accounts and Contracts Receivable

All accounts and contracts receivable are stated at the amount management
expects to collect from balances outstanding at year-end. Receivables are
recorded on the accrual basis of accounting primarily based on reimbursable
contracts, grants, and agreements. Balances outstanding after mahagernent has
used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to bad debt
expense, and a credit to the applicable accounts receivable. Management does
not believe an allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable is necessary at
July31, 2022 and 2021.

Support and Revenue Recognition

Contracts with Customers

Prograrri fees are reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to which
the Organization expects to be entitled for .providing childcare services to its
clients.

Generally, the Organization bills customers and third-party payors several days
after the services are performed. Revenue is recognized as performance
obligations are satisfied. Performance obligations are determined based on the
nature of the services provided by the Organization. The Organization measures
the performance obligations of its childcare services to the point when it is no
longer required to provide services to the client, which is generally weekly for
childcare services. These services are considered to be a single performance
obligation.

Revenue for performance obligations satisfied at a point in time is recognized
when services are provided, and the Organization does not believe it is required to
provide additional services to the client.

Based on the nature of services provided by the Organization and due to the fact
that all of the Organization's performance obligations related to contracts with a
duration of less than one year, the Organization has elected to apply the optional
exemption provided in FASB ASC 606-10-50-14{a) and, therefore is not required
to disclose the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to
performance obligations that are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied at the end of
the reporting period.

The transaction price for childcare services is based oh standard charges for
services provided to clients. Under the terms of the State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services childcare subsidy programs,
reimbursement for childcare services provided may differ from established rates. It
is the Organization's policy to set its rates to be consistent with current
reimbursement rates. Therefore, amounts due dp not include significant: variable
consideration subject to retroactive revenue adjustments due to settlement' of
reviews and audits,
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2022 AND 2021

The Organization has elected to apply the practical expedient allowed under
FASB ASC 606-10-10-4 for applying the revenue standard to a portfolio of
contracts with similar characteristics. The Organization accounts for the contracts
within each portfolio as a collective group, rather than individual contracts, based
oh the payment pattern expected in each portfolio category and the sirriilar riature
and characteristics of the clients within each portfolio. The portfolios consist of
major payor classes for childcare services. Based on historical collection trends
and other analysis, the Organization has concluded that revenue for a given
portfolio would not be rhaterially different than if accounting for revenue, on a
cohtfact-by-contract basis.

The Organization has also elected to apply the practical expedient allowed
under FASB ASC 606-10-32-18 for the financing corhponent, as the period of
time between the service being provided and the time that the client or third-
party payof pays for the service is typically one year or jess.

Private Grant Revenue and Contributions

Private grant contributions are recognized when cash, securities or other
assets, an Unconditional promise to give, or notification of a beneficial interest is
received. Conditional promises to give are not recognized until the conditiphs on
which they depend have been substantially met. Support that is restricted by the
donor is reported as an increase in net assets without donor restrictions, if the
restriction expires in the reporting period in which the support is recognized. All
other donor-restricted support is reported as an increase in net assets with
donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the restriction. When a restriction
expires, (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends of purpose restriction is
accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are recjassified to net assets
without donor restriction's and reported in the combined statements of activities
as net assets released from restrictions.

Grants and Support

Grant revenue is derived from various federal grant agreements and various
state and private entity passthrough grant agreements and contracts to provide
funding support of the Organization's programs and services provided by the
Orga.riizatioh including childcare, child, deyelppmeht, social, health, nutrition,
employment, language, energy, and .special needs services to families enrolled
in the Organization's programs. The Organization has evaluated its grant
agreements against applicable accounting standard guidance and determined
that the grant agreements are contributions (nonreciprocal transaction)
conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or in.cufrence of
allowable qualifying expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue
when the Organization has incurred expenses in compliance with specific
provisions of the grant agreements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR the years ended JULY 31. 2022 AND 2021

Refundable advances result from unexpended balances from these conditional
contributions and will be subsequently recognized as contribution revenue wheri
donor conditions are met. Federal and state grant revenue comprised
approximately 95% and 93% of total revenue in the fiscal years ended July 31,
2022 and 2021, respectively.

In-Kind Donations

In-kind, revenues and expenses represent fair market value of volunteer
services which were donated to the Organization during the current fiscal year.
All in-kind revenues in the fiscal years 2022 and 2021 were generated through
the Head Start program. In-kind revenues and expenses for the yearS' ended
July 31. 2022 and 2021 are $992,197 and $1,203,823, respectively.

Investments

The Organization carries investments in nfiarketable securities with readily
determiriable fair values and. all investments in debt securities at their fair yalUes
in the combined statements of financial position. Unrealized gains end losses
are Included in the change in net assets in the accompanying combined
statements of activities.

Property

Property acquired by the Organization are capitalized at cost if purchased pr fair
value if donated. It is the Organization's policy to capitalize expenditures for these
items in excess of $5,000. Major additions and renewals are capitalized, while
repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Depreciation is calculated
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful [ives of the assets, which
range from three to forty years. Depreciation expense for the years ended July
.31. 2022 and 2021 was $671,447 and $666,892, respectively.

Property purchased with grant funds are owned by the Organization while used in
the program for which they were purchased or in other future authorized
programs. However, the vanous funding sources have a reversionarV interest in
the fixed assets purchased with grant funds. The disposition of property, as well
as the ownership, of any proceeds is subject to funding source regulations.

Advertising

The Organization uses advertising to promote programs among the people it
serves. The production costs of advertising are expensed as incurred.

Income Taxes

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and SNHS Management Corporation
are exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and are not private foundations. As such, they are exempt from
income tax on their exempt function income.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFIHATF

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2022 AND 2021

Functional Allocation of Expenses
The Organization allocates its expenses on a functional basis among its various
programs and support services. Expenses th^ can be ideritified with a specific
program and support services are allocated directly according to their natural
expenditure classification. Other expenses, that are common to several functions,
are allocated by management based on effort. Supporting'services are those
related to operating and managing the Organization and its programs on a day-to-
day basis. Supporting services have been subclassified as follows;

Management and General - Includes all activities related to the Organization's
internal management.

New Accounting Pronouncement

In September 2020. the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU.) No.
2020-07, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation and Disclosures by Not-
for-Profit Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial Assets, intended to improve
transparency In the reporting of contributed nonfinancial assets, also known as
gifts-in-kind, for not-for-profit organizations. Exarhples of contributed nonfinancial
assets include fixed assets such as land, buildings, and equipment; the use of
fixed assets or utilities; rnaterials and supplies, such as food or clothing; intangible
assets; and recognized contributed services. The ASU requires a not-for-profit
organization to present contributed nonfinancial assets as a separate line item in
the statement of activities, apart from, contributions of cash or other financial
assets. It also requires certain disclosures for each category of contributed
nonfinancial assets recognized. The Organization adopted the new standard
effective August 1, 2021:

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Leases

In February 2016, the FASB released ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), which
provides users of the financial statements a more accurate picture of the assets
and the long-term financial obligations of organizations that lease. The standard is
for a dual-model approach; a lessee will account for most existing capital leases
as Type A leases, and most existing operating leases as Type B leases. Both will
be reported on the statement of financial position of the Organization for leases
with a term exceeding 12 months. Lessors will see changes as well, primarily
made to align with the revised model. The guidance is effective for non-public
entities for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021, with early adoption'
permitted, The Organization will implement the guidance in Its July 31, 2023
combined financial statements. Management is currently evaluating the impact of
adoption oh the Organization's financial statements.
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SQUTHERM NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 2. RESTRICTED CASH

The Organization, as stipulated in many of the loan, agreements .associated with
the housing projects Included in SNHS Management Corporation, is required to
maintain separate accounts, and make monthly deposits into certain restricted
reserves for the replacement Of property and other expenditures. In addition, the
Organization is required to maintain separate accounts for tenant security
deposits and any surplus cash that may result'from annual operations. These
accounts are also not available for operating purposes and generally need
additional approval from oversite agencies before withdrawal and use of these
funds can occur.

NOTE 3. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The framework for measuring fair value provides a fair value hierarchy that
piioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used tp measure fair value. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices In active markets
for Identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). Valuation techniques maximize the
use of relevant observable Inputs and minimize the use of unobservable Inputs.

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under Financial Accounting Standards
Board Accounting Standards Codification 820, Fair Value Measurements, are
described as follows:

Level 1: Inputs to the valuation methodology, are unadjusted quoted prices for
identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the brganizatlon has the ability
to access at the measurement date.

Level.2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level I that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, such as:

^ Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities In active markets:

• Quoted prices for Identical or similar assets or liabilities in Inactive
markets;

• Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or
liability;

•  Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by
observable market data by correlation or other means.

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must
be observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3: Inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAIVIPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2022 AND 2021

The following is a description of the valuation methbdologies. used for assets
measured at fair value. There have been no changes in the methodologies used
at July 31, 2022 and 2021.

Mutual Funds: Valued at the net asset value of shares held on the
last trading day of the fiscal year, which is the basis for transactions
at that date.

The follpwing table sets forth, by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the
Organization's assets at fair value as of July 31;

2022

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Total mutual funds

at fair value $9.696.836 1

2021

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3: Total

Tojal mutual funds
at fair value $10.396.716 $ $_ $10.396.716

NOTE 4. INVESTMENTS

The Organizatlbh's investments are presented in the'financial statements in the
aggregate at fair value and consisted of the fbllowing as of July 31:

2022 2021

Market

Value Cost

Market

Value Cost

Mutual Funds $ 9.696.836 $ 9.241.075

The Organization had an unrealized gain on investments of $455,761 and
$1.557,647 at July 31, 2022 and 2021. respectively.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2022 AND 2021

The activities of the Organization's investment account are summarized as
follows:

2022 2021

Fair value-beginning of year $10,396,716 $ 9.102,421

Dividends and capital gains, reinvested 402,006 227,693
Unrealized gain (loss) f1.101.866) 1.066.602

Fair value-end of year £ 9.696.836 $10.396.716

NOTE 5. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The Organization's financial assets available for expenditure, that is, without donor
or other restrictions limiting their use, within one year of the statement of financial
position date comprise the following as of July 31:

2022 2021

Gash $11,441,623 $ 8,496.942
Investments 9,696,836 10,396,716
Grants receivable . 4,458,963 3,451,639
Accounts receivalDle 949,902 778.610

Total financial assets available within one year $26.547.324 $23.123.907

None of the financial assets are subject to donor or other contractual restrictions.
Accordingly, all such funds are, available to meet the needs of the Organization in
the next 12 months. In addition, the Organization maintains several reserve funds
for property taxes, insurance expenses, and repair and replacement or emergency
needs which are required by financing authorities. These funds may be withdrawn
only with the approval of the financing authority and are not considered by the
Organization to have donor restrictions.

The Organization manages its liquidity by developing and adopting annual
operating budgets that provide sufficient funds for general expenditures in meeting
its liabilities and other obligations as they become due.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEA^S ENDED JULY 31. 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 6. LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt at July 31, 2022 and 2021 consisted of the following;

2022 2021

SNHS, Inc.

Mortgage payable to bank, secured by real estate
located on Temple St.. Nashua, NH, payable in
fixed monthly principal installments of $1,833 plus
interest through 2020. The note was refinanced on
October 1, 2020, payable in monthly Installments of
$2,182 plus interest through 2030. Interest is at
4.00%at July 31, 2022 and 2021. $ 182i389 $ 200,776

SNHS Management Corporation

Mortgage payable to City of Manchester, secured
by real estate located in Manchester, NH. A balloon
payment of $11,275 was due on June 30, 2010.
Interest is at 0.00%. SNHS, Inc. is currently
negotiating with the City of Manchester to obtain
forgiveness. 11,275 11,275

Mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing
secured by real estate located on Pleasant St.,
tpping, NH, payable in. rnonthly .installments of
$i ,0.84 including interest through 2042. Interest is
at. 3.50%. 181.569 1,88,106

Mortgage payable to the City of Nashua secured by
real estate located on Vine St.. Nashua, NH.
Interest was at 10.0.0%, annually if requirements
are not met. The mortgage, was eligible for
forgiveness if the real estate remained low-income
housing for 30 years. This barrier was met during
the year ended July 31, 2022 and the mortgage
was forgiven in full and recognized into' income
(See Note 10). - 90.0,000

Mortgage payable to the City of Nashua secured by
real estate located on Vine St.. Nashua, NH.
Mortgage will be forgiven only if real estate remains
low-income housing for 30 years. Interest is at
10.00%, annually if requirements are not met. 20,000 20,000
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SOUTHERN NEW HAIVIPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFII lATF

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021

Mortgage payable to New Hampshire Community
Loan Fund secured by real estate located on, Vine
St.. Nashua, NH. Mortgage will be forgiven: only if
real estate remains low-income housing for 30
years. Interest is at 10.00%, annually if
requirements are not met. ^SO.OOG 250,000

Mortgage payable to bank, secured by real estate
located on West IPearl St.., Nashua, NH. Mortgage
will be .forgiven only if real estate remains low-
income housing for 40 years. Interest is at 0.00%. 170,000 170,0.00

Mortgage payable to l\^H Parsons and Sons
Lumber, secured by real estate located on Crystal
■Ave., Derry, NH, payable in monthly installments, of
$3,715 including interest through 2031. Interest Is
at 5.50%. 322,593 348,801

Mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing
secured, by real estate located in Deerfie.ld, NH,
payable in monthly installments of $3,327 including
interest through 2033. Interest is at 7.00%. 308,698 326,332

Mortg.age payable to New Ha;mps,hire Housing
secured by real estate located in Deerfield, NH with
annual principal repayments equal to 25% of cash
surplus due through 2032. interest is at 0.00%. 392.925 392,924

Mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing
secured by Teal estate located in Deerfield, NH with
annual principal repayments equal to 25% of cash
surplus due through 2032. .Interest is at 0.00%. 150,000 150.000

1,989,449 ■ 2.958.,214

Less: current portion due within one year 83.656 79.998

$ 1.905.793 $2.878.216
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2022 AND 2021

The schedule of maturities of long term debt at July 31, 2022 is as foHows:

Year Ending
July 31

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

Thereafter

Total

$

Amount

83.656'
76,322
80,491

84,899

89.564

1.574.517

$ 1.989.449

NOTE 7. OPERATING LEASES

The Organization leases various facilities and equipment under several operating
leases. Total lease payments for the years ended July 31, 2022 and 2021 equaled
$864,053 and $865,098, respectively. The leases expire-at various times through
January 2024. Some of the leases contain renewal options that are contingent
upon federal fundjng, and some contain renewal options subject to renegotiation
of lease terms. Annual leases with the Organization for the years ended July 31,
2022 and 2021 totaled $221,736 and $222,117, respectively. These leases have
been eliminated in the combined financial statements.

The schedule of future minimum lease payments at July 31, 2022 for the
operating leases Is as follows:

Year Ending
July 31 Amount

2023

2024

Total

$  315,429
38.539

$  353.968

NOTE 8. ACCRUED COMPENSATED BALANCES

At July 31, 2022 and 2021 the Organization accrued a liability for future annual
leave time that its employees had earned in the amount of $407,125 and
$424,497, respectively. Any hours not used by the end of the calendar year are
forfeited.

22



Docusign Envelope ID: 81FCC361-F497-4EA1-8BED-38D5D0B299E0

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO GOIVIBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 9. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Organization has an Employer-Sponsored 403(b) plan offering coverage to ail
of Its employees. Participating employees must contribute at least 1% of their
wages, while the Organization contributes 10% of their wages. The pension
expense for the years ended July 31, 2022 and 2021 was $998,675 and
$1,012,187. respectively;

NOTE 10. FORGIVENESS OF DEBT
During the year ended July 31, 2022, the Organization realized forgiveness of
debt income in connection with a mortgage payable to the City of Nashua. Real
estate located on Vine St. in Nashua, New Hampshire remained as low-income
housing for 30 years which satisfied the criteria for debt forgiveness from the City
of Nashua. Forgiveness of debt income totaled $900,000 for the year ended July
31, 2022 on the accompanying combined statement of activities (Note 6).

NOTE 11. RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Cotton Mill Square
In 2015, SNHS Management Corporation entered into a contract as part of the
Community Development Investment Tax Credit Program with the Community
Development Finance Authority (CDFA) and was awarded $1,000,000 to provide
funding for the development and adaptive reuse of an abandoned historic cotton
mill in downtown Nashua. New Hampshire. Under this program, the Project
(Cotton Mill Square) created 109 units of housing and was required to reserve 55
of these units for low to moderate income households.

As stipulated by the contract arid after a 20% program fee retained by the CDFA,
SNHS Management Corporation entered into a subrecipienl agreement with the
owners of the Project (Cotton Mill Square LLC) to provide a promissory note and
mortgage of the remaining award amount of $800,000. The 20 year note to Cotton
Mill Square LLC is non-interest bearing and the principal is forgivable at a rate of
5% each year the Project maintains the required minimum of 55 low to moderate
income household units.

The Cotton Mill Square Project was awarded the certificate of occupancy on
August 22. 2014 and remains in full compliance with the required regulations as of
July 31. 2022 and 2021. SNHS Management Corporation feels that it is extremely
unlikely that the Project will fall Jnto noncompliance in future periods. Therefore,
SNHS Management Corporation has not recorded any contingent receivable or
liability related to this transaction. The note repayment is accelerated if the units
fall out of compliance.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2022 AND 2021

In October of 2017, the subrecipient agreement with Cotton Mill Square LLC was
amended to cease the annual 5% debt forgiveness. This modification effectively
holds the promissory note balance at $720,000 which will now be forgiven in full at
the end of the agreement as long as the Project maintains compliance with the
original terms of the agreement. This modification did not change the contingent
receivable or liability with SNHS Management Corporation.

Coronavirus Pandemic

The impact of the hovel coronavirus (COVlD-19) and measures to prevent its
spread are affecting the Organization's business. The significance of the impact on
the Organization's financial operational results will be dictated by the length of time
that such disruptions continue.

During the years July 31, 2022 and 2021, and through the date of this report, the
Organization has not experienced a significant decline in revenues, nor a significant
change in its operations.

NOTE 12. RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year's financial statements,
which were taken from the July 31, 2021 financial statements,, to conform to the
current year presentation.

NOTE 13. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has made an evaluation of subsequent events through February
2. 2023, which represents the date on which the combined financial statements
were available to :be issued and determined that any subsequent events that
would require recognition or disclosure have been considered in the preparation
of these combined financial statements.

24



Docusign Envelope ID: 81FCC361-F497-4EA1-8BED-38O5D0B299E0

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

(See Independent Auditors' Report)



Docusign Envelope ID: 81FCC361-F497-4EA1-8BED-38D5D0B299E0

SQUTHEHN NEW HAMPSHIRP SERVICeS, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Schedule A

COMBINING.SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JULY31.2Q22

SNHS.Inc.

SNHS

Management
Corooratlon Sub-Total Elimination Total

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Investments

Grants receivable

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses
Due from related parties

ASSETS

$  936,692 $ 10,504,931

9,696,836

4.456,511 2,452

949,902
71,614 57,596

6,883.413 (4.487.5571

$ 11,441,623
9,696,836

4,458,963

949,902

129,210
2.395.856

S

(2.395.856)

S 11,441,623

9,696,836

4,458,963

949,902

129,210

'Total current assets 12:348.230 16.724.160 29.072.390 (2.395,955) 26.676.534

PROPERTY

Land

Buildings and Improvements
Vehicles and equipmerit

648,805
2,535,854
1.275.872

2,928.275
11.400,371

194.745

'3,575,080

13.936.225
1.470.617

- 3,575,080

13.936;225
1.470,617

Total property 4,458,531 14,523,391 18,981,922
■ 18.961,922

Loss; accumulated depreciation 1.834.900 4.885.157 6,720,057 6,720.057

Total property, net ?.fi?3.B.31 9 63fl?.34 12.261.RB.S 12.261.885

OTHER ASSETS

Restricted cash 30.521 481.445 511.966 511.966

TOTAL ASSETS $ 15.002.382 $ 26,843,839 $ 41,846,221 $ (2,395,856) $ 39,450.365

CURRENT LIABILITIES

' Current portion of long term debt
Accounts: payable
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Accrued compensated absences
Other liabilities

Refundable advances

Tenant secuHty deposits
Due to other corporations

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

$  19,185. $ 64,471

769,090 221,933
258,248 1.387,920

407,125

222,094
4,378,507 12,133

30.486 65,271
2.455.141 (59.2851

$ 83,656
991,023

1,646,168
407.125

222,094

4,390,640

95,757

2.395.856

S

(2.395.856)

S  83,656
991,023

1,646.168

407,125
2^,094

4,390,640
95,757

Total cument liabilities 8,132,751 2,099,568 10,232,319 (2,395,856) 7,836,463

NONCURRENT UABIUTIES

Long term debt, less current portion shown above 163.204 1.742.589 1,905.793 1.905.793

Total liabilities 8.295,955 3,842,157 12,138,112 (2,395,856) 9.742,256

NET ASSETS

Without donor reslrtclions 6.706,427 23.001.682 29.708.109 29.708.109.

TOTAL UABIUTIES AND NET ASSETS S 15,002,382 $ 26.843,639 S 41,846.221 $ (2,395.856) $ 39.450.365
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COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2022

Schedule B

5NH$. Irif,

SNHS

Management
Coroorotioh Sub-Total Ellnilnnlinn Total

REVENUES. GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grant revenue

Program service fees
Local funding
Rental hcome

Gifts and olher conlributlons

Interest and dividend Income

Unrealized loss on investments

Miscellaneous

Forgiveness of debt
Gain (loss) on disposal of properly
In-kind contributions

$ 131.572,939
304,206

269.675
95

132.760

(2,813)
992.197

S

850,507
162,140

1,470,525
105,556
403,135

(1,101,886)
29,669

900,000

11,358

S 131,572,939
1,154,713
162,140

1,470,525
375,231
403,230

(1,101,886)
162,429

900,000

8,545
992,197

$

(223,865)

(221,737)

$ 131,572,939

931},848
162,140

1.248.788
375,231

403,230
(1,101,886)

162,429
900,000

8,545
992,197

Total revenues, gains and other supporl 133,289.059 2,831,004 136,100,063 (445,602) 135.654.461

EXPENSES

Pfbgram sorylccs
Child development
Com.munity services
Economic and workforce development
Energy
Language and literacy
Housing and homeless
Nutrition and health

Special projects
Vplurileer services

■SNHS Management Corporation

9.830,207
1,525,612
4,868,067

15,628.615
355,540

94.243.249
2,206.243
1,802,317

109,401
2,533,713

9,830,207
1,525,612
4,868,067

15,628,615
355,546

94,243.249
2,206,243
1,802.317

109,401
2.533.713

(120,504)
(159,723)

(12,579)
(48,830)

(10,680)
(13,538)

(3,336)

(74.728)

9,709,703
1,365,889
4,855,4W

15,581,785
355,548

94,232,589
2,192,705
1,798,981

109,401
2,456,985

Total program services 130.569,257 2,533,713 133,102,970 (441,698) 132,661,072

Supporting octlvltlos
Management and general 1,981.420 1.981.420 (3.704) 1,977,716

Total expenses 132,550,677 2,533.713 135,084,390 (445,602) 134,638,788

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 718,382 297,291 1,015,673 • 1,015,673

NET ASSETS. BEGINNING OF YEAR 5,983,045 22,704,391 28,692,436 26.692,436

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $' 6.706.427 $ 23,001,682 ■S 29,708,109 $ $  29,708,109
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fPROJECT NO

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JULY 31.2022 AND 2021

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

RESTRICTED CASH

Insurance escrow

Tax escrow

Replacernenl resefves
Operating reserve

Total restricted cash

PROPERTY

Land

Buildings and improvements

Total property

Less accumulated depreciation

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS

Tenant security deposits

TOTAL ASSETS,

CURRENT Liabilities
Current portion of mortgage note payable
Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Total, current liabilities

LONG TERM LIABILITIES

Due to affiliate

Mortgage note payable, less current portion as shown above
Tenant security deposits

Tolal long term liabilities

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

LlABlLmES AND NET ASSETS

2022

16,249
6,648

22,897

3,120
4,959

27,778
79,495

115,352

166,600
598,178

764,778

93,216

671.562

14,643

6.769

5,448

49

12,266

29.575

174,800
1.4,643

219.018

231,284

593,170

2021

30,530
7,405

37,935

2,911

5,228

21,712
79,373

109,224

166,600
592,108

758,708

75,722

682,986

12,884

$  924.4&4 s

6,537
2,488

38

9,063

29,019
181,569
12,884

223,472

232,535

610,494

S  824.4f?4 ^ -ft4.-inP9
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/PROJECT NO.

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2022 AND 2021

INCOME

Rental income

Interest income
Interest Income restricted
Other income

Total income

OPERATING EXPENSES

Administrative

Utilities

Maintenance

General

Total operating expenses

INTEREST EXPENSE

INCOME BEFORE DEPRECIATION

Depreciation

CHANGE IN NET.ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF-YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

2022

175,309

11

172

5,400

180,892

39.451

45,744
62.802
26,246

174,243

6,479

170

17.494

(17,324)

610,494

2021

170,685
12

211

4,159

175,067

31,548

45,016
62,604
26,772

165,940

6,704

2.423

16.421

(13,998)

624,492

$  593,170 $ 610,494
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fFQRMERLY: EPPING SENIQUR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS
fPROJECTNO. A199991-Q46^

SCHEDULES OF RENTAL OPERATIONS EXPENSES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Management fee $  14,400 S  14,400
Salaries and wages 6,816 6,781
Fringe benefits 2,043 2,033
Legal 3,971 56
investrnent and management fee 6,120
Telephone 1,687 3,153
Other administrative expenses 4,414 5,125

Total administrative expenses 39,451 31,548

UTILITIES
Electricity 17,056 19.887
Fuel 15,579 8,177
Water and sewer 11,630 15,713
Other utility expense 1,479 1,239

Total utility expenses . 45,744 45,016

MAINTENANCE

Trash removal 2,533 2,245
Snow removal 12,496 10,153
Elevator repairs and contract 3,756 3.718.
Custodial supplies 295 72

Repairs, materials 35.522 37.829
Repairs, contract 8.200 8.587

Total maintenance expense 62,802 62,604

INTEREST, NHH MORTGAGE NOJE 6.479 6.704

DEPRECIATION 17.494 16.421

GENERAL EXPENSE

Real estate taxes 19,648 19,163
Payroll taxes 515 516
Retirement benefits 50 631

Workman's compensation 351 385
Insurance 5,682 6,077

Total general expense 26,246 26,772

TOTAL RENTAL OPERATIONS EXPENSES $  198,216 $  189,065
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Oocusign Envelope ID; 81FCC361-F497-4EA1-6BED-38D5D0B299E0

WHISPERING PINES M

fFQRMERLY: EPPING SENIOUR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS
^PROJECT no: A199991-n4fi\

SCHEDULES OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY'31. 2022 AND 2021

SOURCES OF FUNDS:

Rental operations

INCOME

Tenant paid rent
HAP rent subsidy

Total rental receipts

Interest Income

Service income

Other Incorhe

Total rental operations receipts

EXPENSES,

Administrative

Utilities

Maintenance

General

Interest

Total rental operations disbursements

CASH PROVIDED BY RENTAL OPERATIONS BEFORE
AMORTIZATION OF MORTGAGE

AMORTIZATION OF MORTGAGE

GASH USED IN RENTAL OPERATIONS AFTER DEBT SERVICE

OTHER DISBURSEMENTS

NetTecetpts (payrnents) from management agent
Net withdrawals (deposits) from reserve;accounts
Purchase of property

:NET INCREASE;(DECREASE) IN CASH

CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH, END OF YEAR

2022

157.575

17.734

175,309

11

2.635
2.765

180.720

39.008

41.718

62.966
25,539
6.479

175710

5,010

(6,537) _

(1.527)

(556)
(6.128)
(6,070) _

(14,281)

30,530 _

$  16,249 $

2021

156,712.

13.973

170,685

12

2,475
i:684

174,856

30,687

45,016

65,664

26,772
6,704

174.843

13

(6.312)

(6,299)

10.707

22.153
(11,350)

15,211

15,319

30,530
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Oocusign Envelope ID: 81FCC361-F497-4EA1-8BED-38D5D0B299E0

WHISPERINfiPIMFfi II

fFQRMERLY: EPPING SENIQUR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

fPROJECT NO. A1QQgQ1-n4fi\

SCHEDULES OF RESTRICTED CASH RESERVES AND ESCROWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2022 AND 2021

Deposits Withdrawals
DESCRIPTION OF FUND:

Restricted Accounts:

Balance

Beginning of

Year

Funding of

Reserves

Interest

Earned Exoendltures

Balance

End of

Year

For the Year Ended Julv 31. 2022

Operating reserve $  79.373 $ $  122 $ $  79,495

Insurance escrow 2,911 6,443 5 (6,239) 3,120

Tax escrow 5,228 19,010 9 (19,288) 4,959

Replacement reserve 21,712 11,850 36 (5.820) 27,778

TOTAL RESTRICTED CASH

RESERVES AND ESCROWS S  109.224 $  37.303 ?  172 I  ̂31.3471 ?  115.352

For the Year Ended Julv 31. 2021

Operating reserve $  79,253 $ $  120 $ $  79,37.3

Insurance escrow 2,791 7.840 7 (7,727) 2,91-1

Tax escrow 8,531 28,375 21 (31,699) 5,228

Replacement reserve. 40,591 10,200 63 (29,142) 21,71,2

TOTAL RESTRICTED CASH

RESERVES AND ESCROWS $ 131.166 S 4fi 41fi ^ 211 £ m.m £
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Docusign Envelope ID; 81FCC361-F497^EA1-8BED-38D5D0B299E0

WHISPERING PINES II

fFORMERLY: EPPING SENIOUR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIIVHTED PARTNERSHIPS

(PROJECT NO. A199991-046^

SCHEDULES OF SURPLUS CASH

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021

Net loss $ (17,324) $ (13,998)

Add:

Depreciation 17,494 16,421

Expenditures from reserve accounts not capitalized - 29,142

Deduct:

Interest Income from reserve accounts (172) (211)

Required principal p.ayments (6.537) (6,312)

Required payments to replacement feseives (11,850) (10,200)

Add other NHHFA approved items:

Investor services fee 6,120

Cash surplus (deficit) $ (12,269) $ 14,842
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Docusign Envelope ID: 81FCC361-F497-4EA1-8BED-38D5D0B299E0

WHISPERING PINFS II

fFORIVIERkY; EFPINg SENIOUR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP!
fPROJECT NO Aigpam-n^iRi

YEAR-TO-DATE COMPLIATION OF OWNERS" FEE/DISTRIBUTION

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2022 AND 2021

Year

12/31/2001

12/31/2002

12/31/2003

12/31/2004

12/31/2005

12/31/2006

12/31/2007

12/31/2008

12/31/2009

12/31/2010

12/31/2011

12/31/2012

12/31/2013

12/31/2014

12/31/2015

7/31/2016

7/31/2017

7/31/2018

7/31/2019

7/31/2020

7/31/2021

7/31/2022

Maximum

Allowable

Distribution

$  243,855

243,855

243.855

243,855

243,855

243,855

243.855

243,855

243.855

243,855

243,855

243.855

243,855

243,855

243,855

142,249

243,855

243,855

243,855

243,855

243,855

243,855

Distributions

Received

5,895

7,200

6,120

7,200

Balance

$  243,855

487.710

725,670

962,325

1,206,180

1,443.915

1,687,770

1,931,625

2,175,480

2,419,335

2,663,190

2,907,045

3.143,700

3.387,555

3,631,410

3,773,659

4,017,514

4.261,369

4,505,224

4,749,079

4,992,934

5,236,789
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Docusign Envelope ID: 81FCC361-F497-4EA1-8BED-38D5D08299E0

.  J.B. MILETTg MANOR
^FORMERLY: J.B. MILETTF I IMITED PARTNERSHIPS

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JULY 31. 2022 AND 2Q21

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash

Prepaid expenses

Total pun-ant assets

RESTRICTED CASH
Tax escrow

Replacement reserves
Operating reserves

Total restricted cash

PROPERTY

Land

Buildings and improvements

Total property

Less accumulated depreciation

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS

Tenant security deposits

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accbuhts payable

Accrued expenses

. Total current liabilities

LONG TERM LIABILITIES

Dueto affiliate

Mortgage note payable
Tenant security deposits

Total long term liabilities

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

TOTAL LIABILITITES AND NET ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2022

20,017
10,768

30,785

6,556

115,584
70,051

192,191

176,000
1,174.605

1,350,605

185,773

-1.164.832

18,408

3,944
1,105

5,049

119,202
270,000.
18,408

407.610

412,659

993,557

2021

17,999
9,077

27,076

6,552

99,929
70,015

176,496

176,000
1,157,330

1.333i330

153,032

1,180,298

16,746

$ I.WiSlg S 1.400616

2,203
1,081

3,284

49,710

1,170,000
16,763

1.236.473

1,239,757

160,859

$ 1.4Qg.210 ^ i4nnfiiR
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Docusign Envelope ID; 81FCC361-F497-4EA1-8BED-38DSD08299E0

J.B. MILETTE MANOR

(FORMERLY: J.B. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2022 AND 2021

INCOME

Rental income

Interest income

Interest income restricted

Other income

Total income

OPERATING EXPENSES

Administrative
Utilities

Maintenance
General

Total operating expenses

INCOME BEFORE DEPRECIATION AND FORGIVENESS OF DEBT

Depreciation
Forgiveness of debt

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

2022

19'5.796
10

93

985

196,884

74.425
59.878

59,321
37,621

231.445

(34.561)

(32.741)
900,000

832,698

160.859

$  993,557

2021

206,568

15

118

1,527

208,228

53,300
61.643
48,678
34,420

198,041

10,187

(31,755)

(21.568)

182,427

160,859
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Docusign Envelope ID: 81FCC361-F497-4EA1-8BED-38D5D0B299E0

J.B. MILFTTF MANOR

fFQRMERLY: J.B. MILETTF I IMITRD PARTNERSHIPS

SCHEDULES OF RENTAL OPERATIONS EXPENSES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Management fee $ 17,688 $ 17.688
Salaries and wages 42 Q66 27 7m
Fringe benefits lls®® Zll
Legal 4,563 20
Telephone 1,540 1,445
Other administrative expenses 3,623 21813

Total administrative expenses 74,425 53,300

UTILITIES

Electricity 30.929 33,466
Ece' 15.424 14,900
Water and sewer 11,912 11865
Other utility expense i|6i 3 1^412

Total utility expenses 59.878 61.643

MAINTENANCE

Trash removal 2.969 2.862
Snow removal 9.360 /97i
Elevator repairs and,contract 5,789 6 238
Custodial supplies 826 l 'l15
Repairs, materials 33,772 26!o98
Repairs, contract 6.605 41394

Total maintenance expense 59.321 48,678

DEPRECIATION 32741 31755

GENERAL EXPENSE

Real estate taxes 21,938 22 098
Payroll taxes 3^281 2^121
Retirement benefits 2 077 645
Workman's compensation 1I487 1120
Insurance gjoSB 6;436

Total general expense 37.821 34,420

TOTAL RENTAL OPERATIONS EXPENSES $ 264.186 229,796
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Docusign Envelope ID: 81FCC361-F497-4EA1-8BED-38D5D0B299E0

J.B. MILgTTE MANOR

^FORMERLY: J.B. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

SCHEDULES OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2022 AND 2021

SOURCES OF FUNDS:

Rental operations

2022 2021

INCOME

Tenant paid rent
HAP rent sukjsl.dy

$  172,359
23.437

$  186.697
19.871

Total rental receipts 195.796 206,568

Interest Income

Service income
10

985

15

1,527

Total rental operations receipts 196,791 208,110

EXPENSES

AdmlnistraUve
Utilities

Maintenance
General

74,686

60,838
56,276
39,512

52,844

61,643
49,371
34,420

Total rental operations disbursements 231,312 198,278

CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) RENTAL OPERATIONS (34,521) 9,832

OTHER DISBURSEMENTS

Net receipts (payments) from management agent
Net withdrawals (deposits) from reserve accounts
Transfer to tenant security deposit account
Purchase of property

69,492

(15,695)
17

(17,275)

3,876

(15,600)
2

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 2,018 (1,890)

CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR 17,999 19,889

CASH, END OF YEAR $  20,017 $  17.999
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Docusign Envelope ID: 81FCC361-F4974EA1-8BED-38D5D0B299E0

J.B. MILETTE MANOR

(FORMERLY: J.B. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNFRfiHIP^

SCHEDULES OF RESTRICTED CASH RESERVES AND ESCROWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2022 AND 2021

DESCRIPTION OF FUND:

Restncted Accounts:

For the Year Ended July 31. 2022

Operating reserve

Tax escrow

Replacement reserve

Deposits

Balance

Beginning of Funding of
Year Reserves

$  70.015 $

6.552

99,929 15.600

Interest

Earned

Withdrawals

Expenditures

TOTAL RESTRICTED CASH

RESERVES AND ESCROWS $ 176.496 S 15 600 ^

36

4

55

^ 1

Balance

End of

Year

$  70.051

6,556

115.584

$  192,131

For the Year Ended Julv 31. 2021

Operating reserve $ 69.966

Tax escrow 6,548

Replacement reserve 84,264 15,600

49

4

65

$  70.015

6i552

^,929

TOTAL RESTRICTED CASH

RESERVES AND ESCROWS $  160.77g s isfinn 2 ^ ̂ g mm
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Docusign Envelope ID: 81FCC361.F497-4EA1-8BED-38D5D0B299E0

J.B. MILETTE MANOR

/FORMERLY: J.B. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

SCHEDULES OF SURPLUS CASH

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2022 AND 2021

2022

Net income (loss)

Add:

Depreciation

Deduct:

Interest income from reserve accounts

Required payments to replacement reserves

Add other NHHFA approved Items:

Forgiveness of debt Income

Cash deficit

$  832,698

32,741

(93)

(15,600)

(900,000)

2021

$  (21,568)

31,755

(118)

(15,600)

$  (50,254) $ (5,531)
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Docusign Envelope ID; 81FCC361-F497-4EA1-8BED-38D5D0B299E0

SHERBURNEWnnnR

FORMERLY: SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHim
fPROJECT MO HAP PBA ̂01-09.0^

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION'
JULY 31.2022 AND 2021

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

RESTRICTED CASH

Insurance escrow
Tax escrow

Replacement reserves
Operating reserves

Total restricted cash

PROPERTY

Land

Buildings and improvements

Total property

Less accurnulated depreciation

Property, net

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

OTHER ASSETS

Tenanl.security deposits

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of mortgage note payable
Accounts payable
lAccrued expenses

Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities

LONG TERM LIABILITIES

Due to affiliate

Mortgage note payable, less current portion as shown above
Tenant.security deposits

Total long term liabilities

Total liablHties

NET ASSETS VVITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2022

99,295
8,701

107,996

2.761

6,414

207,873
68,049

285,097

21 i ,000
932.700

1,143,700

.99,515

1,044.185

16,261

18,908
29,355

823

11,695

60,781

84,358
832,715
16.261

933.334

994,115

459,424

2021

80.916
7,851

88,767

3,046
6,707

180,572
67,945

258,270

211,000
907:200

1,118,200

75.935

1.042,265

15,517

$ 1.4M.53g S 1.404.819

17,642
2,214

38

19,894

94,862
851,614
15.467

961,943

.981,837

422,982

$ 1.4$3,539 -S 1:404.819
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Docusign Envelope ID; 81FCC361-F497-4EA1-8BEO-38D5D0B299E0

SHERBURNEWOODS

(FORMERLY: SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS
(PROJECT NO. HAP PBA 901-02.0^^

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2022 AND 2021

INCOME

Rental income

Interest income

Interest income restricted

Other income

Total Income;

OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative

Utilities

Maintenance

General

Total operating expenses

INTEREST EXPENSE

INCOME BEFORE DEPREClATlbN

Depreciation

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NETASSETS, END OF YEAR

2022.

267,614
44

435

3,876

271^969

45,122

35.470
76.135
32:936 _

189.663 _

22,284 _

60,022

23.580 _

36,442 -

422.982 _

i  459,424 $

2021

266,018
53

370

3.960

270,401

29,540

34,566
89,353
32,537.

185,996

23,473

60,932

23.580

37,352

385,630

422,982;
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Docusign Envelope ID; 81FCC361-F497-4EA1-8BED-38D5D0B299EO

SHERBURNE WOODS

fFORMERLY: SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

^PROJECT NO. HAP PBA 9Q1.02.Q5^

SCHEDULES OF RENTAL OPERATIONS EXPENSES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Advertising $ 63 $ 25
Management fee 18,000 18,000
Salaries and wages 13,605 1,909
Fnnge benefits 2,476 104
Legal 506 284
Telephone 2,180 2,372
Other administrative expenses 8,292 6,846

Total administrative expenses 45.122 29.540

UTILITIES

Electricity 20,171 20,810
Fuel 9,093 7,886
Water and sewer 5,064 4,339
Other utility expense 1,142 1,531

Total utility expenses 35,470 34,566

MAINTENANCE

Trash removal 3,007 2,789
Snow removal 27,185 28,761
Custodial supplies 396
Repairs, materials 31,512 37,218
Repairs, contract 14.035 ' 20.585

Total maintenance expense 76,135 89,353

INTEREST 22.284 23.473

DEPRECIATION 23.580 23.580

GENERAL EXPENSE

Real estate taxes 25,449 26,926
Payroll taxes 1,041 146
Retirement benefits 50 144

Workman's compensation 701 1.05
Insurance 5,695 5.216

Total genera! expense 32,936 32,537

TOTAL RENTAL OPERATIONS EXPENSES $ 235,527 $ 233,049
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Docusign Envelope ID: 81FCC361-F497-4EA1-8BED-38D5D0B299E0

SHERBURNE wnnns

(FORMERLY; SNHS PEERFIELD ELDERLY HOlJSlNfi i imited partnerships
(PROJECT NO. HAP PBA 901-02.05^

SCHEDULEiS OF,RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2022 AND 2021

SOURCES OF FUNDS:
2022 2021

Rental operations

INCOME

Terianl.paid rent
HAP rent subsidy

$  137,382
141.927

$  123,489
142.529

Total rental receipts 279.309 266,018.

Interest income
Service income

Other Income

44

2,435
1.441

53

2.670
1.290

Total rental operations receipts 283,229 270.031

EXPENSES

Administrative

Utiljlies.
Maintenance

General

Interest

45,102
33,401

75.290

33.759
22.284

29,444

34,566

87.482

32:537
23,473

Total rental operations disbursernents .. 209,836 207:502

CASH PROVIDED BY RENTAL OPERATIONS BEFORE
amortization of MORTGAGE 73.393 .82,529

AMORTIZATION OF MORTGAGE (17.633) (16,445)

CASH PROVIDED BY RENTAL OPERATIONS AFTER DEBT SERVICE 55,760 46,084

OTHER DISBURSEMENTS'

Net receipts (payments) from management agent
Net^wilhdrawals (deposits) from reserve accourits
Transfer tenant security deposits

(-10.504)
(26.827)

(50)

(38,652)
(27,326)

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 18,379 (19.894)

CASH, 'BEGiNNING OF YEAR , 80,916 100,810

CASH. END OF YEAR $  99,295 $  80,916
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Oocusign Envelope ID: 81FCC361-F497-4EA1-8BED-38D5DOB299EO

SHERBURNE WQOnS

(FORMERLY.SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

^PROJECT NQ.HAP PRA Qni.n?.nj^

SCHEDULES OF RESTRICTED CASH RESERVES AND ESCROWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2022 AND 2021

DESCRIPTION OF FUND:

Restricted Accounts:

For the Year Ended July 31. 2022

Operating reserve

Insurance escrow

Tax escrow

Replacement reserve

Deposits

Balance

Beginning of Funding of
Year Reserves

$  67,945

3,046

6.707

180,572

5,230

26,828

27,000

Interest

Earned

104

5

25

301

Withdrawals

Expenditures

TOTAL RESTRICTED CASH

RESERVES AND ESCROWS S 258.270 $ 59.058 £

(5,520)

(27,146)

Balance

End of

Year

68,049

2.761

6,414

207,873

S  /32fifi61 S 285.097

For the Year Ended Julv 31. 2021

Operating reserve

Insurance escrow

Tax escrow

Replacement reserve

67,842 $

3,480

5,927

153,325

5,219

27,749

27,000

103 $ - $ 67,945

7  (5,660) 3,046

13 (26,982) 6,707

247 - 180,572

TOTAL RESTRICTED CASH

RESERVES AND ESCROWS $ 230.574 S 59.968 | 2ZC S ^32.6421 £ 258.270
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Docusign Envelope ID; 81FCC361-F497-4EA1-8BED-38D5D0B299E0

SHERBURNE WOODS

fFORMERLY: SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

(PROJECT NO. HAP PBA 901-02.05^

SCHEDULES OF SURPLUS CASH

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021

Net income 36.442 $ 37.352

Add:

Depreciation 23,580 23,580

Deduct:-

Interest income from reserve accounts

Required prihcipai payments

Required payments to repiacement reserves

(435)

(17,633)

(27,000)

(370)

(16,445)
(27,000)

Surpius cash 14,954 $ 17,117

45



Docusign Envelope ID; 81FCC361-F497-4EA1-8BED-38D5D0B299E0

SHERBURNE WOODS

fFORMERLYiSNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

/PROJECT NQ HAP PBA 901.n2.0fi

YEAR-TO-DATE COMPLIATION OF OWNERS' FEE/DISTRIBUTION

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2022 AND 2021

Year

Maximum

Allowable

Distribution

Distributions

Received Balance

12/31/2003

12/31/2004

12/31/2005

12/31/2006

12/31/2007

12/31/2008

12/31/2009

12/31/20:10

12/31/20,11

12/31/2012

12/3.1/201,3

12/31/2014

12/31/2015

12/31/2016

12/31/2017

7/31/2018

7/31/201?

7/31/2020

7/31/2021

7/31/2022

$  113.850

113,850

113,850

113,850

113,850

113,850

113,850

113,850

113,850

113,850

113,850

113,850

113,850

113,850

113,850

66,413

113,850

113,850

. 113.850
113,850

113,850

227,700

341,550

455,400

569,250

683,100

796,950

910,800

i:!024.650
1,138,500

1,252,350

1,366,200

1,480,050

1,593;900

1,707,750

1,774,163

1,888,013

2,001,863

2,115,713

2,229.563
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Oeeisien EnvMM ID: eiFCC)61-F497-4EA1-a8^-nO9O0e2ME0

SOtHHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. WC. AND AFFII IATP

SCHEDULE OF EXPENOmjRES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2022

Emefoancy Rental Assistance Program
Emergency Rental Assistance Program
Emergency Rental Asdstance Program
Emergency Rental Assistance Program

Total U.S. Department of Treasury

21.023 City of Manchester
21.023 New Hampshire Housing Airthorfty
21.023 Ne^ Hampshire Housirtg Authority
21.023 New Hampshire Housirtg Authority

S-20-MW.33-0001

ERA0012AND ERA0435

ERAE0019

ERA0012ANO ERA0435

FEDERAL GRANTOR/

PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/PROGRAM TFTLE

ASSISTANCE

LISTING

NUMBER

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTOR'S NAMF GRANTOR'S NUMRFR

FEDERAL

EXPENDITURE

U.S. Deoartment of Aarinuthim

Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for
Women. Infants, end Chadren {WIC)

Child and Adult Care Food Program
Food Distribution Cluster

Commodity Si^plemental Food Program
Child Nutrition Cluster

Summer Food Service Program for Children

10.557

10.558

10.565

10.559

State of NH, Department of Heolth & Human Sendees
Stats of NH. Departmeitt of Education

Community Action Program Betkrtap-Wertimack CounOes

State of NH. Department of Education

214NH703W1003

202120Y800544

$ 1.320,366

738.731

27,550

130,817

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture S 2.217.464

U.S. Deoartmont of Houslna and Urban Develooment

Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Section 8 Project-Sased Cluster

Section 8 Moderate Rehabilitation Single Room Occupancy

14.231

14.249

State of NH, DHHS, Bureau of Homeless & Housing E.21-DC-334X)01 s 71,544

552.949

Total U.S. Depertment of Housing and Urtian Development s 824.493

U.S. Deoartment of Labor

W10A Cluster

WlOA Adult Program 17.258 State of NH. Oept of Resources end Economic Development 02-6000618 s 2.208.527

Total U.S. Department of Labor/WlOA Cluster s 2.208.527

U.S. Deoartment nf Educatlr^n

Adult EducaUon • Basic Grants to States

Adult Education - Bosic Grants to States
84.002

84.002

Stats of NH. Department of Education
Stale of NH. Department of Education

67011-ABE Manchester

67011-ABE Portsmouth

$ 64.035

60.310 124.345

Total U.S. Department of Education S 124.345

U.S. Deoartment of TresMtirY

1.654

56.359,262

37.378,952

647.367 94.387.235

94.387.235

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

47



OoOBlon EnvHopa ID: aiFCC361-F4«7-4EA1-e8S>-3aOSO(S2»«EO

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SFRVlCgS. IMC. AMD APOLIATg

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2022

FEDERAL GRANTOR/

PASS-THROUGH GRANTORrt>ROGRAM TfTl F

ASSISTANCE

USTING

NUMBER

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTOR'S NAME GRAffTOR'S NUMBFR

FEDERAL

EXPENDITURE

Coroorstlon for National and Communltv Sarvires

Retired and Senior Volunteer Program 84.002 20SRANH002 S 103.204

Total Corporation for National and Community Services S 103.204

U.S. Deoarfment of Enerov

Weatherization Assistance for Low-Income Persons 81.042 State of NH. Office of Energy & Plarming DE.EE0007935 s 764.316

Total U.S. Department of Ertergy s 784.316

U.S. Deoartment of Health & Human Saivloea

Afllng Cluster
Special Programs for the Aging. Tllle III. Part B.

Grants for Supportive Services and Senior Centers
ARPA-TitIo HI, Part B. Grants for Supportlvo Service

93.044

93.044

Stale of NH. Office of Energy & PlEtnning
Stats of NH. Office of Energy & Planning

18AANHT355

iaAANHT355

S 14.866

8.397 s 23.263

Temporary Asslstartce for tweedy Fomllics
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families

93.558

93.558

Stats of NH. DHHS

Stats of NH. OHHS
IBNHTANF

18NHTANF

669.161

1.521.299 2.190.460

Low Income Home Energy Assistance (Fuel Assistance)
CV-Low Income Home Energy Assistance (Fuel Assistance)
ARPA-Lo^v Irwome Home Ertergy Assistance (Fuel Assistance)
Low Income Home Energy Assistance (BWP)

93.568

93.568

93.566

93.568

State of NH. Office of Energy & Planning
State of NH. Office of Energy & Planning
State of NH. Office of Energy & Planning
State of NH. Office of Energy & Planning

2101NHLIEA & 2101NHL1EA

2(X)1NHE5C3

LIHEAP ARP22 & LIHEAP4JS-DHHS

2101NHLIEA

4.871.686

164.146

7.618.990

658.598 13.313.420

Community Services Block Grant
CV- Community Services Block Grant

93.569

93.569

Stats of NH. DHHS

Slate of NH. DHHS
G-19B1NHC0SR

2001NHCSC3

1.385.732

130.818 1.516.550

Community Services Block Grant - Oiscrelionary 93.570 State of NH. DHHS G-19B1NHC0SR 48,397

Head Start Cluster

Head Start/Earfy Head Start

Early Head Start ChRdcare Partnership
CV-Earfy Head Start
CV-Head Start

ARPA-Head SlarVEarty Head Start

93.600

93.600

93.600

93.600

83.600

01CH01060204

01HP00024101 & 01HP(X)024101C3

01CH01060202C3

01HE0004740101

01HE0004740101

7.015.968.

23.643

4.523

199,278

313.569 7.556,981

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
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SQtmHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AMD AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDfTURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR -mE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2022

FEDERAL GRANTOR/

PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/PROGRAM Tm F

ASSISTANCE

USTING

NUMBER

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTOR'S NAMF GRANTOR'S NIIMRFR

FEDERAL

EXPENDITURE

U.S. Deoartmont of Health & Human Services fcontlniiedl

CCDF Cluster

CIM Care arx) Development Block Grants
CRSSA-Chltd Care and Developmont Block Grants
ARPA-Child Care er^ Development Block Grants
Chad Care Mandatory Matching Funds '

93.575

93.575

93.575

93.596

State of NH, DSSH

State of NH, DSSH

State of NH. DSSH

State of NH. DSSH

2101NHCCDF

2101NHCCDF

2101NHCCDF •

1.386.143

127

60.676

557 701 2.024.647

F>reschool Development Grant Birth through five 93.434 University of New Hampshire 90TP0060 64 665

Total U.S. Department of Health A Human Services '
% 26.738.383

U.S. Deoartment of Homeland Security

Emergency Food and Shelter National Board Program 97.024 Regional United Way Agency $  •. 18.397

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security S 18.397

TOTAL S 127.186.364

S«9 Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

49



Docusign Envelope ID: 81FCC361-F497-4EA1-8BED-38D5D0B299E0

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2022

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of Southern New Hampshire .Services, Inc.
and Affiliate under programs of the federal governrrient for the year ended July
31, 2022. The infornhation in this Schedule is. presented in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a
selected portion of the operations of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and
Affiliate, it is not intended to and does not present the, financial position, changes
in net assets, or cash flows of the Organization.

NOTE 2 SUIVIIVIARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
^contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursertient.

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST RATE

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate has elected not to use the
ten percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 4 SUBRECIPIENTS

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. had no subrecipients for the year ended
July 31, 2022.
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Leone, ,
McDonnell
& Roberts

PROFIuSSiOMASSOClAipN

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

WOLFEBORO • NORTH CONWAY

DOVER'• CONCORD
STiwimi

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN iO^CGRDANCE WITH^VERNME^

AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate

We have audited. In accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the. United States , the combined
financial statements of Southem New .Hampshire Services. Inc. and Affiliate (a New Hampshire
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of July 31, 2022,
and the related statements of activities, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated February 2,
2023.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the combined financial statements, we considered
Southem Nevy Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate's internal control over financial reporting
(internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Southern New Hampshire
Services, Inc. and Affiliate's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Southem New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material rnisstaternent of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected, on a. timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deftciehcy, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in Intemal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material Weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not
Identified.
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Report oh Complrarice and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Southern New Hampshire Services,
Inc. and: Affiliate's combined financial statements are free from material misstatement, we
performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was
not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported" under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the organization's internal control of oh compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

Dover, New Hampshire
February 2, 2023
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Leone, ,
McDonnell
& Roberts

PROFESSIONALASSOCIATION

CKRTIFIED PUBLIC-ACCOUNTANTS

WOLFEBORO • NORTH CONWAY

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH'^^sTi!AmS°'^
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate's compliance with the
types of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the 0MB Compliance
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Southern New Hampshire
Services, Inc. and Affiliate's major federal programs for the year ended July 31, 2022.
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate's major federal programs are identified in
the summary of auditors' results sectipn of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

In our opinion, Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate complied, in all material
respects, with, the types-of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended July 31, 2022.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance, with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America: the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the- United
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part .200,,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform
.Guidance are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report.

We are required to be independent of Southern Nev/ Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate
and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements
relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program.
Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.
and Affiliate's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.
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Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implemehtatioh, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant
agreements applicable to Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate's federal
programs.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud' or error, and
express an opinion on Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate's compliance
based on pur audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards. Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it
would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate's compliance vyith the requiferhents of
each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Government
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess the, risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Southern New Hampshire
Sen/ices, Inc. and Affiliate's compliance with the compliance requiremerils referred to
above arid performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

• Obtain an understanding of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate's
internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.
arid Affiliate's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
rfiatters, the planned scope and timing of the audit arid apy significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses in internal control over compiiance that we identified during the audit.
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Report on Internal Control over Cpmpllance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the norrnal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliahce with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a, combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected," on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over cOrnpliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal Control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a. rpaterial weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed
to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance.. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we Consider to be rnateriaj weaknesses, as defined above. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were
not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion 'is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of intemal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Dover, New Hampshire
February 2, 2023
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2022

SUIVIIVIARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

t. The auditors' report expresses an .unmodified opinion on "whether the combined financial
statements of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate were prepared in
accordance with GAAP.

2, No significant deficiencies disclosed during the audit of the combined financial statements
are reported in the, Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Repofiing and on Cdmpliance and; Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material
weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the combined financial statements of Southern
New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate, which would be required to be reported in,
accordance with Government Auditing Standards were disclosed during the'audit.

.4. No significant deficiencies in iriternal control over major federal award programs are^
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compiiance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Unifprrh Guidance- No 'fnatefjal
weaknesses are reported.

5., The auditors' report ph cpfhpliance fpr the major federal award prograrris for Sputherh New
Hampshire Services', Inc. and Affiliate expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal
programs.

6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR
section 200.516{a).

7. The programs tested as, major programs were: U.S. Department of Health and Human
SeiVices; Head Start, ALN 93.600, Gommuhity Services Block Grant, ALN 9'3.569; and
U.S. Department of Treasury; and Emergency Rental Assistance Program, ALN 21.023;

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $3,000,000.

9. Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate was determined to be a. low-risk
auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS ■ MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2022

There were no findings or questioned costs that were required to be reported in the Schedule
of Findings and Questioned Costs for the year ended July 31, 2021.
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Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.

Board of Directors

May 2023

Senator Lou D'Allesandro, Chairman

Dr. Kevin Moriarty, Vice Chairman

Thomas Mullins, Esq., Treasurer

Orville Kerr, Secretary

Representative Sherm Packard

Commissioner Toni Pappas

James Brown

Molliy Driver

Carrie Marshall Gross

Anna Hamel

Bonnie Henault

Wanda Kennerson

Kathleen Mackin

German Ortiz

Peter Ramsey
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DONNALEE LOZEAU

Community/Civic
Involvement- Current

• NH Community Action Partnership

• HB4Cliff Effect Working Group,

Co-chair

• Governor's Office for Emergency

Relief and Recovery Stakeholders
Advisory Board, Chair

• Whole Family Approach to Jobs NH
Chapter, Co-chair

• St. Joseph Hospital Board of
Directors, Quality Council Chair

• St. Mary's Bank Supervisory

Committee, Chair

• NH Healthy Families Board of

Directors

• Mary's House Advisory Board

• The Plus Company

• NH Tomorrow Leadership Council

• Community College Systerri of NH s

• American Council of Young Political

Leaders, Alumni Member

• State Workforce Innovation Board

Community/Civie

Involvement- Past

• Reaching Higher NH

• NH Center for Public Policies

Studies

• Governor's Judicial Selection

Commission •

• Big Brothers Big Sisters Board of
Directors, Past President

• Greater Nashua Dental Connection

BOD, Founding Member

• Great American Downtown,

Founding Member

• Domestic Violence Coordinating

Council Nashua

• US Conference of Mayors

• No Labels

• Fix the Debt

• NH Center for Public Policy Studies

• Greater Nashua Chamber of

Commerce, Director

• Greater Nashua Workforce

Housing Coalition, Founding

Member

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (www.SNHS.org)
Manchester, NH (January 2016-Present}

Chief Executive Officer

• Development and oversight of Community Action Partnership serving
NH's two largest counties, Hillsborough and Rockingham

• Cooperation and engagement with local, state and federal agencies and
organizations on issues and programs that intersect with the
Community Action Mission

• Work to fundamentally enhance the delivery of service to targeted
community to wrap services around clients and streamline the

application process by implementing the Whole Family Approach
\

City of Nashua, New Hampshire (2008-2016) - Elected

Mayor

• Full time overall day to day management and operations of 2nd largest
city in the state of NH with development and implementation of ̂ 245
million dollar (2016) annual budget

• Worked with elected boards including Board of Aldermen; Public
Works; Board of Education and others to prioritize and balance budget
requirements and the needs of the community

• Chaired Board of Public Works and the Finance Committee

• Successfully negotiated the City's purchase of the publicly traded
water company (Pennichuck) after a prolonged case before the NHPUC
and the NH Supreme Court

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (1993 - 2008) Manchester, NH

Director of Program and Community Development
• Assessed the need for services throughout Hillsborough County

through community outreach by developing partnerships,
collaborations and new initiatives with service providers and
businesses

• Negotiated purchases and contracts and presented projects before
local boards, commissions and departments relative to housing,
support services and economic development

• Designed and implemented strategies for developing working
relationships with town and city officials, local service providers and
appropriate private sector officials in order to project a positive image
of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.

• Founded Mary's House 40 units of housing for homeless women and
developed 219 units of Elderly Housing

• Pioneered initiatives for the Community Corrections and Academy
Programs

• Expanded Head Start Services and developed the program and secured
the site for Economic Opportunity Center
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Past Corrimunity/CMc

Involvement Continued

• Greater Nashua Asset Building

Coalition, Founding Member

• New Hampshire Charitable

Foundation State Board,

Member

• Eagle Board of Review

Education and Training

• CCAP, Certified Community
Action Professional

• CCAP Proctor

• Rivier College, Nashua-

Undergraduate work in Political

Science

• Restaurant Management

Institute

• Mediation and Alternative

Dispute Resolution Training

• Leadership Institute, Aspen

• Justice of the Peace

NH State Representative, Hillsborough County, District 30
(1984-2000)-Elected

Deputy Speaker of the NH House of Representatives

(1996 - 2000)

• Addressed constituent concerns

• Assisted Non-profit organizations and local businesses with governmental
concerns and steering legislation through the political process by working with
members and leadership in the NH House of Representatives and the NH
Senate and representatives of the Executive and Judicial branches

• Managed floor debates and supervised House Calendar content

• Responsible for functions of the House on behalf of or in the absence of the
Speaker

Committee Assignments:

• House Rules Committee, Vice Chairman

• House Legislative Administration Committee

• Joint Facilities Committee

• New Member Orientation, Chair

• House Corrections and Criminal Justice Committee, Vice Chairman

• House Judiciary Committee

• Criminal Justice Sub-Committee, Chairman

• State and Federal Relations Committee

Appointments:

• Joint Legislative Performance Audit and Oversight Committee

• Juvenile Justice Commission, Chairman

• Supreme Court Guardian Ad Litem Committee

• Superior Court Alternative Dispute Resolution Committee

• Work Force Opportunity Council

• Interbranch Criminal and Juvenile Justice Council

■  Subcommittee on Offenders, Chairman
■  Space and Prison Programming
■  Juveniles Subcommittee, Co-Chair

• National Conference of State Legislatures Law and Justice. Vice Chair

• Council of State Governments Intergovernmental Affairs, Corrections and
Public Safety

City Streets Restaurant, (1986-1991)

City Streets Diner, (2000 - 2003) Nashua, NH Co-Ow/ner/Operator

• Operated 450 seat restaurant and banquet facility and effectively managed
financial accounts, staff and licensing requirements
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■RYAN I
CLOUTHIER

a

OBJECTIVE
Seeking n leadership role which wnll allow me ihe opportunily to uiilizc and build upon my knowledge and
passion for the work performed by Community Action Agencies in tlie slate of New Hampshire, while at the
same time being the support and strength for the Comnuinilics we scitc.

m EXPERIENCE
Chief Operating Officerl Southern New Hampshire Services Inc.
FEB. 2018-PRESENT
Serving as part of the Executive Management Team and is responsible for providing inspiring leadership to tiie
Soulhem New Hampshire Services (SNHS) senior management team and developing a performance culture to
ensure the cfTectivc management of a comprehensive array of over sixty programs, 'llic Chief Operating Officer
will tie the various component programs including; nutrition; housing; energy; woricforee development; income
enhancement; education; and elderly services to the agency, to each other, and to the general community, by
promoting and cominunicating the mission of Community Action. In conjunction with the Chief Executive
Officer and Fiscal Offtccr the Chief Operating OfTiccr provides the stewardship of SNHS by being actively
involved with the agency's high-performance senior leadership team in die development, implementation, and
management of the program content as well as annual budgets. Responsible for ensuring Uiat services iuid
programs provided fulfill the agency's mission, and are in compliance with all federal, stale, funding, and city
regulations, certifications, and licensing requirements.
Encrg>' and Housing Operations Director [ Southern New Hampshire Services Inc.
2016-2018
Responsible for providing the various SNHS Energy and Crisis programs. Information Technology, Housing and
Maintenance programs with mission, vision and leadership. Responsible for the planning, implementation, and
evaluation of all facets of fiscal and program management, effectiveness while providing general oversight for all
of the program's administration and day-to-day management, including budget management, grant wilting and
purcliasing. Also responsible for maintaining a woricing relationship with governmental officials, local boards
and agencies in developing and managing the programs. In conjunction with tlicExccutivc Director and Fiscal
Officer this positions provides the stewanjship of SNHS by being actively involved witli the agency's high-
perfonnance senior leadership team in the development, implemenlation. and numagement of program content us
well as annual budgets. Responsible for ensuring tliat .services and programs provided fulfill the agency's
mission and are in compliaticc with all federal, slate, funding, city, certifications, and licensing requirements.
Energy Director | Southern New Hamp.shire Services Inc.
2013-2016
Responsible for coordination, implementation, budgeting, overall supervision and management of the Fuel and
Electric Assistance Program.s, Crisis Programs, Wcalherization Program, l^ead Hazard Control Program, and
YoulliBuild Program for Hillsborough and Rockinglinm Counties. Develop and Maintain relationships with
federal, state and local grantors. Intervene on behalf of the Community Action pertaining to the Core Utility
Weatherization Energy EfEcicncy Programs. Maintains a strong working relationships with OCA, NH Ixgal
Assistance, OlTlce of Strategic Initiative, DOE, Eibcily Utilities, Eversourcc, NHEC, Unitil, NHHFA, NREL,
Apprise and other local non-profit and private compaiiic.s in the industry, Participates in multiple Mcallhy Home
strategic planning committees.

Weatherization Director | Southern New Hampshire Services Inc.
2006-2013
Responsible for coordination, implementation, budgeting, overall supervision and management of llic
Weatherization, I.^d Abatement, and YoulhBuild Programs for Hillsborough and Rockingham Counties.
Developed and Maintain relationships with federal, slate and local grantors. Intervened on behalf of the
Community Action Association during the merge of Liberty Energy and National Grid Gas along with fi lings
pertaining to the Core Energy Efficiency Programs. Developed strong working relationships with OCA, NH
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Legal Assistance, Office of Energy and Planning, DOE, Liberty Energy, Evcrsource, NHEC, Unitil, NHHFA,
NREL, Apprisc'and oilier local non-profit and private companies in die industry. Scn'cd on the Department of
Energy special task force designed to implement a National Best Practices Manual for JTA/KSA for
Weatherization Energy Auditor Certification. Participated in a "One Touch" pilot effort which became a
statewide practice and has received national recognition

Energy Auditor | Southern New Hampshire Services Inc.
201)4 - 2006

Responsible for performing field energy audits of low income residential properties; record the data in written
and computerized fomiats to determine cost effectiveness of conservation measures needed; generate work order
specs for the contractors. Conduct proper follow through and field inspections to assuie quality installations and
client satisfaction.

Nct>vork Analyst | Gcnuitv
2004-2006

Responsible for monitoring the Genuity Dial up network supporting AOL Domestic and Intcmational subscribers
including Japan, USA and Canada. Responsibilities include isolating and Iroublcsltooting problems/outages and
configuration issues, on dilTcrent types of Cisco routers, Lucent APX's, MAX's, and Nortel CVX's,
Troubleshooting consists of isolating problems through head to head testing with dilTcrent Telco's. Also
responsible for creating, troubleshooting, and closing tickets in a group ticketing queue. Demonstrated strengths
in the areas of interpersonal skills and negotiation.

EDUCATION

2000 NH Community Technical College
1994-1998: Dover High School
Other Weatherization written and field certification. Department of Energy Quality Control Inspector
Certification, tnultiple national and regional weatherization best practices trainings. Intro to Cisco routers, T1 and
T3 design and troubleshooting training, ATM and Frame Relay network design training, I^N and WAN
training, 0C3, OC48, and OC192 design and troubleshooting training, BFl Energy Analyst. l.x:ad contractor
abatement Certification, RRl' certification, OSHA 30 hour worker safety, DOE Lead Safe Weatherization
certification.

SKILLS

Pioblcm solving

New Business Development

Social Media

l*ublic Speaking

Data Analysis/Analytical thinking
Strategic Planning

Operations Management

Contract Negotiations

Team and Relationship building

Planning and forecasting

Budget and Financial management

Leadership

Community Assessment

Cotnputer skills specific to job include,
TREAT, NEAT, O'lTER, FAP/EAP

Microsoft 365, PowerPoint, Outlook,

Word, Excel, Web, EmpowORand CSST
and many others that can be beneficial.

ACTIVITIES/ACCOMPLISHIVIENTS
•  Numerous press articles related to Weatherization including visits from the Assistant Secretary of Energy

Efficiency from the Department of Energy and Vice President Joe Biden.
Member of the City of Nashua Healthy Homes Strategic Planning Committee.
Member of the City of Manchester Healthy Homes Strategic Planning Committee.
Union Leader 40 under 40 Class of 2015.

Vice President of the Neighbor helping Neighbor Board,
Member of the Energy EITicicncy and Sustainable Energy Boai d.

Member of tlic Residential Ratepayers Advisory Board.
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JAMES M. CHAISSGN

SUMMARY

Dedicated accounting professional with.Siyears.bf hdh-pfofif experience.and over 20 years of broad
experience in manufacturing, distribution, feorgariizations, rhergers and acquisitions, saiies/operations
planning/fpreca^ing and establishing & nibriitbfihg performance metrics in a manufacturing environrtieht.
Experienced in private and public corporations, includirig 8'years in a private equity enylronment-with a strong
focus on equity sponsor communication and liquidity management. Complete knowledge of P&L, balance
sheet, cashflow and cost accounting. Proven skills at staff leadership, training and development in a tearn
environment: Professional Experience:

•  Fiscal Officer in nonproflt.organization

•  Controller in MFG & Distribution

•  Treasury and Cash Flow Managenient

•  Financial & Capital Budgeting, Reporting & Control
•  Cost Accounting;Manager

•  General Accounting Manager

•  Business Performance Metric Establishment and Measurement

PROFESSIOrsiAL EXPEIRENCE

Southern New Hampshire Services; Manchester, NH 5/2009-Preserit
Southern New Hariipshife'Seh/ices (SNHS) is'a non-profit entity dedicated to helping people help thernselves;
SNHS accomplishes this through a variety of programs offered at-centers, offices, clinics, and intake sights
located throughout Rockingham and Hillsboro.ugh counties. The agency also oversees'29 housing facilities
with approxipiately lOOp'tenants. SNHS receives and administers $36 mijlion in program .funds annually with
over 450 ernployees.

Chief Fiscal Officer 1/2017 to Present
Oversee financi'al and accounting cdmpliahce, maintaining controls and managing potential business
risks

• Manage the annual budget process and .analysis activities
•  Prepare presentation for Board of Directors rneetings presenting the organization's financial results
•  Develop and'maintain banking relatidnships
•  Manage the Annual Audit process

Senior Accountant 5/2009-1/2017
Assisted Fiscal Director in overseeing alj f|sca| and financial activities Including compliance with federal, state,
and funding-source requirernents as well.as accordance,with GAAP

•  Developed and implernented indirect cost calculation and interfaced with General Ledger
• Monitored and prepared monthly budget vs actual reporting; recommended adjustments and forecast

spending

®  Created specialized reports for the individual grant's reporting requirements
Designed allocation niethods for prop^erly biliing shared items to individual grants and pfogfams

•  Prepared hnonthlyiagency prograrn reviews for Fiscal Director's Board of Dire^ors review
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James M; Chaisson

WOOD STRUCTURES, INC. BIddeford, ME 2001-4/2009
WSI, is a highly leveraged business bwhed by Rbark Capital, a private equity fund„headquartered in Atlanta,
GA. WSI is^a $70 mlilibh manufacturer of roof arid floor trusses, wall panels and a dlstr-ibutor 'of engineered
wood products. The company's pfoductsafe sold Into the residential and light cortirriercial cdristructioh
rharkets

Controller 2006-4/2009
Managed all aspe^ of accounting and reporting In a truss manufacturing plantas well as an engineefed vyoo.d
products dlirtributipn [o_catipn.that included 2 locations in Maine and 1 In Massachusetts:

•  Calculated and assisted in the management of the compan/s covenants
• Worke'd closely with senior management during the sale proGess froni the.seller (Harbour Grdup) and

buyer'(R6ark Capital)

•  Identified cost dnyersiand Implemented process changes to reduce the monthly closing-cycle from 18
to 5 days

•  Conducted monthly reviews .with the manager's on financial results and measurement

•  Oversaw the payroll furictio'n of 160+ employees.

Accounting Manager 2001-2006

Recruited to cpmpariy to restore financial controls arid establish best practices concerning both general ledger
.and cost accouriting.process.es, Responsible ,for Overseeing the accouriting of ,2 locations in Maine and 1 in
Alabama.

•  Established the repbrting prbtdcpls of the compatiy used by both equity sponsors
•  Educated, mdtlvated.and developed a staff df 3"to succeed in their r'dlls of finaiiclal responsibility
•  Identified and Implemented processes and procedures for all intercompany sales,:transfers,

consolidation a.nd ejlrriinations

•  Streamlined the payrpli process that.lnclLided transferring to an. external SMPpJ.ier (ADP), which reduced
cost by 40%

•  Conducted:physical Iriventofies and defined their policies and procedure at all locations.

VISHAV SPRAGUE, Sanford, ME 1978.2001
Vishay Sprague Is a division of Vishay !,ntertechrip|ogy jnc. (NYSELVSH),a,global rnanufacturer of discrete
serTjIconductprs-andipassive ele.ctrorilc components. The Sprague Division manufactures.solld taritalum
capacitors"with annual sales of $2'pp. million and l;40p employees.

Plant Cost Accounting Manager 1997-2001

Division General Accounting Manager 1995-1997

Division doeration Accountant 1989-1995 •
Division' Fixed Assist A'tcountdnt 1987-1989
Master Enaiheerina'Technidan 1984-1987

Lead Production Technidan 1978-1984

EDUCATION

NASS.ON COLLEGER, Sprih'gvale, ME

B'.S' ih Business Administfatibn-



Oocusign Envelope ID: 81FCC361-F497-4EA1^BED-38D5D0B299E0

NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name:

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. d/b/a Community Action
Partnership Hillsborough and Rockingham Counties

NAME JOB TITLE

ANNUAL

AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

ANNUAL

SALARY

Donnalee Lozeau CEO $0 $  233,760.00

Ryan Clouthier COO $0 $158,940.00

James Chaisson CFO $0 $175,011.00



Lorl A. Weaver

Comtnlssioncr

Karen E. Hcbert

Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271.9474 1-800-852-3345 ExU 9474

Fax: 603-271-4230 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 wmv.dhhs.nh.gov

September 9, 2024

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council ' ,

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic Stability, to
enter Into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Southern New Hampshire
Services, Inc. (VC# 177198),"Manchester, NH to continue assisting families in securing high
quality child care by expanding technical assistance to child care providers, by exercising a
contract renewal option by increasing the price limitation by $2,539,269 from $1,300,000 to
$3,839,269 and extending the completion date from September 30, 2024 to September 30. 2025,
effective October 1,2024, upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 28, 2023, item #19

. Funds are available In State Fiscal Year 2025 and are anticipated to be available in State
Fiscal Year 2028, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating
budget, with the authority to adjust budget line Items within the price limitation and encumbrances
between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-421110-29780000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, CHILD DEVELOPMENT, CHILD CARE DVLP-
QUALITY ASSURE

State

Fiscal

Year ,

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2024 074-500589

Grants for

Pub Assist

and Reli

42117709 $960,000 $0 $960,000

2025 074-500589

Grants for

Pub Assist

and Reli

42117709 $340,000 $947,000 $1,287,000

2026 074-500589

Grants for

Pub Assist

and Reli

42117709 $0 $568,454 $568,454

Subtotal $1,300,000 $1,515,454 $2,815,454

The Department of Health and Human Seruicet' Miesion is to join commimilies and families

in providing opportunities for citizens to oelUave health and independence.
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05-95-42-421110-29770000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, CHILD DEVELOPMENT, CHILD DEVELOPMENT
PROGRAM-100% Federal Funds

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

2025 536-500377
Employment

Related

Child Care

42117709 $0 $1,023,815 $1,023,816

Subtotal $0 $1,023,815 $1,023,815

Total $1,300,000 $2,539,269 $3,839,269

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because MOP 150 requires all amendments to agreements
originally approved as sole source to be identified as sole source. The Contractor holds the
affiliate/branding agreement with the nationally recognized Child Care Aware of America. As such.
Child Care Aware of New Hampshire has access to extensive support services for the state to
provide resources and referral services, staff training, family outreach supports, child, care
provider professional development, and extensive data and research activities from the national
level. The affiliation links the New Hampshire child care community, and particularly families

.seeking child care,"with a nationally recognized and reliable organization. Furthermore,- the
Contractor holds the licensing and management contracts for the Teacher Education and
Compensation Helps (T.E.A.C.H.) and Department of Labor Apprenticeship programs, which are
essential parts of the plan to increase the child care workforce.

The purpose of this request Is for the Contractor to continue assisting families in securing
high quality child care and provide technical assistance, but now with a greater focus on region-
specific support, to child care providers. The Contractor will ensure child care providers who serve
children with special social, emotional and health care needs have access to expert consultant
services in their region. As part of the regional focus, the Contractor will work with both healthcare
and mental health professionals to support the increased capacity of child care programs to meet
the unique needs of these special populations. This regional focus will ensure services are
designed to meet the needs of the regions.

Approximately 2,700 families will be served by accessing child cbre resource and referral
services. Approximately 3,000 child care providers >wil! receive training, of which approximately
850 child care providers will receive training and technical assistance.

The Department will monitor services by meeting with the Ctontractor and ensuring the
performance measures in the contract are met.

As referenced, in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions, Section 1., the
original agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to two (2) additional
years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the
parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew
services for one (1) of the two (2) years available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, families, in need of child care
may not be able to access resource and referral services needed to locate and research high-
quality providers In or near the communities In which they work and live, and child care providers
may not have expert consulting support needed to provide high-quality services to children with
special social, emotional and health care neeBs. Without these services, the Department will be
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out of compliance with the Child Care and Development Fund Federal Plan and additional
requirements of the Child Care and Development Block Grant Act.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.596 FAIN #2401NHCCDF.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

U/0

Lori A. Weaver

Commissioner
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State of. New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Resource and Referral for NH Child Care Facilities contract is by and between
the State of New 'Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.("State" or "Department") and
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract"), approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 28, 2023 (Item #19), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified In the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; .and

WHEREAS; pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council: and

NOWTHEREFORE,,ln.conslderallon of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract arid set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

V

1. Form P-37 Generaf Provisions, Block 1,7, Completion Date, to read:

September 30, 2025

2. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1';8, Price Limitation, to read:

.$3,839,269

3. Modify Exhibit B, Scope "of Services, by replacing it. in its .entirety with Exhibit 8-Amendment #1,
Scope of Services, which is. attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

4.-. .WodifyExhibltC,.Paym8ritTerms; Section 1.1.,toread:

1.1. . 58% Federal funds. Child Care and Development Block Grant, as awarded on October 28,
2022, by the DHHS: Administration for' Children and Families, CFDA 93.575, FAIN
2301NHeCDD.

1.2. 42% Federal funds, Child Care and Development Block Grant, as awarded on September*
30, 2023, by the DHHS: Administration for Children and Families, Child Care and
DevelopmentFund, 93.596, FAIN 2401NHCGDF. '

5. Modify Exhibit C,- Payrnent Terms, Section 3,, to read:

3. Payment shall be-on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures Incurred In the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line Items, as
specified in Exhibits C-1 Budget Sheet through G-6 Budget Sheet, and through Exhibit C-
4, Budget Sheet - Amendmeht #1 through Exhibit C^9, Budget Sheet - Amendment #1 .

6. Modify Exhibit e-4, Budget Sheet, by replacing It in its entirety with Exhibit C^, Budget Sheet -
Amendment #1, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

.  7. Modify Exhibit C-5, Budget Sheet by replacing It In its entirety with Exhibit C'-5, Budget Sheet -
Amendment#!, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

8.> Modify Exhibit G-6 Budget Sheet, by .replacing it its entirety with Exhibit C-6, Budget Sheet -
Artiendment #1, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

9. Add Exhibit C-7, Budget Sheet - Amendment #1, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

10. Add Exhibit C-8, Budget Sheet - Amendment #1. which is attached hereto and Incorporated by
.reference herein. •'

11. Add Exhibit C-S, Budget Sheet - Amendment #1 ̂ which is attached hereto" arid incorporated by
reference herein. ■

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. A-S-1,3 - Contractorlnitlals

SS-2024-DES-03-CHILD-0.1-A01 . 9/U/2024.
Page 1 of 3 ' • Date

v7.12;23
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain In full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective October 1, 2024, upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

9/11/2024

Date

DoeuSlgned by;

BMoaecoiwMie,.

Name: Karen Hebert

Title: . . .
Division Director

Southern NewHampshire Services, Inc.

9/11/2024

Date Name: oonnalee Lozeau
Title: chief Executive officer

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.

SS-2024-DES-OiCHILD-01-A01

V. 7.12.23

A.S.1.3

Page 2 of 3

Contractor Initials
a
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DocuSlQMd by.

9/11/2024

748734M4W J4eo...

Date Name:'^®''^"
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY"OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Southern New Hampshire. Services, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials

SS-2024.DES-03.CHILD-01-A01 Date 9/11/2024
Page 3 of 3

V. 7.12.23
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New Hampshire department of Health and Human Services
Resource and Referral for NH Child Care Facilities

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. ■ The Contractor must, provide a statewide centralized network for child care related
services to current, and prospective licensed and license-exempt child care providers
as Identified in 1.2., to assist providers in building capacity and improving the quality of
and access to child care. Centralized network services Include, but are not limited to;

1.1..1. Academic Scholarships and Apprenticeships to the child care workforce.

1.1.2. Assisting ;child care providers and designated staff to create and update their
.user profile and all related program' Information within New Hampshire
Connections Information System: www.hh-connections.brg (NHGIS).

1.1.3. Child Care Resource and Referral Services.

1.1.4. Early Childhood Assessments for-Granite Steps for Quality Programs!

1.1.5. Trainlng,,Technical Assistance, and Coaching.

1.2. For the purpose of this Agreement, all references to licensed and license-exempt child
care providers (CCP) mean:

1.2.1. A llcensed centerVbased or home-based child care program as deflned.by New
Hampshire Administrative Ruie He-C 4002, Child Care Licensing Rules, that
serve children In any age group frorn six (6) weeks through'twelve (12) years
of age; or

1.2.2. Are license-exempt in accordance with New Hampshire Revised Statutes
Annotated (RSA) 170-E:3, 1 (a), (c),.(f), (g), and (h).

■  1:3. The Contractor must provide services Monday through Friday from 8:00 AM to 5:00
PM. Meetings and referrals, referenced herein must also be provided during non-
traditiorial business, hours, which Include, but are not limited to a minimum of one (1)
night per week, and a minimum of one (1) Saturday per month. ...

1.4. The Contractor must ensure statewide services are provided twelve (12)'months a year
with no breaks in seiVibes.

1.5. Child Care Resource andiReferral Services.-TheContractormust provide a network
of child care resource and.referral (CCR&R) services to assist individuals and families
seeking to secure licensed arid license-exempt child care (Includlrig summer„camps
with aohlld cafe component and Head Start and Early Start programs) for childreri from
birth through age 12. CCR&R services Include, 'but are not limited to;

1.5.1. Providing virtual or In-person meetings to referrals for families Seeking or In
need of child care.

1.5.2. Providing customized referrals to families requiring specialized services
including but not limited to children who have a disability, an emotional and/br
behavioral need, special, health - care needs, reside in an underserved
community, or who need- non-tradltlbnal hours of care.

1.5.3. Providing customized referrals .that consider the unique needs of the family and
child, and the unique aspects of the child care, prograrti, including r^Bshg

[di
SS-2024-DES-03-CHIl.D'01«A01 S-2.0 Contractor Initials ^

Southern New Hampshire,Sehrfces, Inc. Page 1 of 19
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Resource and Referral for NH Child Care Facilities

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

children to programs demonstrating high performance levels in .quality as
-  ̂ evidenced by: GSQ level, NAEYC Accr^itation-, Strengthening Families

endorsements, or quality Indicators such, as curriculum, developmental
screenings, primary caregiving in infant/toddler care, etc.

1.5.4. Providing virtual or in-person meetings and referrals -with businesses.
•  employers, human resource Departments, and community leaders to support

child care needs.'

1.5.5. Responding to inquiries by email, telephone, and in-person.

1.5.6. Supporting families and employers in accessing services online through NH
Connections: www:nh?connections:orQ.

1.6. The Contractor must follow up with clients within thirty (30) calendar days after an initial
.referral is received, using one (1) or more of the methods below v^rfiich include, but are
not limited to:

\

1.6.1. A satisfaction and outcome-survey.via!

1.6.1.1. Hard copy, via email or-USPS.

■  1.6.1.2. 'NHCIS..
•'J

1.6.1.3. Survey Monkey or similar tool,

1.6.1.4. Telephone contact. '

i .7. The Contractor must enter all information concerning follow-up attempts and completed'
surveys Into NHCIS and provide quarterly reports to the Department.

1.8. . The Contractor must ensure CCR&R services are provided statewide, specifically by
region, in-.accordance with regions as identified in Exhibit B-1 - Child Care Access &
Regional Systems Coordination.

1.8.1. Region 1 (Greater Monadnock, Greater Sullivan & Upper County):
Mbnadnock United Way.

.  1.8.2. Region2-(Capital Area); Granite United Way.

1.8.3. Region 3-(Greater Nashua): United Way of Greater Nashua.

1.8.4. Region 4-(Greater DerrySc Manchester): Amoskeag Health.

1.8:5. Region 5 - (Central NH, Lakes): Granite United Way.

T.8.6.. Region 6 - (Strafford County .& Seacoast): Granite United Way/United Way of
the Greater Seacoast.

1.8.7. Region 7 - (North Country & Carroll County): Children Unlimited.

1.9. The' Contractor must provide region-specific designated staff persons to serve as
Regional Area Representative for each region. At the request of the Department, all
Regional Area Representatives must work effectively and cooperatively with
Department approved partners. The Regional Area Representative must provide in-
person technldal.assistance ajs needed to child care programs at a minimum every two.,
(2) weeks- The Contractor is not required to have an office in each region and Regional

SS-2024-DES-03-CHIt;D-01-A01 B-2.0 Contractor InlllBis

Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc. Page 2 of 19 Dat^^^72024
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New Hampshire Department of Health arid Human Services
Resource and Referral for NH Child Care Facilities

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

Area Representatives may be assigned to more than one (1) region with prior approval
by the Department.

1.10. The Contractor must provide a ceritral office with a designated statewide Resource and.
Referral Manager to supervise and support the Regional Area Representatives and
ensure consistent and uninterrupted, year-round [tweIye-(12)-months a year] resource

. and referral services across all regions.

1;.11. The Contractor must ensure services, specific to each region, include, but are not
limited to:

1.11.1. A monthly rrieeting. with the Eaiiy Childhood Regional Lead as described in
Section 1.8. Each Region is assigned an early childhood professional.ldentified
as a Regional Lead to Identify strengths- arid needs of the early childhood
systems within their prospective regions.

1.11.2. A minimum of two (2) monthly documented outreach efforts, including in ,
person, email, and/or phone calls, to all Child Care Development Fund (CCDF)
enrolled child care programs In the designated reglor) as-described in Section
1.8.,;to update program Information iri NHCIS:

1.11.3. Developing arid maintaining a working relationship with NHEPand Department
■j staff in each District Office to include, providing statevirlde CCR&R service to

families who. may or may not be receiving assistance or services from the
NHEP or other programs within the Department. .

-1.11.4. Maintairiirig comprehensive knowledge and docurnenting needs of the regions
including, but not limited to:

111:4.1. Children with.disabilities.

1.11.4.2. Current child care supply and capacity. ■
1.11.4.3. Current child care.stafflng levels.
1.11.4.4. Employment.by sector.
1.11.4.5. Family and community support services, agencies -and non-profits

to maximize child wre resource services.

1.11.4.6. Housing supply and need. ^ . '
1.11.4.7. Language, ethnic and culture diversity.
1.11.4.8. Legislative representation, city, and town officials.

"1.11.4.9. Local ordinances as they relate to child care.
, 111.4.10. Major employers.

1114.11 Socio-economics of the region.
111.4.12. • Major challenges,, strengths, and.weaknesses.
1114.13. McKinney-Vento Liaison (https://www.educatlon.nh.gov/who-we- ■

are/division-of-learner-support/bureau-of-instructional-
support/eihcy). -

1.1.14.14. School district structure and leadership.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Resource and Referral for NH Child Care Facilities

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

1.11.4.15. Unmet child care needs.

1.11.5. Participation In a minimum of one (1) scheduled monthly regional activity,
meeting and/or event impacting child care, Head Start, and/or families.

1.11.6. Provide an "introduction to CCR&R Services" at New Hampshire Employment
Program (NHEP) orientations, Family Resource Center workshops and at the
locations as requested by the Department, during traditional and non-
traditional business hours.

1.12. The Contractor must ensure all staff are familiar with and can explain how families
access the NH Child Care Scholarship Program {https://www.nh-
connections.org/famIlies/child-care-scholarship/) and other related assistance
programs (https://nheasy.nh.gov/#/).

1.13. The Contractor must ensure that services provided to families and CCP are culturally
competent and responsive and include, but are not limited to:

1.13.1. Ensuring all staff are trained annually In cultural competence.

1.13.2. Possessing knowledge and have an understanding of the cultural variations
across the state to individualize services when necessary to meet the needs of
each region (see Exhibit B-1 - Child Care Access & Regional Systems
Coordination).

1.13.3. Providing translation and interpretation services, in accordance to the selected
Vendors Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Senrices (CLAS)
Requirements.

1.13.4. Providing video remote option(s) for American Sign Language.

1.13.5. Marketing and Outreach.

1.14. The Contractor must provide, promote, and market linguistically and culturally
responsive CCR&R services statewide, regionally, and locally to families, providers,
businesses and community members In accordance with the Statement of Work and
Department-approved marketing guidelines. Marketing materials include, but are not
limited to:

1.14.1. Brochures.

1.14.2. Display posters.

1.14.3. Flyers.

1.14.4. Other marketing tools and material as requested and approved by the
Department.

1.14.5. Promotional merchandise.

1.15. The Contractor must disseminate Department-provided and/or Department-approved
Informational videos, websites, regional marketing materials and Information to
promote public awareness, through various means Include, but are not limited to:

1.15.1. 211 NH.

1.15.2. Local hospitals, including prenatal classes.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Resource and Referral for NH Child Care Facilities

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

1.15.3. Child health support services and workplace success programs.

1.15.4. Churches.

1.15.5. Community action agencies, (including Head Start).

1.15.6. Community boards.

1.15.7. Community events

1.15.8. Department district offices.

1.15.9. Early intervention programs.

1.15.10. Family Resource Centers.

1.15.11. Fuel assistance offices.

1.15.12. Grocery stores.

1.15.13. Health clubs.

1.15.14. Libraries.

1.15.15. Local retailers and businesses.

1.15.16. Malls.

1.15.17. NHEP offices and partner meetings.

1.15.18. Pediatrician, obstetric and general practitioner offices.

1.15.19. Realtors.

1.15.20. Restaurants.

1.15.21. School districts and local community colleges.

1.15.22. Women, Infants and Children's program (WIC).

1.16. The Contractor must receive approval from the Department to ensure marketing aligns
with the Department's branding and marketing guidelines.

■  1.17. The Contractor must ensure District Offices and Family Resource Center addresses
and contact information are provided to families, employers and CCP's as requested.

1.18. The Contractor must conduct regionally specific marketing and outreach to families,
employers and CCPs, including live informational presentations as requested.
Presentation locations include DHHS District Offices, identified at:
https://www.dhhs.nh.gov/about-dhhs/iocations-facilities. and at Family Resource
Centers, identified at: https://www.fsnh.org/. and other agreed-upon locations.

1.19. The Contractor must provide current information regarding CCR&R services to the
Department for publishing on New Hampshire Connections: www.nh-connectlons.org
and the Contractor's website: https://v7ww.snhs.org/servjces/chlld-care-aware.

1.20. The Contractor may, in accordance with this contract, the Department's guidelines and
with Department approval, maintain their own social media accounts to promote
resource and referral services. Social media posts should promote Department
Initiatives, including offerings from other vendors and state agencies as approoriate.
Social media posts can be a combination of promotional,.educational, and fun Jd
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EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

they are professional in nature and reflective of high quality and deveiopmentaily
appropriate practices and philosophies. Posts and social media content are subject to
Department rnonitoring and approval. .

1.21. The Contractor must actively monitor various sul^pages of social media sites (for
example the ECE Leaders page) to answer posted questions, provide technical
assistance, and promote Department efforts.

1.22. The Contractor must, as applicable, make connections with McKinney-Vento Liaisons,
to identify children who may not be school age, but require child care services, as well
as school age children who are in need of before/after school care. Connections may
be made through the Director of. the Office of Homeless Education at the NH
Department of Education, and will minimally include Information about Child Care
Resource and Referral and the services-they provide. Tracking of all activity Is required.

1.23. The Contractor must maintain current relationships and collaborations with other
agencies and organizations to maximize child care resource services.

1.24. The Contractor must provide a specific marketing plan, in conjunction with the
Department, to promote awareness of CCR&R professional development activities for
child care programs and providers. The marketing plan must include, but is not limited
to:

1.24.1. Maintaining, on a daily basis or as needed, an up-to-date training calendar on
NHCiS and NH Connections with Information and registration links to relevant
trainings that are not offered/funded by the Department.

1.24.2. • Promoting training and technical assistance opportunities using Constant
Contact, Regional Leads, and similar tools.

1.25. The Contractor must participate in committees or councils as appropriate or requested
by the Department based on the priorities of the strategic plan. Examples of such
committees include, but are not limited to:

1.25.1. Bureau of Child Development and Head Start Collaboration State Leadership
Team.

1.25.2. Granite Steps for Quality (GSQ) Advisory Committee GSQ Advisory
Committee - NH Connections fnh-connections.oralPvramid Model State.

1.25.3. Leadership Team: The National Center for Pyramid Model Innovations - Child
Care Aware of NH (nh-connections.orQ).

1.25.4. NH Early Learning Standards Revision Committee: The NH Early Learning
Standards - Child Care Aware of NH % fnh-connections.orQy

1.25.5. Out-df-School Time & Early Childhood Education Credential revision:
Credentialing - Child Care Aware of NH (nh-connections.orq).

1.26. Training - The Contractor must provide training opportunities in person and virtually to
CCPs In collaboration and as requested and by the Department. Trainings must::

1.26.1. Comply With Child Care Licensing and Federal Office of Child Care training
requirements.

—08

%
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Resource and Referral for NH Child Care Facilities

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

1.26.2. Be delivered at a local, regional, and stateNwide level to include both In person
and virtual options.

1.26.3. Include a variety of evidence-based adult learning principles.

1.26.4. Be offered at times convenient for workforce including weekend and evening
options.

1.26.5. Be posted on NHCIS with prior approval by the Department's training office.

1.26.6. Reflect and support statewide initiatives, Department projects, and the
priorities of the Department's strategic plan, as often as is possible and
appropriate.

1.26.7. Be updated on a schedule as required by the Department's training office or
ongoing as needed.

1.27. The Contractor must have qualified training staff who meet the specific qualifications
described In the New Hampshire Early Childhood Professional Development System
(Revised 2022). These qualifications may be waived,,on a case-by-case basis only
when a written request is approved by the Department.

1.28. The Contractor must coordinate with the Department's training office to obtain approval
for trainings added to the Online Training Calendar In NHCIS and NH Connections to
create local, regional, and statewide training opportunities so that participants can
register online for trainings.

1.29. The Contractor must provide Child Care Basics Trainings, or comparable foundational
level trainings to be approved by the Department.

1.30. The Contractor must offer other workshops on a statewide level, which must include
health and safety training in addition to the health and safety trainings available on
ProSolutions: httDs;//www.nh-connections.ora/Drovlders/health-and-safetv-traininQs/
as requested by the Department using data on gaps and needs.

1.31. The Contractor must provide training on business best practices for operating child care
programs in applying best practices:
https://www.chlldcareaware.orQ/Drovlders/oDenina-runnlnQ-chlld-care-
center/op^ratinq-chiid-care-center-proQram-practices/.

1.32. The Contractor must provide training, on how to create individualized professional
development plans designed to increase teacher competency and retention using PD
plan templates based on New Hampshire's specialized competencies, as is required
forcredentialing.

1.33. The Contractor must provide training on how to implement the NH Early Learning
Standards: The NH Earlv Learning Standards - Child Care Aware of NH % fnh-
connections.ora). The training and technical assistance provided will delivered as
specified below:

1.33.1. Flexible to allow for the unique accommodations of children and families;

1.33.2. Developmentally appropriate for each age group; and
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Resource and Referral for NH Child Care Facilities

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

1.34. To support and reflect the philosophy of the CCPs, the Contractor must provide a
• monthly orientation on enrolling and/or renewing as a New Hampshire Child Care
Scholarship Provider. Orientation includes but is not limited to:

1.34.1. Application process.

1.34.2. Agreements.

1.34.3. Background checks.

1.34.4. Health and safety requirements.

'1.34.6. Marketing.

1.34.6. Monitoring requirements.

1.34.7. Programming.

1.34.8. Transitloning as a license-exempt provider to a licensed provider.

.1.34.9. Wefchbliling.

1.35. The Contractor must support child care programs with the implementation of Granite
Steps for Quality activities, including but not limited to providing trainings, technical
assistance, and coaching for any pathway or Step level.

1.36. The Contractor must create and provide trainings to recruit and enroll CCPs in the GSQ
system, Child Care Scholarship program. Professional Development System, and NH
Connections Information System.

1.37."Technical Assistance - The Contractor must provide specialized and qualified
technical assistance program staff who meet the qualifications set forth in the NH Early
Childhood Professional Development Guidebook (Revised 2022), to administer on-site
technical assistance activities to potential and current licensed and licensed exempt
CCP, as requested and required .by the Department. These qualifications may be
waived, on a case-by-case basis only when a written request is approved by the
Department.

1.38. The Contractor must provide specialized and region-specific technical assistance
program staff to work with the Department to support CCPs.. At the request of the
Department, all technical assistance program staff must work effectively and
cooperatively with Department approved collaborators. Technical assistance program,
staff must provide support in the following areas:

1.38.1. Child care licensing and license-exempt certification and renewals.

1.38.2. Child care licensing rules and background check process.

1.38.3. Child care management.

1.38.4. Child Care Scholarship Program enrollment and renewal.

1.38.5. Care for children with disabilities.

1.38.6. Care for children with special health care needs, including emotional and
behavioral needs.

1.38.7. Credentialing and associated components including Professional A''|^"ty
Units, Specialized Competencies, individualized Professional Devej^j^ nt
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Resource and Referral for NH Child Care Facilities

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

Plans, and how to leverage this work toward licensing requirements, annual
performance evaluations, and enrollment in the GSQ system.

1.38.8. Cultural competency.

1.38.9. Developmentally Appropriate Practice.

1.38.10. Emergency Preparedness plan based on the Incident Command System, and
in completing a written Continuity of Operations Plan (COOP)
(httDs://wv>rw.nh-connections.ora/Droviders/continuitv-of-operations-plan-
coopA

1.38.11.-Environment Rating Scales.

1.38.12. Family.child care GSQ.

1.38.13. Infant and Toddler care.

1.38.14. NHCIS (https://www.nh-connections.org/provlders/nh-connectlons-
information-system/).

1.39. The Contractor must provide technical assistance and Practice Based Coaching to
CCPs to assist them In meeting the requirements of the GSQ system fhttDs://www.nh-
connections.orQ/providers/aualitv-care-matters/) including the Pyramid Model Pathway
and Environment Rating Scales Pathway.

1.40. The Contractor must subcontract with Environment Rating Scale (ERS) Assessors and
coaches to provide, assessments and on-going coaching to CCP participating in the
GSQ system.

1.41. The Contractor must work with the Department to establish CCP GSQ cohorts to guide
and direct CCPs through the GSQ readiness process, including but not limited to;

1.41.1. Creating supplemental materials that support CCP In participating in the GSQ
system Including, but not limited to:

1.41.1.1. Materials, flyers, and checklists.

1.41.1.2. Prerequisite documents.

1.41.1.3. GSQ Pathway options and standards.

1.41.2. On-going coaching and program assessments as requested by CCP and/or
the Department.

1.41.3. Orientation and readiness meetings.

1.41.4. Recruitment efforts to join GSQ system.

1.42. The Contractor must provide technical assistance to CCPs to meet the requirements
and apply for New Hampshire Early Childhood Professional Credentials
(https://www.nh-connections.orQ/providers/credentialinQ/) arid all Professional
Development Pathway Initiatives.

1.43. The Contractor must provide technical assistance on how to write child care program
policies. These policies may include, but are not limited to,' inclusion policies and health
and safety policies.

n
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1.44. The Contractor must provide technical assistance and track frequency and duration of
services to providers to expand program capacity, with an emphasis on unmet child
care needs statewide, Including, but not lirnited to:

1.44.1. Infants and toddlers.

1.44.2. Children with disabilities and special health care needs.

'1.44.3. Children needing care during non-traditional hours

1.44.4. Underserved geographical locations and populations.

1.45. Professional Development System Incentives and Recognition - The Contractor
must provide, coordinate, and fund the Annual Celebration for. Early Childhood
Professionals; and collaborate with the Department on the planning and
•implementation of the event.

1.46. The Contractor must survey all participants after the Annual Celebration for Early
Childhood Professionals and provide feedback to the Department by no laterthan three
(3) months after the event.

1.46.1. the Contractor must market and provide technical assistance and outreach
for the Annual Credential Challenge.

1.46.2. The Contractor must provide Professional Development System Anniversary
Recognition Incentives to the child care workforce for credential
achievements including the Gwen and Henry Morgan Award, as directed by
the Department's training office.

1.47. Academic Scholarships - The Contractor must provide a Teacher Education And
Compensation Helps (T.E.A.C.H.) counselor and must create, promote and market the
T.E:A.C.H. NH Early Childhood Scholarship Program, which will focus on the need for
awell-qualified, fairly compensated and stable workforce.

1.48. The Contractor must prioritize T.E.A.C.H. NH T.E.A.C.H. Earlv Childhood® NH Child
Care Aware of NH fnh-connections.ora^. for early childhood programs and teachers
who care for and teach infants and/or toddlers.

1.49. The Contractor must develop an infrastructure which includes, but Is not limited to:

1.49.1. Creating and establishing a streamlined service delivery system that promotes
efficiencies and maximizes resources within a!) the Child Care Resource and
Referral (CCR&R) activities, which include, but are not limited to:

1.49.1.1. Sharing the CCR&R email distribution list.

1.49.1.2. Promoting T.E.A.C.H. NH opportunities at CCR&R meetings and
trainings.

1.49.1.3. Marketing the T.E.A.C.H. NH Program at early childhood
stakeholder meetings and events.

1.49.2. Creating and establishing a T.E.A.C.H. NH Advisory Committee under the
guidance and expertise of the National Center to Include NH early childhood
stakeholders.

SS-2024-DES.03-CHILD^1.A01. B-2.0 Contractor Initials
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Resource and Referral for NH Child Care Facilities
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1.49.3. Creating and Implementing outreach'and marketing resources to all early
childhood programs, Including center-based and family child care, with a focus
on infant/toddler programs and infant/toddler.professionals, in order to promote
T.E.A.C.H. NH.

.1.49.4. Establlshirig and maintaining relationships between the T.E.A.C.H. NH
program staff and the T.E.A.C.H. National Center'In order to adhere to and
embrace the T.E.A.C.H. core values and principles.

1.49.5. Providing scholarships and stipends to T.E.A.C.H. NH recipients.

1.49.6. Providing support and mentoring for T.E.A.C.H. NH recipients In their efforts to
obtain a Child Development Associate credential (CDA). Child Development
Associate Credential Child Care Aware of NH fnh-connections.ora). leading to

.  an Associate's Degree, or an Associate's Degree in Early Childhood
Education.

1.49.7. Providing support and mentoring for T.E.A.C.H. NH sponsors (participating NH
Early Childhood/Child Care Programs).

1.49.8. Providing T.E.A.C.H. NH staff with the necessary resources and supports to
assist in the facilitation of this project as outlined by the National Center to
include specific •• technology, integration, professional development and
technical assistance.

1.60. The Contractor must provide scholarships, stipends, support and mentoring to a
minimum of fifty (50) T.E.A.C.H. NH recipients annually, with priority being given to
individuals working in infant and or toddler classrooms in early care/child care

■programs.

1.51. The Contractor must provide a United States Department of Labor (DOL)
Appreriticeship; ECAP-2-8-21 .pdf fnh-connections.orQT program coordinator and must
administer the DOL Apprenticeship Program - Early Childhood Education and
Teaching Preschool Teacher (COP Code13.1210) pursuant to the criteria and timeline
established by the NH Early Childhood Impact Project/Career Pathways Strategy
Group;

1.51.1. Southern New Hampshire Services and the United States Department of Labor
Early Childhood Apprenticeship Program (ECAP) is a training opportunity for
individuals employed in the early childhood field and is designed to combine
classroom instruction and work experience to enhance the quality of care for
children while increasing the apprentice's skill level and wages. The goal of
ECAP is for individuals to obtain the credential required to work as a teacher
in a state licensed child care center, increasing the supply of skilled
professionals and the delivery of high quality early education. This ECAP will
be coordinated and administered by the Contractor.

1.52. The Contractor must recruit a minimum of ten (10) apprentices for the " DOL
Apprenticeship Program.

1.53. The Contractor must ensure DOL enrollment priority is given to individuals committed
to working with Infants and/or toddlers in early care/child care programs

SS-2024'-DES-0S-CHILD-01-A01 B-2.0 Contractor Initials
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1.54. The Contractor must coordinate efforts with the Department and document all contact
attempts to OOP's to maintain the CCR&R functions in NHCIS, including but not limited
to:

1.54.1. Assisting OCRs in populating and updating program specific data and OOP
staff demographics In the professional registry.

1.54.2. Conducting a bi-annual update survey of all OOP program information.

1.54.3. Documenting all COR&R, Training and. Technical Assistance activities.

1.54.4. Requesting changes and deletion of records.

1.55. The Contractor rnust submit a final Annual Performance Report to the Department no
later than July 15l!i 2025.

1.56. The Contractor must maintain detailed supporting documentation for the required
Anriual Performance Reports, which must be available to the Department for review
upon request and must be retained for up to seven (7) years of the contract completion
date.

1.57. The Contractor may be required to provide other reports, data and metrics, not collected
and stored in NHCiS, to the Department in a format and on a date specified by the
Department.

1.55. The Contractor must participate in meetings with the Department on a monthly basis,
or as otherwise requested by .the Department.

lt.59. 'The Gbhtfaetor must:iSubGOhtract with: Departmeht■Tap^rdved'sdbc6htractQ'rs^at the'
request'ofthe' DepartmeritI

1.60. Performance Measures

1.60.1. The Department will apply the following measures to assist In monitoring the
Contractor's performance by demonstrating:
1.60.1.1. Eighty percent (80%) of CCP will update program information In

NHCiS bi-annuaily.

1.60.1.2. Eighty five percent (85%) of CCP enrolled in Child Care Scholarship
will demonstrate compliance and renew on time.

1.60.1.3. Eighty five percent (85%) of the child care workforce working in Child
Care Scholarship will have completed required training prior to the
renewal of the program in Child Care Scholarship.

1.60.1.4. Thirty five percent (35%) of all licensed and licensed exempt
programs enrolled in Child Care Scholarship CCPs that receive a
licensing violation during program inspections will have engaged in
an on-site technical assistance visit.

1.60.1.5. A minimum often percent (10%) of the contract funds are dedicated
to infant and toddler activities.

1.61. Background Checks

1.61.1. Prior to permitting any individual to provide services under this Agreem®"*j,3*he
Contractor must ensure that said individual has undergone:

SS-2024'DES-03-CHILD-01-A01 6*2.0 Contractor Ir^tials ^
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1.61.1.1. A criminal background check, at the Contractor's expense, and has
no convictions for crimes that represent evidence of behavior that
could endanger individuals served under this Agreement and

1.61.1.2. A name search of the Department's Division for Children, Youth and
Families (DCYF) Central Registry pursuant to RSA 169-C:35, with
results indicating no evidence of behavior that could endanger
individuals served under this Agreement.

1.62. Privacy Impact Assessment

1.62.1. Upon request, the Contractor must allow and assist the Department in
conducting a Privacy Impact Assessment (PIA) of its
system(s)/appiication(s)/web ■ portal(s)/website(s) or Department
system(s)/appIication(s)/web portai(s)/website(s) hosted by the Contractor, if
Personally identifiable Information (Pii) is collected, used, accessed, shared,
or stored. To conduct the PIA the Contractor must provide the Department
access to applicable systems and documentation sufficient to allow the
Department to assess, at minimum, the following;

1.62.1.1. How PII Is gathered and stored;

1.62.1.2. Who will have access to PII;

1.62.1.3. How Pi! will be used in the system;.

1.62.1.4. How individual consent will be achieved and revoked; and

1.62.1.5. Privacy practices.

1.62.2. The Department may conduct follow-up PIAs in the event there are either
significant process changes or new technologies impacting the collection,
processing or storage of PH.

1.63. Department Owned Devices, Systems and Network Usage

1.63.1. Contractor End Users authorized by the Department's Information Security
Office to use a Department issued device (e.g. computer, tablet, mobile
telephone) or access the Department network in the fulfillment of this
Agreement must:

1.63.1.1. Sign and abide by applicable Department and New Hampshire
Department of Information Technology (NH DolT) use agreements,
palicies. standards, procedures and guidelines, and complete
applicable trainings as required.

1.63.1.2. Use the information that they have permission to access solely for
conducting official Department business and agree that ail other use'
or access is strictly forbidden including, but not limited, to personal
or other private and non-Department use, and that at no time must
they access or attempt to access Information without having the
express authority of the Department to do so.

Southern Nev/ Hampshire Services. Inc. Page 13 of 19
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EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

1.63.1.3. Not access or attempt to access information in a manner
inconsistent with the approved policies, procedures, and/or
agreement relating to system entry/access.

1.63.1.4. Not copy, share, distribute, sub-iicense, modify, reverse engineer.'
rent, or sell software licensed, developed, or being evaluated by the
Department, and at all times must use utmost care to protect and
keep such software strictly confidential in accordance with the
license or any other agreement executed by the Department.

1.63.1.5. Only use equipment, software, or subscription(s) authorized by the
Department's Information Security Office or designee.

1.63.1.6. .Not install non-standard software on any Department equipment
unless authorized by the Department's Information Security Office
or designee.

1.63.1.7. Agree that email and other electronic communication messages
created, sent, and received on a Department-issued email system
are the property of the Department of New Hampshire and to be
used for business purposes only. Email is defined as "internal email

• systems" or "Department-funded email systems."

1.63.1.8. Agree that use of email, must follow Department and NH DolT'
policies, standards, and/or guidelines; and

1.63.1.9. Agree when utilizing the Department's email system:

1.63.1.9.1. To only use a Department email address assigned
to them with a affiliate.DHHS.NH.Gov."

1.83.1.9.2. To include in the signature lines information
identifying the End User as a non-Department
workforce member.

1.63.1.9.3. To ensure the following confidentiality notice is
embedded underneath the signature line:

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This message may contain
information that is privileged and confidential and is intended
only for the use of the individual(s) to whom it is addressed. If
you receive this message in error, please notify the sender
immediately and delete this electronic message and any
attachments from your system. Thank you for your cooperation."

1.63.1.10.Contractor End Users with a Department issued email, access or
potential access to Confidential Data, and/or a workspace in a
Department buiiding/facliity, must:

1.63.1.10.1. Complete the Department's Annual Information
Security & Compliance Awareness Training prior to
accessing, viewing, handling, hearing, or
transmitting Department Data or Confidential Data.

-DS

(I
Soulhorn New HampsKre Services. Inc. Page 14 of 19
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Resource and Referral for NH Child Care Facilities

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

1.63.1.11.Sign the Department's Business Use and Confidentiality Agreement
and Asset Use Agreement, and the NH DolT Department wide
Computer Use Agreement upon execution of the Contract and
annually throughout the Contract term.

1.63.1.12. Agree End User's will only access the Department' intranet to view
the Department's Policies and Procedures and Information Security
webpages.

1.63.1.13. Agree, if any End User is found to be in violation of any of the above-
Department terms and conditions of the Contract, said End User
may face removal from the Contract, and/pr criminal and/or civil
prosecution, if the act constitutes a violation of law.

1.63.1.14.Agrees to notify the Department a minimum of three business days
prior to any upcoming transfers or terminations of End Users who
possess Department credentials and/or badges or who have system
privileges. If End Users who possess Department credentials and/or
badges or who have system privileges resign or are dismissed
without advance notice, the Contractor agrees to notify the
Department's Information Security Office or designee immediately.

1.63.2. Workspace.Requirement

1.63.2.1. If applicable, the Department will work with Contractor to determine
requirements for providing necessary workspace and State
equipment for Its End Users.

1.'64. Contract End-of-Life Transition Services

1.64.1. General Requirements

1.64.1.1. If applicable, upon termination or expiration of the Contract the
Parties agree to cooperate in good faith to effectuate a smooth
secure transition of the Services from the Contractor to the
Department and, if applicable, the Contractor engaged by the
Department to assume the Services previously performed by the
Contractor for this section the new Contractor must be known as
"Recipient"). Ninety (90) days prior to the end-of-the contract or
unless otheiwse specified by the Department, the Contractor must
begin working with the Department and if applicable, the new

.  Recipient to develop a Data Transition Plan (DTP), The Department
must provide the DTP template to the Contractor.

1.64.1.2. The Contractor must use reasonable efforts to assist the Recipient,
in connection with the transition from the performance of Services
by the Contractor and its End Users to the performance of such
Services. This may include assistance with the secure transfer of
records (electronic and hard copy), transition of historical data
(electronic and-hard copy), the transition of any such Service from
the hardware, software, network and telecommunications equipment
and internet-related information technology infrastructure ("Internal

■ IT Systems") of Contractor to the Internal IT Systems of the

SS-2024-DES-03-CH1LD-01-A01 B-2.0 Contractor Initials _ "
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EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

and cooperation with and assistance to any third-party consultants
engaged by Recipient in connection with the Transition Services.

1.64;1.3. If a system, database, hardware, software, and/or software licenses
(Tools) was purchased or created to manage, track, and/or store
Department Data in relationship to this contract said Tools will be
inventoried and returned to the Department, along with the inventory
document, once transition of Department Data is complete.

1.64.1.4. The internal planning of the Transition'Services by the Contractor
and its End Users must be provided to the Department and if
applicable the Recipient in a timely manner. Any such Transition
Services must be deemed to be Services for purposes of this
Contract.

1.64.1.5. Should the data Transition extend beyond the end of the Contract,
the Contractor agrees that the Contract information Security
Requirements, and If applicable, the Department's Business
Associate Agreement terms and conditions remain in effect until the.
Data Transition is accepted as complete by the Department.

.  1.64.1.6. In the event where the Contractor has comingied Department Data
and the destruction or Transition of said data is not feasible,- the
Department and Contractor will jointly evaluate regulatory and
professional standards for retention requirements prior to
destruction, refer to the terms and conditions of Exhibit K: DHHS
Information Security Requirements.

1.64.2. Completion of Transition Services

1.64.2.1. Each service or Transition phase must be deemed completed (and
the Transition process finalized) at the end of 15 business days after
the product, resulting from the Service, is delivered to the
Department and/or the Recipient in accordance with the mutually
agreed upon Transition plan, unless within said 15 business day
term the Contractor notifies the Department of an issue requiring
additional time to corriplete said product.

1.64.2.2. Once all parties agree the data has been migrated the Contractor
• will have 30 days to destroy the data per the terms and conditions of

Exhibit K: DHHS Information Security Requirements.

1.64.3. Disagreement over Transition Services Results

1.64.3.1. In the event the Department is not satisfied with the results of the
Transition Service, the Department must notify the Contractor, by
email, stating the reason for the lack of satisfaction within 15
business days of the final product or at any time during the data
Transition process. The Parties must discuss the actions to be taken
to resolve the disagreement or Issue. If an agreement is not reached,
at any time the Department must be entitled to initiate actions in
accordance with the Contract.

>—DS

(j.
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EXHIBIT 8 - Amendment #1

1.65. Website and Social Media

1.65.1. The Contractor must work with the Department to ensure that any social media
or website designed, created, or managed on behalf of the Department meets
aii Department and NH DoiT website and social media requirements and
policies.

1.65.2! The Contractor agrees Personally Identifiable information (Pii), or other
• Confidential Information solicited either by social media or the website that is

maintained, stored or captured rhust not be further disclosed unless expressly
provided in the Contract. The solicitation or disclosure of ,Pil, or other
Confidential Information is subject to Exhibit K: Department Information

. Security Requirements and Exhibit I: DHHS Business Associate Agreement
and aii applicable Department and federal law, rules, and agreements. Unless
specifically required by the Contract and unless clear notice is provided to
users of the website or social media, the Contractor agrees that site visitation
must not be tracked, disclosed or used for website or social media analytics or
marketing.

1.65.3. State of New Hampshire's Website Copyright

1.65.3.1. Ail right, title and interest In the State WWW site, iriciuding copyright
to aii Data and information, must remain with the State of New
Hampshire. The State of New Hampshire must also retain all right,
title and interest in any user interfaces and computer instnjctions
embedded within the WWW pages. All WWW pages and ariy other
Data or information must, where applicable, display the State of New
Hampshire's copyright.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor must use and disclose Protected Health information in compliance with
the Standards for Privacy of individually identifiable Health Information (Privacy Rule)
(45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health insurance Portability and Accountability
Act (HiPAA) of 1996, and in accordance with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate
Agreement, which has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor must manage ail confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

2.3. the Contractor must comply with ail Exhibits D through K, which are attached hereto
and Incorporated by reference herein.

3. Additional Terms

3.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

3.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal legislation or
court orders may have an Impact on the Services described herein, the State
has the right to rnodify Service priorities and expenditure requirements under
this Agreement to achieve compliance therewith.

3.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate
Programs and Services -OS

. a
SS-2024-DES-03-CHILD-01-A01 B-2.0 Contractor Initials
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EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

3.2.1. The Contractor must subrnit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement Effective
Date, a detailed description of the communication access and language
assistance services to be provided to ensure meaningful access to programs
and/or services to Individuals with limited English proficiency; Individuals who
are deafer have hearing loss; individuals who are blind or have low vision; and
individuals who have speech challenges.

3.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

3.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials
prepared during or resulting from the performance of the sen/ices of the
Agreement must include the following statement, "The preparation of this
(report, document etc.) was financed under an Contract with the State of New
Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services,, with funds provided in
part by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were
available or required, e.g., the United States Department- of Health and Human
Services."

3.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement must have prior
approval from the Department before printing, production, distribution or use.

3.3.3. The Department must retain copyright ownership for any and all original
materials produced, including but-not limited to:

3.3.3.1. Brochures.

3.3.3.2. Resource directories.

3.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

3.3.3.4. Posters.

3.3.3.5. Reports.

3.3.4. The Contractor must not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

4. Records

4.1. . The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to:

4.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data evidencing
and reflecting all costs and other expenses Incurred by the Contractor in the
performance of the Contract, and all income received or collected by the
Contractor.

4.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and
practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and expenses,
and which are acceptable to the Department, and to.include, without limitation,
all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as purchase
requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories,
valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records
requested or required by the Department.

4.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, an« Qf

[a
SS-2024.DES^D3'CHILD-01-A01 B-2.0 Cdnlraclof Inilials

SouJhem New Hampshire Services. Inc. Page 18 of 19



Docusign Envelope ID: 7D8D40FD-DD0(MA69-98BC-337B7A76ACF6

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Resource and Referral for NH Child Care Facilities
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their designated representatives must have access to ^11 reports and records
maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and
transcripts.

4.3. If, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department must disallow any
expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder. the Department retains the
right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to
recover such sums from the Contractor.

y—OS

Pi
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BT-1.0 Ediibil C-4. Bud9«l ShMt • Amf nilni«nl 01 SS^4^E$-OM:H8XM)1-A01

New HampsMn

Contractor N«m«:

Budget Requett for

Budget Portod

Indiroct Cott Rate (If tppllcabia]

Department of Health ond Human Services

$ouO>om Now Hompshln Soivicos

Pesource and Roferral for NH ChM Care

July 1, 2024 Ihrough Juno 30, 2025 (SPY 25)

10.40%

.."Prpgrahi CoBt-Fu(i'dMby DHHS ' ,

1. S^arv&Waoes

$847,000

2. Frinoe Benefits

$280,000

3. CoDsuttants

$221,000

4. Equ^xnent
Mfrvcf coat tit emel b» ifflltd to a^ipoiwii ce*is par 7 CPR
TOO. 1 etid /^mo^xrvio TCFHTOO.

$10,000

5.(a) Supplies - EduMtional

;$io.bpp

5.(b) Supplies-Lab so

S.(c) Supplies • Pharmacy $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical so

S.(e) Supplies OfTtcs $15,000

8. Travel

S5o;ooo

7. Scjftware - SO

B. fal Other - Marketino/Communicatlona

$25,500

8. fbl Other - Education and Treinina

SaS.MO

8. (c) Other - Other fsoedN bdov/l

Occupancy

>?8.275

Cefebref/on .  . $25,600

Provi/dw Ineanlfvos $2,000

. OOterfolaososDaclM :. .. • . SO

9. Subrecloient Contracts SO

Total Olracl Costs $1,568,775

Total Indirect Costs
$142,040

TOTAL $1,710,815

%

9/10/2014

Poge 1 el I
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BT-1.0 Btfiibh C-5. Budget Sheet -Afnendment 01 S$*2024-0£S-03-CHILO-01-A01

Now Hampshi

Contractor Namo;

Budget Request for:

Budget Period

Indirect Cost Rate {If applicable]

re Department of Health and Human Services

Soufhem Now HampsNro Sotvices

QOL Approntkeship

July 1.2024 through Juno 30, 2026 (SFY 25}

o

6

,  'i' ■■^''■'l^i^fam'Cbst'-Funded;^ '

1. Saiarv&Waoes S34.000

2. Frinoe Benefits
S17.000

3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment
Mftad CMt nV* camX be eppDetf Id oq^pmonl coctj per 2 CFA 200.1 and
AeofKSxr/lo2CPf(200.

■  SO

5. {0) Supplies - Educational $0
&.(b) SuDolles • Lob to
5.(0} Supplies • Pharmacy SO
5.(d) 'Supplies • Medical SO
5.(e) Supplies Office

SI ,000

6. Travel •
$1,500

7. Software •  • " - SO
8. (a) Other r Maricetina/(iommunlcatiorw '  ' . • . .$0

8. (b) Other • Education and Tralnina
-  S4.00b

8- fct Otfier ■ Other (specify below)

Moraor Sfloends $10,000

MisceSaneovs SI.382

Olhar (olaosa soeafVJ SO
Ofher (ofoBsa soacitv) $0

9. Subredpient Ccntracls $0

Total Direct Costs S68.B62

' Total Indirect Costs ^  S8,138

TOTAL $75,000

(a [a
9/10/2024
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BT-1.0 Erfiibit C-6. Budget Sheet - Amendment
SS-2024-DES-03-CHIL(W1-A01

New Hampsht

Contractor Nama

Budget Roqueat for

Budget Pcrlot

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable]

e Department of Health and Human Services

Soulhern Now HampsNre Services

TEACHNH

Jvly 1. 2024 through June 30,2024 (SFY 25)

10.40%

1. Salary &Waaes
$58,000

2. Frinoe Benefits
$24,050

3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment
InHriKt cost nlo cmnot b« $pfiM to ogu^pmonr costs par 2 CPA 200.1 and
AoMrtdf/ZV/o 2 CP A 200

$0

5.(8) Sui}0(ies - Educational
$0

5.(b) Supplies > Lab
SO

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy
SO

5.(d) Supplies - Medical
,  SO

5.(e) Supplies Office
$1,000

8. Travel
$2,000

7. Software •  • . SO

8. fa) Other - Markelirio/Communlcations

so

8. (bj Other - Education and Trainlna
S3i500

8. (c) Other - Other fsoecify below)

Llcensbo/Ccnsullations $6,500

SchtiarshiDs/SuDDOfls.. -  ' 1 $422,273

..Other (oleaso soedfy)
SO

Other (oJease smcIM. • .  • ' so

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs S515;323

Total Indirect Costs $9,677

TOTAL $525,000

Page l o( 1

9/10/2024
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BT-1.0 Exhbtl C-r. Budget Sheet • Amendment 0t
SS-2024<0ES-CI3-CHILO-Ot-AO1

Now Hampshir

ContnetorNafflO

Qudgot Request for

Budget Porlod

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable

0 Department of Health and Human Services

Southern Now HampsNro Services

• Resource and dofarrel hr NH Child Can

July 1. 202S through Saplambor 30, 2025 (SFY 26}

10.40%

''"ft', . '.^Vy/.vV' ' '
;• i-'Pro^iw Cost •Fuhdeg-byDHHS ' ' '.;i

t; Salary &Waofts

$211,750

2. Frinoe Benefits
$70,000

3. Consultanta

$55,250

4. Equipment
htSreef ootl /at* caniM b« sppOetffo cquipmtnt tons per 2 CAR
200.1 endAopenOii ta 2 Cfft 200.

.SO

S.(a) Supplies • Educatior\al

•  $2,500

S.(b} Supplies-Lab SO
5.(c] Supplies • Pharmacy so
5.(d) Supplies • Medical -so
S.(a) Supplies Office

S3.750

6. Travel
$12,500

7.. Software SO

0. (a> Other - Markotlno/CofnmunicoUons

$6,375

B. (b) Other • Education and Trainlna

$11,250

0. fc> Other - Other fspec'rN below)

Occuptincv

$9:569

'Cefd^f/6n •' "  • $0

Pro^derlncorit/ifes : - . • ■ $0
Other /please soedM ■ •  . ... - . .. -SO

9. Subrecloient Contracts so

Total Direct Costs $302,944

Total indirect Costa
$35,610

TOTAL $410,454

{%
9/10/2074
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BT.1.0 Btfiibh C-«. Budget Sheet -Amendment SS-2024-DES-O3-CHtLCM)1-A01

Now Hampshi

Contractor Name:

Budget Roquest for

Dudgot Period

Indirect Cost Rato (if applicable]

re Dopartmortt of Heattfi and Human Services

Southern Nev/ Hampshin Services

DOi AppnnHcosNp

July 1. 2025 through September 30. 202S (SPY 20)
10.40%

'  .'.ir,:,-:. -.i.;!,;;'' Program Cost,-Furided,by]OHHS/'>'i'''!t!M?

1. Salary BWeocs se.500

2.. Frinao Bonofrts

S4,250

3. Consultants SO

4. Equipment
Mlnel cost nto eorvtof bo appStd lo ooulpmeni costs por 2 CFR 200.1 amS.
AooendixlVto2CFR200.

SO

5.(a)- Supplies- Educational SO
S.(b) Supplies-l^b SO
5.(c) Supplies ■ Pharmacy so

5.(d) Supplies - It4edical • so
5.(c) Supplies Office

$250

B. Travel
$375

7. Software SO

8. fa) Other • Maftetino/Communications .  . SO

8. fb) Other • Education and Trainlno

$^000

8. (c) Other - Other (specify bdow)

Monfor Sf/oanc/a $2,500

Miscellaheous S341

lOlher (oloo'so soo^i. .  " SO
Olhor (oleose sooclfv) $0

b: Subredpient Contracts SO

Total Direct Costs S17.216

Total Indirect Costa
$1,535

TOTAL $18,750

[a
9/10/202'!

Page 1 of 1
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BT-I.O Ejdilb(( C>9, Budget Sheet • Amendment «l
SS-2024-DES^3-CHILO-01-A0l

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Contractor Name: Southom New Hampshire Servicos

Budget Request for: TEACH NH

Budget Period 1. 2025 through Septembor 30,2025 (SFY 26)
Indirect Cost Rate (if appHcaWe) 'tO.^oyo ^ !!

.  '-/iir^'Llno liom

1. Salary & Wages

2. Frinoe Benefits

3. Consullanis

4. Equipment

Mnet eoslmlo cannot b9v>plM to equlpirmlcotlsp»r 2 CFR 200.1 tm)
AfipotxBxIVto 2 CFR 200-

5.(a) Supplies • Educational
5.(b) Supplies • Lab
5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy
S.(d) Supplies - Medical

5.{e) Supplies Office

6. Travel

7, Software

6. (a) Other - MarkelinQ/Communicalions >

6. (b) Other - Education and Training
8. (c) Other Other fspeclfv betowl

Ucensina/Consuftallons

ScholarshlDS/SuDDorls

Other (Dioosc specify)

■ iOlher {pleese.sDecifvt

■ SubreciDicnt Contracts

Total Direct Costs

Total Indirect Costs

TOTAL

ProgramiCest•'Fundod.l^^bHHS'''-'

$14,000

$6,013

$0

$0

$0

SO

SO

SO

S2S0

$500

$0

$6

S875

$1,625

$105,568

$0

SO

SO

$126,831

$2,419

$131,250

Page 1 of l
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DocuSign Envelope ID: S8£7E004^B-49CB'AdCE-FCF49ABSCC02
0JUNl3'23Pti

T»V

Lorl A. Wearer

latrrlni Commiuioacr

KarcD&llelxrl

Dlrerlor

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC STAHIIITY

129 ?l.K.\SANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271-9474 l-800.85^3}45 E*t 9474

Fax:603-27M230 TDO Access: 1-800-735-2964 \vu^r.dbhs.ab.^v

June 8.2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Councii

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Departrnent of:Health and Human Services, Division of Economic Stability, to
enter Into a Sole Source contract with Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc. (VC# 177198).
Manchester, NH. in the amount of $1,300,000 to assist families in securing high quaiity early
childhood and schoolage child care for their children by providing a centralized network of services
for families In need of child care services, with the option to renew for up to two (2) additional years,
effective July 1, 2023. or upon Governor and Council approval, whichever is later, through
September 30, 2024.100% Federal Funds.

Funds are .anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025, upon the
availability-and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating ̂budget, with the authority to
adjust budget line items within the'prjce limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, If needed and justified.

05-95<42^21110r29760000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPTOF HEALTH AMD HUMAN
SVC8, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, CHILD DEVELOPMENT, CHILD CARE DVLPfQUAUTY
ASSURE

State

Fiscal Year

Class/

Account
Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2024 074-500585 Cornmunity Grants 42117709 $960,000

2025 074-500585 Community Grants 42117709 $340,000

Total $1,300,000

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Contractor holds the affiiiate/brandirig agreement
with the 'nationally recognized Child Care Aware of America. As such. Child Care Aware of New
Hampshire has access to extensive support services for the state to provide resources and referral
services,, staff training, family outreach supports, child care provider professional development, and
extensive, data and research activities from the national level. The affiliation links the New Hampshire
child .care community, and particularly families seeking child care, with a nationally recognized and
-reliable organization. There i.s not another organization In the state that can meet the outcomes and
deliverables in the state. Fur^ermore, the Contractor holds the licensing and management contracts
for the Teacher Education and Compensation Helps (T.E.A.G.H.) and Department of Labor (DOL)
■Apprenticeship programs, Vi^lch are essentiaLparts of the plan to increase the child care workforce.

Tht D^parlmtnl of Health and HumanSeroicet'Miwliyn istojoin eommunitiet and famUUt'
inprooidu^'o'ppertunitUaforcltiunstooc^efe heallhend tAdepeniSaiee.
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His Excellency; Governor Christopher T. Sununu •
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2

The purpose of this request is to assist families In gaining access to high quality early
childhood and school age child care for their children by providing a centralized Inetwqrk of services-
for .families in need.of child care services; referring families to.communlty supports, as needed; and
assisting child care prograni's to improve program quality by providing comprehensive training,
technical assistance services and accesses to resources in the state's web-based New Hampshire
Connections Information System.

Approximately 2,700 families will be'served by accessing child care resource and referral
serylces, approximately 3,000 child care,providers will receive training, and approximately 850 child

,  care providers will be served through training and techrilcal assistance during Calendar Years 2024
and 2025.

the Contractor will provide Ihefoiiowtng services: manage the t.E.A.C.H. pro^^ram; manage
'  the OOL Apprenticeship prograrn; provide statewide child care resource and referral serylces and

training and technical assistance; support providers with credentiaiing and program-professibnalism
■  through Quality Recognition Improvernent System designations, Pyrarnid Model and School

Readiness: certify assessors and coaches for the Granite Steps for Quality Systerni' provide a liaison
to- each of the seven' (7) regional early childhood/and school age networks that have
local connections; support providers in completing ongoing, surveys and reports;- and support
providers with establishing, accessing, and updating their professional profile as required by
the federal Administration for Chiidren and Families. Office of Child Care.

the Department.wil! monitor services by:

• ■ The increased'number of families provided resource and referral services.

'  - ♦ ■ The iricreased number of child care providers awarded a Granite Steps for Quality
(GSQ) step and those vyith new and.renewed Credentials. ' '•

•  Child-care provider workforce reporting measurable and effective impacts based pn
trainings and'technical assistance.

As referenced in iExhIbIt A, Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions, Section
Subsection 1.2.. of the attached agfeemeht, the parties have (he optioh to extend the agreement for
up two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, a'vallat)le funding.,
agfeernent of the parties and Governor and Council approval.

: Should the Governor and Cquncil:not' authorize this request, child careresource and referral
services may not be available to families and child; care programs, which could result-in a 'dendent
:ne'iwork of child care services. Information, access and support for families and providers. Child care
providers would also be without necessary training, technical assistance and access to Impoilant
cKiid' deyeloprnent resources, and for their 'credentiaiing and professional development. Without
these services, the Department will be out of compliance with the Child Care andiDeveiopment Fund
iFedera) Plan and.additional requirements of the Child Care dnd;Deve!opment Block Grant Act..

Area served: .Statewide

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.575 FAIN #2301NHCCbd.

In the evenl that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will',not.be
requested to support this program.

'  Respectfully submitted,

(LI Ik)

•for

LprI A. Weaver • >
Interim Commissioner - '■*
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version I2/11/2019)
Subject: Resource and Refcnal forNH Child Care Facilities (SS-2024-DES-03-CHILD-01)

Notice: This agreement and all orits attachments shall become pubiic upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any Information that is private, confideniiai or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in uritirtg prior to signing the contract.

1.

agreement

-  The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby miiliially agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

IDENTIFICATION. ' '
I ;i Slate Agency Name

New Hampshire tDepartmeni of Health and Human Services

1.3 Contractor Name

Southern New Hampshire Services Inc.

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street'

Concord. NH .03301.3857

1.4 Contractor Address

40 Pine St.

Manchester, NH 03103

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603.668.8010

1.6 Account Number

05-95^42-421 110-

29780000

1.7 Coinpletion Date

.9/30/2024

1.8 Price Limitation

SI,300,000

1.9 Contracting Officer for,State Agency

Robert \V, Moore, Director

1.10 Slate Agency Telephone Number.

(603)271-9631

l.tl Contractor Signature
—OocoSlBAid b|r: 6/9/2023

Dale;

.12 Namcand TilleofContractorSignatory
Donnalee Lozeau chief Executive Officer

1.13. State Agency Signature
irtira6>«<MiT

6/9/2023

Date:

1.14 Name and Title ofState Agency Si^atory'
Karen Hebert Division Director

1.15 tVc N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (ifapplicable)

•By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Aitorricy Gcneral (Form, Substance and Excculion) Of opplicoble)
■  6/9/2023

B
RObyn Guarino

y:
.

1.17 Approvn! by the Qovernor and Executive

G&C Item number: G&C Meeting Date:

Page 1 of 4
Contraclor initials.-

Oate'6^/9/2023
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Slate of New

Hampshire, aciing through the agency identiried in block (.1
("Slate*'), engages coniracior identified in block 1.3
(".Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or boih, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B ̂ vhich is incorporated
herein by reference (''Services").

3' EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OFSERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary', and subject to tlie approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the Slate of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligaiionsofiheparties hereunder, shall
become efTccdvc on (he date the Governor and Executive

Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block.1.1.7,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the dale the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as showi in block 1.13 ("Eflectivc Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement docs not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any ̂ costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by llic Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.. "

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF ACRPEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
Mihoui limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds alTecicd by any stale or federal legislative or exeeiiiivc
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement ond
the Scope for SerN'ices provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
pan. In no event shall the State be liable 'for any payments
hereunder in excess of such avoitable opproprinted funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
Stale shall have (he right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The Slate shall not be required to transfer funds .from any other
account or source to the Account ideniificd in block 1.6 in the

event funds in that Account are reduced or unavnilablc. .

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

•PAVMENT. ,

5.1 The contract price, method ofpayment, and terms of payment
arc identified aiid more particularly described In EXHIBIT C
wlilcli is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract .price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to (he Contracior for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by .the Contmctor in the
performance hereof, and shall be th^ only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contracior other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise pa)'able to the Contractor under tins Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in (his Agreement 10 the
contrary, ond noiwithsianding unexpected circumstances, In no
event shall (he total ofall payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, cxcccd thc Price Limlioilon set forth in block 1.8.

6. compliance by CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND regulations/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNm'.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with alt opplicoble statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opporlunify lows. In addition, if this Agrccn>cnt is
funded in any pan by monies ofthc United Slates,*the Contractor
shall coniply with nil federal cxecntive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with'any rules, regulations ond guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual-
property laws.
6.2 OHring the term of' this Agreement, the Contracior shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for emplo)'nient
because of race, color, religion, creed, age,.sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. the Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Coriirncior's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense providc all personnel
neccssar)' to perform the Services. The Coniracior warrants that

'  alt personnel engaged in (he Services shall be qualified to
i^rform (lie Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise autliorized to do so under, all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of sl.x (6) months oftcr ,thc
Completion Date in block I ;7, the Coturactor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other pcrsoti, firm or
corporation with wliom it is engaged in a combined effort to .
pcrforin the Sen'ices to hire, any person who is o State employee
or ofricial, who is materially iiivolvcd in the.procurcmcrii,
adminisiralion, or performance of this Agreement. This

■  provisipti shall, survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the Stale's representative. In the even! of any
dispute concerning the inicrp'rctaiiou of this Agreement, the
Contracting OfTicer's decision shall be Hnal for the State.

^ Page 2 of 4 Ji'
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the rollowlttg acts or omissions of the
Coniractor shall constitute ait event of default hcreunder ("Event
ofOcfauli"): •
8.1.1 failure to 'perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder, and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any diher covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement,
8.2 Upon iIm occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2. r give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Defauic end requiring it to be remedied \viThin, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and Iflhe Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Coniractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of lltc contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from, the date of such notice until such time as ihe State
determines that-the. Contractor has cured (he Event of Default

shall never bc paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying .the Event of
Default, treat tlic Agreement as breached, terminate tlie
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.;

8.3. No failure by'thc State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to (hat Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default; No express failure to enforce any Event ofDcfauU shall
be deemed a waiver of (he right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any ftirther or other Event of
Default on the part of the Coniractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Nortviihslanding paragraph 8, (he Stale may, at its sole
discretion, terminate (he Agreement for any reason, in whole or.
in part, by thirty (30) days written'notice to the Contractor that
the State Is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early tcrrriination of this Agrcemcnl for
any reason other than the completion of (he Services, tlie
Conlmctor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Ofnccr, not later than fifteen (15)days after the date
of termination, a report ("Termlnatjon'Report") describing in
detail oil Services pcrforhted, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date oftcnnination. Tlie fomt, subjcci matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to thosc.of any Final;Report described in the atr'ached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, dcs-ciop and

submit to (he State a Transition Plan for services und'er (he

Agreement.

lO: DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" sltall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
flics, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound'rccordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, nil whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property wiiich has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for (hat purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be relumed to the State ufktn demand or upon temtination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of.ihe State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement (he Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an ogcnt nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
ofllcers, entplo>xes, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the Slate or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by ihc Staic to its employees.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 The Coniractor shall not assign, or otheAvisc Iraitsfcr any
interest in this Agreement without the prior witten notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written conscnt.of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignmem. "Change of Control" mcaiis (a) merger,
consolidation, orn transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, bedomcs the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substaiuially all
of the assets of (he Contractor.

12.2 None of the SerN'ibcs shall be subcontracted by (he
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The Stale is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in n subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party;

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise c.vempicd by law,
(he Contractor shall indcmnif)' and hold harmless the Stale, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any-personal injury or properly damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers orcmployccs, which afis'e out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out o.Q the acts or omisS^^^f

iPage 3 of 4
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Comraclor.'or subcontraciors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The Stale shall not

. be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising tmder
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding (he foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver ofthe sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in parograph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
Subcontractor or assignee to obtain and'maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial gencml liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, dwih or property damage, in nniounis of not
less than SI.000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and

14.1.2 special cause ofloss coverage form covering all properly
subject to subparograph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparngraph I4.j herein shnii be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in (he Slate
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the Stale of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9. or his or her successor, a certincate(s) of
insurance for all -insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to thic Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or hls or her successor, ccrtificaic(s) of insurance
for all feheu'al(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The ccnificn(c(s) of insurance and any
rencsvais thcrepfshall be attached and are incorporated herein bV
reference.

(5. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.
15.1 -By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is In compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("H'orkcrs'
■Compensafion").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor Is subject to the requirements
of N.H. -RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities whicli the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement, the Conlrncior shall furnish (he Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or l)cr successor, proof of-Workers'
Compensation in. the manner described in N.H, RSA chapter
28i-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
andched and are incorporated herein by reference. The Slate
shall not be responsible for payment of any. Workers'
Compcijsation premiums or for any other claim dr benefit for
Contractor,' or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
whicli might arise under applicable .State of New Hampslitre
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
pcrfonnoncc ofthc Services lindcr this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other parly
shall be deemed to have been dtily delivered or given at the lime
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United Stales
Post Office addressed to the .parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1. herein.

■ 17. AMENDMENT. Tliis Agrccmeni may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an Instrument in uriting signed by the
.parties hereto and only after approval of such, amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the-Siatc of New Hampshire unless no such approval ij required
under the circumstances pursuant to Slate law, rule or .policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is bindmg upon and
inures to (he benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their miiiual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING. TERMS, In the event of a conflict
between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
'P-37 (as raodincd in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

/" ■

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do ndl-intcnd to
benefit 'any third paiiies and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer.any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
sluill in no way be held to explain,-modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provislons^.of this
Agreement.

22.- SPECIAL PROVISIONS. AddiiipnnI or inodifying
provisions set forth in the nUaehcdEXKIBIT A are incorporated
hetein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the cvent'briy of the provisions of.tlits
Agreement are l>cld by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this A^cmeht will remain in full force and effect. '

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be >
deemed an original, constitutes the cnilrc agreement attd
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
ogreemcnts and understandings with respect tO'the subject matter
hereof.

OS
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Huriian Services
Resource and Referral for NH Child Care Facilities

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions.

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is
amerided as follows;

.3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and
subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the State
of New Hampshire as Indicated In block 1.17, this Agreement, and all
obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become effective on July 1,
2023, or upon Governor and Council approval, whichever is later.

1.2. Paragraph .3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
.  . . subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The; parties may exterid the Agreement.for up to two (2) additional years
from the Completion Dale, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Gouncll. ..

■1.3. Paragraph 12. Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts; is amended by adding
subparagraph 12,3 as follows:
12.3. Subcontractors are subject .to the same contractual conditions as the

Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall-have written'
agreements vyjlh all subcontractors, specifying the work to be perforrhed,.
and If applicable, a Business Associate Agreenient in accordance with
the. Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act.. Writteri

7  agreements shal] specify how corrective action shall be managed. The
Contractor shaj) manage the subcontractor's performance on an origoing;
basis and take corrective action as necessary. The Contractor shall
annually provide the State with a list of all subcontractors provided for
under this Agreement and notify the State of .any inadequate
subcontractor performance. • y

SS-?0?.4-'DES-0>CHiLO-.01 ' A-1.,2 Contraclof Ihltlals
6/9/2023So^emNewHamRshifeServjces.lnc. Page 1 of 1 Oaiie
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Resource and Referral for NH Child Care Facilities

EXHIBIT B .

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor must provide statewide services to licensed and license-exempt child
care providers (CCPs)'as Identified in 1.2., to build capacity, improve quality and
increase access to child care. Services include but are not limited to:

1.1.1. Child Care Resource and Referral Services.

1.1.2. , Training and Technical Assistance. ' •

1.2. For the purpose of this Agreement, all references to licensed and license-exempt child
: care providers mean:

1.2.1. A licensed center-based or home-based child care program as defined by New
Hampshire Administrative Rule He-C 4002. Child Care Licensing Rules, that
serves children in any age group from six (6) weeks through twelve (12) years
of age; or

1.2.2. Are license-exempt in accordance with New Hampshire Revised Statutes
Annotated (RSA) 170-E:3, 1 (a), (c). (0, (g). and (h).'

1.3. f^or the purposes of this Agreement, all references to days means business days,
excluding state and federal holidays. Including offering meetings and referrals during
non-traditional business hours, to Include one (1) night, per week, and one (1) Saturday
per month.

1.4. The Cbntractdr must ensure services are available statewide; twelve-(12) months a
year, with no break In service.

Child Care Resource and Referrei Services ,

1.5. ' The Contractor must provide a network "of child care-resource and referral (CCR&R)
services to assist Individuals and families seeking to secure licensed and license-
exempt child care (Including summer camps with a child care component and Head
Start and Early Start programs) for children from birth through fifth (5) grade. CCR&R
services include but are not limited to:

1.5.1. Supporting families and employers In accessing services online through NH
'  ' , Connections: www.nh-connections.orQ.

■1.5.2. Supporting families In enrolling in the "Family Communication Network"
through NH Connections: www.nh-connect1 ons.ora.

.  1.5.3, Responding to inquires by email,, telephone and in-person;
1.5.4. Providing virtual or In^person meetings and referrals with families seeking or in

need of child care.

•  1.5.6. Providing virtual or Iri-person meetings and referrals with businesses,
employers, human resource departments and community leaders-to support
child care needs.

1.5.6. Providing an "Introduction to CCR&R .Services" at New Hampshire
•  Employment Program (NHEP) orientations, 'Family Resource .§^ler

r| •
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workshops and at the locations as requested by the Department, during
'  -traditional and norvtraditional business hours.

1.5.7. Providing services and resources to public, private and governmental
organizations seeking support for employees, clients, patients and
stakeholders.

• i':6: Contractor must ensure CCR'&R services are jsrovided statewide, specifically by region,
|n accordance with regions as identified in Exhibit B>1 - Child Care Access & Regional
Systems Coordination.'

1.6.1. Region i - (Greater Mpnadnock, Greater Sullivan &• Upper County):
Monadnbck-United Way...

1.6.2. Region 2 - (Capital Area): Granite United Way (for the Capital region).

1.6.3. Region 3- (Greater Nashua): United Way of Greater Nashua.

1.6.4. Region 4-(Greater Deny & Manchester): Amoskeag Health.

■  1,6;5. Region 5 -.(Ceritral NH; .Lakes): Granite United Way (for Central NH/Lakes
region). . .

1.6.6.. Reglon.6-(Stratford County & Seacoa$t): .Granite Unlted VVay/United Way of
'■ theGrealer'Seacoast. > .

1.6.7. Region 7-(North Country & Carroll County): Children Unlimited.
1.7. The Contractor must provide a designated staff person' known, as a Regional Area

. Representative for each region. The Regional Area Representatives must reside or
travel to.the designated region 'on a bi-weekly basis (Contractor is not required to have
an offlcejn each region and Regional Area Representatives may be aligned to more
than one (1) region)..

1.8. The'Contractof must provide a central'office .with a designated statewide Resource and
■Referral Mana9er.(s) to supervise and support the Regional Area Representatives and
ensure consistent and uninterrupted, year-round (twelve-(12) months a year] resource
and referral services In all regions.

1.9. thb Contractor must provide orie (1.) Employer Liaison ..to support Regional Area
Representatives arid corinect with business leaders, business "associations, state
sponsored work groups and task forces, and other activities as determined' by the
Department;

1 .'10. The Contractor must ensure services, specific to each region, including bul -not lirhited
-to: •_ "

.  1.10.1. A monthly meeting with the Early Childhood Regional Lead as-described in
section 1.6. ^ "

,1.10.2. A minimum of two '(2) In-person site visits to all CCPs in the designated "
t  region described In section 1.6 monthly. -•

1.10.3. ParticipatJpn.Tn a minimum of one;(.1) rtionlhly regiorial activity; meeting
v- and/pr event impacting child care and Head Start and farhllies.

>—DS
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'

1.10.4. Conducting regionally Specific-marketing and outreach to families,, employers
■ and CCPs, Including live informational presentations as requested.
Presentation locations include DHHS District Offices, identified at Locations &
Facilities I New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

fnh.QOv) arid at Family Resource Centers, identified at Family Support NH -'
Home ffsnh.oral. and other agreed-upon locations. : ^

1.10.5. .Developing and maintaining a working relationship with New Hampshire
Employment Program (NHEP) and Department staff In each District Office.

1.10.6. filaintainlng comprehensive knowledge of the regions Including, but not
...v< limited to: '

1.10.6.1. Current'child care supply and capacity.

1.10.6.2. Current child care staffing levels.

1.10.6:3. Unmet child care needs.

1.10.6.4. Socio-economics of the region.

1.10.&5. Housing supply and need.

j  1.10.6.6. Major employers.

'  ■ 1.10.6.7. Language, ethnic and. culture diversity.
*» .

1.10.6.8. Family and .community support services, agencies and non-profits
to maximize child care resource services.

1.10.6.9. McKinney-Vento Liaison: Education for Homeless Children and
Youth Program I Deoartment of Education rnh.aovl.'.

1.10.6.10. Major challenges, strengths and weaknesses.

.1.10.6.11. Employment by sector. ,

1.10.6.12. Legislative represeri.latioa city and to\yn pfficials.

1.10.6.13. School district structure and leadership.-

1.10.6.14. Local ordinances as they relate to child care.

1.11. The Co'ritractor must ensure all staff are familiar with and can explain how families
.  access the NH.Child Care Scholarship Program: Child Care Scholarship - Child Care- •.

'  Aware of NH fnh-connections.orQ) and other related assistance programs: NH EASY
Gateway to Senrices.

1.12. The Contractor must ensure Depariment-provided marketiri'g materials, informational
videos, websites, District Offices, and Family Resource Center addresses are provided
to families. •

1.13. The Contractor must ensure that services provided to families and CCPs are culturally"
cprnpetent and responsive and Include:

1.13,1. Ensuring all.staff,are trained In cultural competence.

,  ■ ' ' " [a
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1.13.2. Providing translation and interpretation services, In accordance to the;
■  selected Vendors Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (pLAS)

Requirerhents.

1.13.3. Providing video rempte option(s) for Arnerican Sign Language..

1.13.4. Possessing kncwiedge and have an understanding of the cultural variations >
across the state to individualize services when necessary to meet the needs
of each region (see Exhibit B-.1 - Child Care Access & Regional Systems
Coordination).

1 14 The Contractor must provide, .prortiote and' market culturally responsive CCR&R ..
^  services statewide, regionally and locally, to families, providers, .businesses and

community members in accordance with the Statertient of Work and Department-
approved rnarketing guidelines.. Marketlng materiais include but are not limited to:
1.14.1. Brochures.

1.14.2. Flyers. ■

-■ 1.14;3. Display^posters.
1.14.4. Promotional merchandise.

1.14.5. Other-marketing tools and material asTequested and approved by the
. Department. ' . •

1.15i The Contractor must disseminate regional mart<eting materials and .information, topromote public awareness, through various.means such as;
1.15.1. Local hospitals, including, prenatal classes.
1.-15.2. Pediatrician, obstetric and general practitioner offices.
1.15.3. Early intervention programs.

■  1.15.4., Churches.

1.15:5. Local retailers and businesses. _ :
1.15.6. Realtors.

1.15.7. Libraries.

1.15.8. Grocerystorel
1.1,5.9. Resta.ufanis; v
1.15.10. DHHS district offices.

1.15.11. NHEP.bffices and partner meetings.
1.15,.12; Heaith clubs. " ,
1.15.13. Malls.

1.15.14. Community'boards.
1.15.15. School distficts and local community colleges.

f  OS
■  1.15..16. Through community events.
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1.15.17. Family resource centers.

1.15.18. Communlty.action agencies, (Includlng Hoad Start).- -

1.15.19. Women, Infants and Children's program (WIG).

1.15.20. 2.11 NH.

1.15.21. Fuel assistance offices. r'

1.15.22. Child health support services and workplace success programs.

1.16. The Contractor must work with the Department's marketing conlractpr to ensure
rharketing aiighs with the Department's branding and marketing guidelines.'

1.17. the Contractor must provide current information regarding CCR&R services to the
departrtierit's marketing contractor for publishirig on New Hampshire Connections:
www.nh-conhections.org.'

ir, . 1.18. The Cpntractor may^, in accordance with this contract, the Department's^^guidelines and-
with pepartrnent approval, -maintain their own social media accounts tO' promote
resource and referral services. ' ' ' i-

1.19. The Contractor must provide stalewde CCR&R-sen/ice to families that may or;may not
be receiving assistance-or services from the New Hampshire Employment Program
(NHEP.) or the Departrnerit.

1.20. The Contractor must, as applicable, make-connections with McKihney-Vento Liaisons,-
to identify children who may not be.school age, but require chiid care.services, as well
•'38 school age children who are in need of before/after school care. Connections may
be made through the. Director of the-Office of Homeless Education at the NH

■ Department of Education, and will minimally include information about Child Care
Resource and Referral and the services-they provide. Tracking-of all activity is required:

1.21. The Contractor must follow up with clients within thirty (30) days after an initial referral
is :received, using one (1) or more of the methods below which include,, but are not
limited to: ' •

-  1.21:1. Telephone contact. " "

> 1.21.2. A satlsfactionand outcome survey via:

-  1.21.2.1;" Survey Monkey or similar tool(s). '-

•1.21.2.'2. New Hanipshire Connections information System: wv^w.nh-
'* connections.orq (NHGIS).

1.21:2.3. Hard copy, via email or USPS. > ■

1,22... The Contractor rhust enter all information concerning follow-up attempts and .completed
sun/eys into NHCIS and provide quarterly reports to the Department.

1.23, The Contractor must maintain current relationships and .collaborations with other
-  agencies and organlzallQns to maximize child care resource services:

1.'24. 'The Gontractpr must ensure that data collection and reports are. accurate and
consistent statewide.

SS-2024'DES-03-CHILD-01 B-2.0 Cofttf8cl0f'lnilielj__
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1.25. the Contractor must coordinate efforts with the Department to niaintain the CCR&R
.functions in NHCIS, including but not.limited to:

1.25.1. Assisting CCPs in populating ahd updating program-specific data and OOP
staff demographics in the professional registry.

1.25.2r Conducting a bi-annual update survey.of all CCP prograrh information.

•1.25.3. Requesting changes and deletion of records.

1;25.4'. Documenting all CCR&R activities.. '

1.25.5. Providing technical assistance to stakeholders (CCPs and families), by rnaking
. available:

'1.25.5M. On-line training modules.

1.25.5.2. vyritten-instructions.

1;25.5.3. Frequently Asked Questions,

1;25.'5.4. .One-on-one assistance,

training and Technical Assistarice

1.26. The Contractor must provide a training' and technical assistance program coordlnator(s)
to administer the training -and technical assistance activities and must supen/lse any
individuals providing training and't'echnical.assistance..

1:27. The Cpnlractpr must identify Individuals to work with the Department,ar)d support
CCPs, that have subject rhatter.knowledge In the following areas:

1.27.1. Credentialing.

1.27.2. GraniteStepsforQuality. • " '

1.27.3. Have an understanding of how Pyramid Model applies to early childhood
programs: The National Center, for "Pyramid .Model Innovations - Child Care
Aware of NH % {nh-connections.orq).

1.27.4 Cultyrarcprripetency.

1.27.6. Family child care.

1.27.6\ Child care management.

1;.27.7, Be familiar with child care Jicensing rules-and background check process.

'1.27.8, Be Tamiiiar wilh-'.the challenges arid available state initiatives regarding
workforce development.,

1.27.9. Marketing and outreach.

1.27:10. NHCiS: NHCIS Login Paaer-Chil'd Care Aware of NH fnh-connections.ProV

1.27.11.-Developmentaliy appropriate practice.

1.28. The Contractor must provide training and technical assistance.to licensed;;and potential
and current license-exempt providers as requested or required by,the Departmerit.

1  ' /~D8

J

%
•  •• •
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1.29. The Contractor must market and facilitate training .opportunities to ensure ctiild care
program staff, statewide, will have the opportunity to help meet Child Care Licensing
and Federal Office of Child Care training requirements.

1.30. The Contractor must provide training and technical assistance to the CCP utilizing the
methodology Identified below:

1.30.1. Technical assistance requests by having'an information gathering process,
.scheduling support through phone, email or onlifie meetings, tracking and
reporting technical assistance activities with families and CCPs through
-NHCIS. , • . .

1.30.2. Management of training opportunities by having an information gathering and
..registration .process, and posting opportunities through NHCIS, tracking and
reporting all participation and pre and post training evaluation outcomes In
NHCIS.

1.30.3. Utilizing, the Online Training Calendar via Technical Assistance Management;
. provides GCR'&R .with the ability to create local, regional and statewide training-
calendars and allow training participants to register online for these training
opportunities. . t.

1.30.4. Technical Assistance Management is the module used to manage, track and
■  report on technical assistance provided to child care programs..

1.30.5. Training Registry will track* the demographics, education, employment
background and training history of child care providers and crdss. sector-

'.professionals and will also Identity and record their advancertient in the field,

1.31. The.Contractor must provide Child Care Basics Trainings, or comparable-foundational
.  level traihingSi .in niodallties that'may include, but not be limited to7online modules.

T.32. The Contractor must offer other workshops on a statewide level; which rhusl include
health'and safety training In addition to the health arid safety trainings available on
ProSolutiohs; https7/www.nh-connections.orQ/broviders/health'and«satetv-traininas/.

1.33. The Contractor rnust provide training on business best practices for child care programs
and technical asslstarlce in ^applying - best
practices: 'https"://www.childcareaware.orq/provlders/openinq-runnlnQ-chlld-care-
center/operatinq-child-c^re-center-proararri-practices/.. .

•  ni. .1

1.34.., The Contractor'rnust provide techrilcai assistance to child care programs to support
irripiementatiph "of ' the - Strengthening .
F"amHies:.'https://slrenqthe'ninofaTfiiliesproqram.orQ/ approach.

1.35.. The Contractor must,provide technical assistance to support.development. Of a. written
emergency preparedness plan based, on the. Incident Comniand System, and In
completing a written Continuily of" Gperatipns ■ Plan (COOP): ■httbs://www:nh-
conhectibns.oro/Dfovldersfcontinuitv-QfTQDerationS'Dlan-cooD/.

1.36. The Contractor, must provide training on how to create individualized professional
develpprnent plaris designed to increase teacher competency and retention.
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1.37. The Contractor must provide training on how to implement the NH Early Learning
Standards: The NH Eariv Learnino Standards - Child Gare Aware of NH % fnh-
connections.oral.

1.38. The Contractor must provide a monthly orientation on enrolling and/or renewing as a
New Hampshire Child Care Scholarship Provider. Orientation includes but Is not limited
to:.

1.38.1. Application process. ■

1.38.2.. Agreements. " .

1.38.3. Health and safety requirements.

1.38.4. Background checks.

1.38.5. Monitoring requirements.

1.38.6. Web-billing. , ■ •

1.38.7. Programming.: " . <.

1.38.8. Marketing, ^ ; * .

1.38.9. Transitloning as a license-exempt provider to a licensed provider.

1.39. The Contractor must provide training and technical assistance on how to write child
care program policies. These policies may include, but are not limited to, inclusion
policies and. health and safety policies.

1.40. The Contractor must support child care programs with the implementation of the .
Pyramid Model, including but not limited to providing trainings and coaching with
guidance from the Department.. '

1.41. The Contractor must provide technical assistance to providers, to expand program
capacity, with an emphasis on unmet child care needs statewide, including, but not
limited to: "

1.41.1. Infants and toddlers.

1.41.2. Children with special-care needs.

'  ' 1.41.3. Children needing care during nori-.traditional hours.

1.42. The Contract must assist providers and staff create and update annual workforce
records in the New Hampshire Professional Registry module within NHCIS.

1.43. The Contractor must provide training and technical assistance to CCPs-with meeting
the requirements and applying for New Hampshire Early Childhood Professional
Credentials: httDs://www.nh-cohnectlons.org/pr6videfs/cfedentlaiinQ/.

1.44. The Contractor' must provide technical assistance to OCRs to assist them in
understanding the requirements of and completing the application for GSQ.

1.45. The Contractor must create, In conjunction and in collaboration with the Department,
GSQ readiness materials and training and techriical assistance content.

1.46. The Contractor must work with the Department to establish CCP GSQ cohoil5j,9nd.
mentor CCPs through the GSQ readiness process.

9L
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1:47. The Contractor must provide GSQ training and technical assistance as requested
required and defined by the Department.

1.48. The Contractor must provide a Teacher Education And Compensation Helps
(T.E.A.C,H.) counselor and must create, promote and market the f.^.A.C.H. NH Early
Childhood Scholarship Program, which will focus on the need'for a well^ualjfied, fairly
compensated and stable workforce. • , •

1.49. The Contractormust prioritize T.E.A.C.H. NH T.E.A.C.H. Eariv Childhood® NH - Child
Care Aware of NH fnh'Connections.orQV for early childhood programs and teachers
who care for and teach Infants and/or toddlers.

1.50. The Contractor must develop an Infrastructure which Includes, but Is not limited to:'

1:50.1. Creating and Irriplementing outreach, and marketing resources to all early
childhood-progfams; including ceriter-based and family chlid'care. with a focus
on infant/toddler programs and infant/toddler professionais, in order to promote

•  T.E.A.C.H. NH. .w .

1.50:2. Creating and establishing' a T.E.A.C.H. NH Advisory Committee under the
•guidance and e)(pertise of the National Center to Include NH early childhood

-  stakeholders.

1.50.3. providing scholarships-and stipends to T.E.A.C.H. NH recipients..

1.50.4. Providing support and mentoring for T.E.A.C.H. NH recipients in their efforts to-
obtain a Child Development Associate credential (CDA), Child Development

;i Associate Credential - Child Care Aware.of .NH ̂ h-connectlons.oray .leading'
•  to an Associate's Degree, or ah Associate's Degree in Early Childhood

Education.

1.50.5. 'Providing support arid mentoring forT.E.A.G.H. .NH, sponsot-s (participating NH
Early Childhood/Child Care PrograjTis).

1.50.6. Establishing and maintaining relationships between the T.E.A.C.H." NH
jprqgram staff and the T.E.A.C.H. National Center in order to" adhere, to and

;  embrace the T.E.A.C.H. core values arid principlbs. ,
1.50-.7. Providing the T.E.A.C.H. NH staff with the necessary resourced and supports

to assist In the facilitation of this project as outiiried by the National,Center to
iriplude specific technology, integralipn,' professional development apd
.lechhicarassiistance.

1.50.8. Creating arid establishlng.a streamlined service delivery system that pfbitidtes
efficiencies arid maximizes resources within all the Child Care Resource'arid
Referral (CCFt&R) activities, which include,.bui are not.limlled to: •
1.50;8.1.. Sharing the CCR&R email distribution list.

1.50.8.2. Prorrioting T.E.A.C.H. NH opportunities at CCR&R meetings and
.u trainings.

1.50.8:3. Marketing the T:E!A.C,H. NH Program at eariy childhood
stakeholder meetings and evients. >
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1.51. The Contractor must provide scholarships, stipends, support and mentoring to a
minimum of twenty-five (25) T.E.A.C.H. NH recipients annually, with priority being given
to individuals working in infant and or toddler classrooms in" early care/child care
programs."

1.52. The Contractor must provide a United Stales Department of Labor (DQL)
Apprenticeship:- ECAP-2-8-21 .odf fnh-connections.oroL program coordinator and must
administer the DOL Apprenticeship Program - Early Childhood Education and
Teaching Preschool Teacher (COP Code13.1210) pursuant to the criteria and timeline
established by the NH Early Childhood Impact Project/Career Pathways Strategy
Group.

1.52.1. Southern New Hampshire Services and the United States Department of
Labor Early Childhood Apprenticeship Program (ECAP) is a training
opportunity for Individuals employed in the early childhood field and Is
designed to combine classroom instruction and work experience to"
enhance the quality of care for children while increasing the apprentice's
skill level and wages. The goal of ECAP Is for individuals to obtain the
credential required to work as a teachenn a state licensed child care
center, increasing the supply of skilled professionals and the delivery of
high quality early education.- This ECAP will be coordinated and

.  admlnistered.by the Contractor.

1.53. The Contractor must recruit a minimum of five (5) apprentices for the DOL
Apprenticeship Program.

1.54. The Contractor must ensure DOL enrollment priority is given to individuals committed"
.  to working with infants and/or toddlers in early care/child care programs.

1.55. The Contractor must provide a specific marketing plan, In conjunction with the
Department, to promote awareness of CCR$.R professional development activities for
child care programs and providers. The marketing plan must include but Is not limited
to:

1.55.1. Year round promotion of available training opportunities.

1.55.2. An annual training calendar.

1.55.3. Use of Constant Contact and a similar tools to promote training and
technical assistance opportunities. .

1.56. The Contractor must provide technical assistance specialists that meet the specific
qualifications described in the New Hampshire Early Childhood Professional
Development System for Mentor. Program Consultant or Allied Professional at the
Master Professional level. These qualifications may be waived, on a case-by-case

. basis, by the Department. .

1.57. The Contractor must provide training specialists who meet the specific qualifications
described in the New Hampshire Early Childhood Professional Development System
for Workshop Trainer, Faculty or Allied Professional in the Master Professional level.
These qualifications may be waived, on a case-by-case basis, by the Department.

1.58. The Contractor must conduct post disaster assessments of child care program$ftas
identified In the State Child Care Emergency Plan, if requested by the Departnppj.

SS-2024-DES^)J-CHlLD-01 &.2.0 ConUaclor IrtUala
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1.59. The Contractor must appropriate a minimum of ten percent (10%) of the. contract funds
for Infant and toddler'activities.

1,60.. The Contractor must participate in;

1.60.1. Pyramid Model State Leadership Team: The National Center for Pyramid
Model Innovations - Child Care Aware of NH mh'Connectlons.orQ).

1.60.2. GSQ. , '

1.60.6. but-of-School Time &• Early Childhood Education Credential revision:
Credentlalino - Child Care Aware of NH (nh-cQnhections.orQl.

1.60.4. NH Early Learning Standards Revision Committee: .-The NH Early-Learning
Standards - Child Care Aware of NH % fnh-connections.oral.

T61. The Contractor must provide funding for the Annual Celebration for Early Childhood
Professionals; and collaborate with the Qepartment . on the. planning end,
Mmplementation of the event.

1.62. the Contractorshall ensure staff participate in training asepecified by the Department..

1.63. The Contractor shall'participate Ih meetings,with the'Department on a quarterty basis,
or as otherwise requested by the Department.

1.64. Reporting

1..64.i. The Cbhtractor must submit.an Annual Performance Report to'the Department
.  no later Ihanduiy 15, 2024.

• 1.64.2.'The Contractor must maintain detailed supporting documentation for'the
required Annual Performance Reports, which must be available tO' the
Department for review upon request and must be retained for up to seven (7),
years of the contract completion date.

1.64.3. The Contractor may be required to provide otherfeports, data,and metrics,.not
collected and stored -in NHCIS, to the Departrnent in a format and on a date
specified by the Department. •

■  1.6S. Performance Measures . .i.

1;65.1. The Departrtienf will apply the following measures to assist In monitoring the
Contractor's performance by dernor>strating: ^ .

,1,65.1.1. A twehty-five percent (25%)/increase in the numter of families
provided resource and referral services based on NHC.IS, data, as •
of contract effective date.

\* ... • ' •

i,.65.1.2. A twenty-fivepercent (25,%) Increase in'CCP awarded a GSQ step,
^  based en the number of Department awards as of contract

effective date. - . •

1;65.t1 a twenty?five percent (25%) increase in new Credentials, based oh
the number of Department award? as of contract etfectiye date.

1,65.1.4. A thirty-five percenl.(35%) Increase in renewed Credentials,p hased
on the number of Department awardses of contract effectij^^e.

SS-2024.DES-03iCHILD-0i ' , _ B-2.b Conlrectof mah.
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1.65.1.5. A fifty percent (50%) of COP workforce participate In one (1) or
more training opportunities annually, based on NHCIS data as of
contract effective date.

1.65.1.6. A sixty percent (60%) of COP utilizing technical assistance report
a measurable effective impact based on satisfactiori survey.

1.65.1.7. A sixty percent (60%) of workforce participaiing in trainings, report
a measurable effective impact based on satisfaction sun/ey.

1.66. Background Checks

1.66.1. Prior to permitting any individual to provide services under this Agreement, the
Contractor must ensure that said Individual has undergone:

1.66.1.1. A criminal background check, at the Contractor's expense, and
has. no convictions for crimes that represent evidence of behavior
that could endanger individuals served under this Agreement and

1.66.1.2. A name search of the Department's Division for Children, Youth
and Families (DCYF) Central Registry, pursuant to RSA 169-0:35,
with results indicating no evidence of behavior that could
endanger individuals served under this Agreement.

1.67. Privacy Irinpact Assessment

1.67.1. Upon request, the Contractor must allow and assist the Department in
conducting a Privacy Impact Assessment (PIA) of its
system(s)/application(s)/web" por1al(s)/website(s) or Department
sys!em(s)/application(s)/web portal(s)/webS!te(s) hosted by the Corilractor, if

■  Personally Identifiable Information (Pll) Is collected, used, accessed, shared,
or stored. To conduct the PIA the Contractor must provide the Department
access to applicable systems and documentation sufficient to allow the
Department to assess, at minimum, the following:

1.67.1.1. How Pli is gathered and stored;-

1.67.1.2. Who will have accessto Pll;

1.67'1.3. How.PIl will be used In the system;

1.67.1.4. How Individual consent will be achieved and revoked; and

1.67.1.5. - Privacy practices.

1.67.2. The Department may conduct follpw-up PIAs in the event there are either
significant process changes or new techriologies impacting the collection,
processing or storage of Pll.

1.68." Department Owned Devices, Systems and Network Usage

1.68.1. If Contractor End Users are authorized by'the Department's Information
Security Office to. use a Department Issued device (e.g. computer, tablet,
mobile telephone) or access the Department network in the fulfilment of this
Agreement, the Contractor must:

SS-2024-pES*03-CHILO-01 B-2.0 Conlraclof tnllials

6/9/2023
. Southern Now Hompahirc Services, Inc. ' Page12ofl8 Onto .



<r

Docusign Envelop© ID; 7O8D40f6-DDOO-4A69-98BC-337B7A76ACF6

06CuSlgnEnv^p©.lO:5BE7E004-402B-49CB-A9CE-FCF49AB5CC02 , . '

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human" Services
Resource and Referral for NH Child Care Facilities

EXHIBIT B

1.68..1.1. sign and abide by applicable Department and New Hampshire
Department of Information Techriology (NH DdlT) use
agreements, policies, standards, procedures and guidelines, and

•  complete applicable trainings as/required.

1.68.1.'2. Use the information that they have permission to access; solely
,  for conducting official Department business and -agree that all

i  other use or access is'strictly forbidden Including, but not limited,

tO'personal or other private arid hon-bepartment use. and that at
no time must they access or attempt to access inforrhalion without
having the express authority of the Department to do So.

or, 1.68.1.3. .Not access or attempt to across Information >in a manrier
•inconsistent with the 'afDprbved policies, procedures, and/or
.agreement relating to system entry/access.

i .68.1.4. Not copy, share, distribute, sub-license, rnodlfyi'revense engineer,
rent, or seli software ilcensed, deyelbped, or being evaluated by
the Departmerit.and atalltimes must useulmost care to protein

;! and keep such software strictly confidential- in accordance with
the license or any. other agreerfient executed by the Department.

1.68.1.5. Only use equipment, sofhyare, or. subscfiption(s) "authorized by
the Department's Inforrnation SacurilyOffice or designee.

1.68.1.6. Not Install non-standard software oh any Department equipment
-  • unless authorized by the Department's Information Security

Office or designee. "

1.68.1.7. Agree ;that ernaii and other electronic communication message's
created, sent, and rece'iyed on a Department-issued Omaii system
are the property of the Deparlmem of New Hampshire and to be
used -for 'business purporos only, Email is defined as linternal
email systems" or "Department-funded'email systems."

168.1.6. Agree that use of email must follow Department and. NH DoIT
policies, standards, and/or guidelines: and

1:68.19'. . Agree-when utilizing the Department's-emai! system::

•  . 1.68.1.'9'.l To only use a. Department email address assigr^ed
to them vrith-a "(g affiiiate.DHHS.NH.Goy."

1.68.1.9'.2.- Tb.include In the signature lines information
identifying the End User as a nohrDepartment

i., .V • workforce member.

1.68.1.9.3". To ensure "the following oonfidentiailty notice is
• embedded underneath the signature line:

GONflDENTIALITY NOTICE; "This niessage may contain
information that is privileged and confidential and js: intended

.  only for the use "of the„individuai(s) to whoni il ls addressed, if
'  you receive this message In. error, please notlfv the^hder

■  .. ' m
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imrriediately and delete this electronic message and any
attachments from your system. Thank you for your cooperation."

1.68.1.10. Contractor End Users,with a Department issued email, access or
potential access to Confidentiar Data, and/or a workspace In a
Department building/facility, must:

1.68.1.10.1. Complete the Department's Annual Information
Security & Compliance Awareness Training prior to
accessing, viewing, handling, hearing, or
trarismltting Deparlmeht Data or Confidential Data.

1.68.1.11. Sign the Department's Business Use and Confidentiality
Agreement 'and Asset Use Agreement, and the NH DolT
Department wide Computer. Use Agreement upon execution of
the Contract and annually throughout the Contract term.

1.68.1.12. Agree End User's will only access the Department' intranet to
view the Department's Policies and Procedures and Information

. Security webpages.

1.68.1.13. Agree.- if any End User is found to be in violation of any of the
above-Department terms and conditions of the Contract, said End
User may face removal from the Contract, and/or-criminal and/or
civil prosecution, if the act constitutes a violatioh of law.

1.68.1.14. Agrees to notify the Department a minimum of three business
days prior to any upcoming transfers or terminations of End Users,
who possess Department credentials and/or badges or who have
system privileges. If End Users who possess Department
credentials andfor badges or who have system privileges resign
or are- dismissed without advance notice, the Contractor agrees
to notify the Department's Information Security Office or designee
immediately.

1.68.2. Workspace Requirement

1.68.2.1. If applicable, the Department will work with Contractor to
• determine requirements for providing necessary workspace and
State equipment for its End Users.

1.B9. Contract End-of-Llfe Transition Services

1.69.1. General Requirements .

1.69.1.1. If applicable, upon termination or expiration of the Contract the
Parties agree to cooperate' In good,falth to effectuate a smooth
isecure transition of the Services from the Contractor to .the
Departrhent and. If dppiicable. the Contractor engaged by the
Department to assume the Services previously performed by the
Contractor for this section the new Contractor must be known as

■  "Recipient"). Ninety (90) days prior to the end-of the contract or
unless otherwise specified by the Department, the Contractor
must begin working with the Department and If applicabj^^^^^

S'S-2O24-DES-03-CHJLO-Oi - B-2.0 ContfBCtof Inillala
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new Recipient to develop a Data Transitidn Plan (DTP). The
Department must provide the DTP template to the Contractor.

1.69.1.2. The Contractor must use reasonable efforts to assist the
Recipient, In connection with the transition from the performance
of Services by the Contractor and its End Users to the
performance of such Services. This may include assistance with
the secure transfer of records (electronic and hard copy),

'  transition of historical data (electronic and hard" copy), the
• transition of any such Service from the hardware, software,
network and telecommunications equipment and internet-related
information technology infrastructure ("Internal IT Systems") of
Contractor to the Internal IT Systems of the Recipient and
cooperation with and assistance to any third-party consultants
engaged by Recipient in connection with the Transition Services.

•1.69.1.3. If a system, database, hardware, software, and/or software
licenses (Tools) was purchased or created to.manage, track,
and/or store Department Data in relationship to this contract said
Tools will be inventoried and returned to the Department, along
with the inventory documerit, once transition of Department Data

-  ' ' is complete.

1.69.1.4. The Intemal planning of the Transition Services by the Contractor
and its End Users must be provided to the Department and if
applicable the Recipient in a timely manner. Any such Transition
Services must be deemed to be Services for purposes of this
Contract.

1.69.1.5. Should the data Transitlon extend beyond the end of the Contract,
the Contractor agrees that the Contract Information Security
Requirements, and If applicable, the Department's Business
Associate Agreement terms and conditions .remain in effect until
the Data Transition is accepted as complete by the Department.

1.69.1."6. In the event where the Contractor has comingied Department
Data and the destruction or .Transition of said data is not feasible,
the Department and Contractor will jointly evaluate regulatory and
professional standards for retention requirements prior to
destruction, refer to the terms and conditions of Exhibit K: DHHS
information Security Requirements.

1.69.2. Corppletion of Transition Services

,  1.69.2.1. Each service or Transition phase must be deemed completed
(and the Transition process finalized) at the end of 15 business
days after the product, resulting from the Service, is delivered to
the Department and/or the Redpierit in accordance with the
mutually agreed upon Transition plan, unless within said 15
business day term the Contrador notifies the Department of an
Issue requiring additional time to complete said product. '

%  ■
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1.69.2.2. Once all parties agree the data has been migrated the Contractor
will have 30 days to destroy the data per the terms and conditions
of Exhibit K: DHHS Information-Security Requirements..

1.69.3. Disagreement over Transition Service's Results

1.69.3.1. In the event the Department is not satisfied with the results of the
Transition Sen/ice, the Departrnent must.nbtify the Cdritractor, by
email, stating, the reason for the lack,-of satisfaction within 15

• business days of the final product or at any time during the data
Transition process. The Parties must discuss the actions to be
taken to resolve the disagreement of issue. If an agreement is not,
reached, at any time the Department must be entitled to Initiate
actions in accordance with the Contract.

1.70. vWebslte and Social Media :

1.70.1. ■ The Corilractor must work with the Department's Communications Bureau to
ensure thai ariy social media or website designed, created,- or managed o.r)-
behalf .of the Department meets ail Departrnent and NH DolT website and
social media requirements and policies,

1.70.2. The Contractor agrees Personally-Identifiable Information (Pli), or other
Corifidential Information sollciled either by social media or the website that .is
msintained, stored or captured must not be further disclosed unless

•  expressly provided in the Contrkt. The'801101131100-of disclosure of PH. or
other Confidential Ihfofrnalioh.is subject to Exhibit K: Departmerit lnformation
Security Requirements and Exhibit I:-DHHS Business-Associate Agreement
and ail applicable Department and federal Ik/, rules, and agreements.
Unless specificaily required- by the Contract and unless clear nollce is
provided to users :of the website or social media, the Contractor agrees that
site visitation must not be tracked, disclosed or used for*website, or social
media analytics or marketing..

1.70.3. State.ofNewHampshlre'sWebsile Copyright

1.70.3.1. All right;.title and 'interest in the State VWVW site, including ■
copyright to alj Data and information, miist remain with the State
of NeW:Hampshijre. The Stale of ,f!Jew Hampshire must^also retain
aji fight, title and interest Iri ariy user interfaces and computer''
Iristfuctloris embedded within the WWW pages. All WVW pages
and anyother-Data or-lnformatlonmust.'where appllcaibie, display
the State of New Hampshire's copyright.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The'Conlractormust use and disclose Protected Health Infoimatioriin compliance with
.. the Stapdards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information (Privacy Rule)"
(45 QFRAp.arts IBO and 164)-under the Health Inkrance^Portability and Accountability
Act (HIPAA) of 1996. arid In accordance with the attached Exhibit I, Businek
Assodate Agreement, vyhlch has been execuied by the pdrties;

2.2. • The Contractor must manage all confidential data related to this AgfeerrtSrlf In

'  . ■ ; a
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.  accordance with the terms of ExhIbil.K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

2.3. ■ The Contractor must comply with all Exhibits D through K. which are attached hereto
and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Additional Terms

3.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

3.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal legislation or
•  court orders may have an impact on the Services described herein, the Slate

has the right to modify Service priorities and expenditure requirements under
this Agreement to achieve compliance therewith.

3.2.- Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate
Programs and Sen/ices ' .

•3.2.1. The Contractor must submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement Effective
Date, a detailed description of the communication access and language
assistance services to be provided to ensure meaningful access to
programs and/or services to Individuals with limited English proficiency;
individuals who are deaf or have hearing loss; individuals who are blind or

; have low vision; and individuals who have speech challenges.

■  3.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

3.3.1. All documents, notices, pressreleases, research reports and other materials
prepared during or resulting from the performance of the services of the
Agreement must Include the following statement, 'The preparation of this

'  (report, document etc.) was financed under-an Contract with the State of
.New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds
provided In part by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding
sources as were available or required, e.g., the United States Deparlment
of Health and Human Services."

3.3;2.- All materials produced or purchased und.er the Agreement must have prior
approval from the Department before printing-, production, distribution or
use.

.  3.3.3. The Deparlment must retain copyright ownership for any and all original
materials produced,•including bufnotTimited to:

3.3.3.1. Brochures.

3.3.3.2. Resource directories.

3.3.3.3. Protocols Of guidelines.

'  ' . . 3.3.3.4. Posters.

3.3.3.5. Reports.
.k. ••

3.3.4. The Conitractor must not reproduce any materials produced urider the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

4. .Records , p,

4.1. The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to: ■

SS-2024-DES-0SCHILO-01 B-2.0 Conlraclof Iniaats •- : '
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4.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data evidencing
and reflecting all costs and other expenses.Incurred by the Contractor In the
performance, of .the Contract, and ail income received or collected by the
Coritractor.

4.1:2. All records must be.;mBintained 'ln accordance with accounting procedures and
practices, wtiich sufficiently and properly rehect atl such costs and expenses,
and which are acceptable to the Department, and to include, without limitation,
all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as purchase
requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materiais,. inverttohes,
valuations bf.ln-kind contributions, labor tlme cards, payrolls, and other records
requested or required by the Department.

4.2. 'During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department,.the United States Department of Health and Human Services, arid any of
their designated representatives must have access to all reports and records
maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit, exarrijhation, excerpts
and transcripts.

4.'3. If, upon review of the. Final Expenditure Report the Oepartrrient must-disallow any
expenses claimed by'the Contractor as costs hereunder, the Department retains the
right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses aS;are disaiiowedvpr to

■ -.recover such sums from the Contractor.
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Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 100% Federal funds. Child Care and Development Block Grant, as
awarded on October 28. 2022, by the DHHS: Administration for Children
and Families, CFDA 93.575, FAIN 2301NHCCDD.'.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement the Department has identified: .

2.1. The Contractor as.a Subrecipient. In accordance with'2 CFR §200.331.

2.2. The Agreement as NON-R&D, In accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement- basis for actual expenditures
■  ' incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with

the approved line items, as specified in"Exhibits C-1. Budget through Exhibit C-
6, Budget. . ,, .

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the
Department no later than the fifteenth {15th) working day of the month following
the month In which the services were provided. The. Contractor shall ensure
each Invoice:' v.

4.1. Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number Issued upon registering with
New Hampshire Department of Administrative Services..

4.2. Is submitted in a form that Is provided by or othen/vise acceptable to the
Department.

•  4.3. Identifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in the
previous month,

4A. Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs with each invoice
that may include; but are not limited to. lime sheets, payroll records,,
receipts for purchases, and proof of expenditures, as applicable.

4.5. Is completed, dated and returned to the Department with the supporting
documentation for allowable expenses to Initiate payment.

4.6. Js assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation.
•  and is emailed to dhhs.bcdhsinvoices@dhhs.nh.Qov or mailed to:

Financial Manager ^ ^ "
' Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

>  Concord, NH 03301

5. The Department shall make payments to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of.receipt of each invoice and supporting documentation for authorized
expenses, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice.

[i
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6. The final ir

. be due to

completion

voice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses shall
the Department no later than forty (40) days after the contract
date specified in.Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7

Completiofi Date.

7. Notwithsta iding Paragraph 17 of the Genera! Provisions Form P-37. changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price (imitation' and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining-approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

8. Audits

8.1.The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov if any
of the following conditions exist:'

8.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a.subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part

'■ 200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.
.  8.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor Is subject to audit pursuant to the

requirements of NH RSA 7:28, ill-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

8.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
, by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to

submit an annual financial audit.

8.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual Single
. Audit performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA)

to dhhs.act@.dhhs.nh.gov within 120 days after the close of the
Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the
requirements of 2 CFR Part 200; Subpart F of ihe Uniform
i^dministratlve Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal awards.

8.2.1. The Contractor shall submit a copy of any Single Audit findings
and any associated corrective action plans. The Contractor
shall submit quarterly progress reports on the,status of
implementallon of the corrective action plan.

8.3. . If Condition B..or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

8.4." In addition to. and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Agreement, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the

'  * Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exertions
and shall return to the Department all payments made urfHer'the

SS-2024-OES-03-CHILD-01 C-2.0 ' Conlraclor Irtllals
6/9/2023

Soirihcm Nev* Hampshire Sefvtew. Inc. Page 2 ol 3 " Dale •
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BT-I.O Exhib'aC^I SS-2024-DES-03-CHILtW)1

New Hampshire Departme

Contractor Name;

Budget Request for;

Budget Period

indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)

lit of Health and Human Services '

Southern New Hampshire ̂ nrices

SS-2024'DES'03-CHILD'01 ■ ■> ■■
(Resource and Refer/ai for NH Child Care)
July 1, 2023 through June 3' 0, 2024 (SFY 24)
9.30%

Line Item ■Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salary &Waqes '  $385,000

2. Fringe Benelils $156,950

3. Consultants $25,000

4." Equlpmerit
/ndln&cf rolo cennot.be opp//ed to equiprnwl ccists per 2
CFR200. f end Append/*/U to '2 CFR 200.

;  $0

5.(a) .Supplies:- Educational .  ■' $0
5.(b) Supplies- Lab , $0
5,;(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0
5.(d) Supplies • Medical "  $0,
5.(e) Supplies Office 3  $4,660

6. Travel . , ■ '  $12,000

7. . Software 52.000,

8.'(a) Other - Marketinq/Communicatiohs. . '  $17,500
8. (b). Other. - Education and.Training '  " " $10:000
8; (c) Other - Other (specify below) '  i-

Celebrations .$25,000
Occupancy .$27,000

Other, (please specify) - $0;
Other (please specify^ $o.-

9. Subrecipient Cohtracts.' ^  „ $0

Total Direct Costs $645,110

Total Indirect Costs; .  $54,890

i'" TOTAL $700,odd

Contractor triitials

/*T—M

Page 1 of 1 Date
t6/?/2p2?
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BT-1.0 ExhlblC-2 S5-2024-OES-03-CHILD^1

Now Hampshire Departmei

Contractor Name:

Budgot Request for:

BudigotPoriod
Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable)

it of Health.and Human Services

Sowfhern l^wHampshire Services

SS-2024-DES-03-CHILD-01

(DOL Apprerdlceshlp) -

July 1, 2023 through-June 30, 2024 (SEY 24)

9.30%

Line Item ' Program-Cost -Funded'by OHHS

1. Salary 4 Waoes ' • • $32,681

2. Fringe Benefits 517,529

3. Consultants 'SO

4. Equipment • .
frxfiecr.^.rale.cennciCto Ofipfi»d to oquiphwru cosfsper 2 CFR 200.1
ond'ADDOndix tv id 2 CFR 200.

!  $0

S.(a) 'Supplies-Educational •  .50

5.(b) Supplies-Lab ' ' . . $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy ■■ $0

5.(d) Supplies-.Medical 50

5.(e) Supplies Office $1,085

6. Travel $0

7.. Software $500

8. (a) Other - f\4arketinafCommunlcatlons $500

6. (b) Other - Education and Tralnina $0

8; (c) Other - Other (speclfy belowj
Menlor'SfiDonds . .. 53.000

OfHer (olease specHv) SO

Other fi^easa spaclM . 50

•Other!fDfaase.soactfv) $0

9. :Subrec(Dien('.Contracts $0

Total DIroct Costs ■ 555.295

Total tndiroct.Costs $4,705

.  TOTAL $80,000

^.v

Contractorjnttisb'

Pa^ 2.0(2 Date 5^!^
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DocuSlgn Cnvilop* tO: »BETC004-402&4«CB^E-PCP40ABSCCO}

BM.O ExtiM'C-3 SS-2024.0eS-03-CHlLD-01

Now Hampshire Oepartment pf Health and Human Servlcos

Conitzclor Uivne: Southern New HenipsNre Sorvices
Budget Requeat for: SS:2024-DBS-03'CH!LO'0l

.  , (TEACHNH)

Budget Period Jufy 1. 2023 lhrou^ Juno 30. 2024.(SFY24)
... Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable) 9.30%

Lino hem
%

Program Cost - Funded by DHHS
i'"

1. Salary & Wages 1  $47,011

2. Fringe Benents-
.t

$24,010

3. Consultants. ■* $0

4. Equipm.ent
iwBnci cost rato cannoi be cppSod to eet^omoni costs per i CFR 200.1
and v»ppijn<fl*/V/o 2 ^ 20a

.V.

$0

5.(8) Si^jplies - Educational ' .  . $0
5i{b) SuppliM - Lab so
5.(0). Supplies •"Pharmacy. > it* $0
5.{d) Supplies • Mecfical ■ so
5.(e)' Supplies Office , . $796

6: Travel ". . : $1,000

7. Software ■' SO

8' (8) Other;- Marketina/Communicatlons $1,500
8. (b) Other - Education and Trainlnq •, $1,000
8. (c) Other - Otheiisj)wify belov-O
UobnsinQfCon^tBitoh Fees •X- >!' , " •  $1,000
Scty^rshio/SuDDorls S108.000

Other (phese soedfv) • $0
O/her.fpteas© specify) ' .  . SO

9. SubredDient Coniraias $0

.  . Total Direct Costs $164,317

Total Indirect Costs .  $15,663

TO.TAL $200,000

zl

M ■■

V
I ^ Cer^aclor initials

Page 2 or 2 0^^6/9/2023
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BT.1.0 Exhba C-4 SS-2024-OES-03-CHIU)-01

New Hampshire Oepartm<

Contractor Name:

Budget Request for;

Budget Period

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)

mt of Health and Human Services

Soulhem New Hampshire Services

$S-2024-DES-03-CHILO-01

/Resource end Referral for NH Child Cere)

July 1. 2624 through September 30, 2024 (SPY 25)

9.30%

^  »

Line Item Program Cost • Funded by OHHS

1. Satarv ft Waqes SI 50.000

2. Fringe Ber^efitB $64,500

3. Consultants . " $11,000

4. Equipment
indlna coisi mis cenxn be applM lo eo^pme/V costs per 2 CFR 200. t
en6Ap(KndhtlVlo2CFR200. •  f

5.(8) Supplies • Educational $1,000

5.(b) Supplies-Lab so

5.(c) Supplies ■ Phetrrtacy so

5.(d) Supfrfles - Medical $0

5.(e) Supplies Office ■ $2,000

6. Travel ■ $2,936

7. Software -  $1,000

8. (a) Other -'Marketina/Communicalions $4,000

8. (b) Other - Education and IraininQ. $10,000

8. (c) Other - Other (soeclfY beiow)

Occupancy $7,000

Olhor {please spedfy) SO

Other (please specifv) . ^ $0

Olhor (please soecffv) • - SO

9. Sub'redDlenl Contracts' $0

'  Total Direct Costs $253,436

Total Indirect Costs $21,584

TOTAL $276,000

Contractor InWab ̂

Page 2 of 2 Oslo
6/9/2023
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BT-t.O ExhWi C-5 SS-2024>OES-03-CH]10>01

New Hampshire Oepartm

Contractor Name:

Budget Request for:

Budget Period

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable)

enl of Health and Human Services

Southern New Hampsh^o Services

SS-2024-DES-03-CHJLD-01
(DOL Apprenticeship)

Juty 1. 2024 through Sepiernber 30. 2024 {SPY 25)
9.30%

Uno Item Program Cost'• Funded by DHHS-

1. Salary & waoes .  • $7,500

2. Frlnpe Benefits $4,000

3. Consultants $0

4. Equipmenl-
Indioci cost roie cennct bo op^kx) to ̂ ulpimnt costs per 2 CFR 700.1
Md Appendix fV to 2 CFR'200.

$0

5.(3)' Supplies • Educsiional $0

5'.(b) Supplies • Lab . ... . $0
5.(c) .Supplies'- Pharmacy $0

5.(d) Supplies •'Medical ' . $0
S.{o) Supplies Office $324

6. Travel .  , w

7;. Softs^re .  .

8. (a) Olher -'Marketlnq/Communicatlons ,  $500

8. (b) Other'-Education and Tralnlhq ■  : ■ $0
8. (c) Other.r Olher fspeclfv below) ...

Mohtor Stipends ' ' " , "  $1,000

Othor (pioase soedfv) .1. . \ .. r . so

. Other fpl^se specifv) '  so

Other foJeasespedtv) ^  ■■ ■ . '.$0

9. Subrecipleni Contracts • ' .. .. *■ so

r  Total Direct Costs ^  ■ $13,824

Total Indirect Costs $1,176

■  . TOTAL .  $15,000

V ■f.-.

V,- >

iP

•V.i

Contractor tnHiah.

Page 2 of ,2 □^^.6/9/2023
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BT-1.0 Exhibit C-6 SS-2024-D^S-0^CHILD<^1

New Hampshire Oepartni<

Contractor Name:

Budget Request for:

Budget Period

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)

mtof Health and Hurhan Services

Southern New Hampshire Serviced

SS-2024-0^$-03'CHILD'01
(TEACH NH)

July 1, 2024 Ih/iJugh September 30, 2024 (SPY 25)

9.30%

Line Item ProgranH Cost • Funded by DHHS

1. Sa)arv& Wanes $11,763

2. -Fringe SeneHts $6,003

3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment
Mifoct cost rstt connoi beappHed lo oqulpment cosis per 2 CFR 200.1
and Appendix IVto2 CFR 200.

■  $0

5.(a) Supplies-Educational ' . $0

5.(b) Supplies-Lab $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0

5.(d) Supplies-Medical $0

5.{e) Supplies Office $500

6. Travel $500

7. Software $0

8. (a) Other - Madtetlng/Communicatlons S50D

8. (b) Other - Education and Traininq '>• $750

8. (c) Other - Other (soecrfv below) ■  •:<

Ucens'ina/Consuliations $500

Scholarship^SuppOfls $25,574

Other (oleese spedfv) ■ $0

Other (please specify) •  \ • • ... SO

9. Subrecipierit Contracts .  $0

Total Direct Costs $46,079

Tdtallhdircct Costs $3,921

TOTAL $50,000

y~D3

Contractor Initials

Page 2 of 2 Date
6/3/2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

CERTIFICATtON REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
•  t

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Ad'of 1988 (Pub. L. '100-690", Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). aid further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in S^tions
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENt OF AGRICULTURE -CONTRACtORS

This certification'is required by the regulations Implemeiiling'Sections 5151-6160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; '41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as.Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by Infe'rerKe, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference; sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that Is a State i
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for

■each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certificetion. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False,
certification or violation of the certincation shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to; ' . •

Cpmrnissioner " ••
NH Department'of Health and Human Servlces-
129 Pleasant Street, , -
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The.grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying.employees that the unlawful manufacture, distributon,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohlbiied in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibitiori;

1.2. establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
0  1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace';

1.2.2. The grantee's policy of mainlairiing a drug-free workplace:
1.2.3. Any ayailable drug counseling; rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2-.4. The penalties that may be irnposod upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring In the workplace; ' , ;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged Iri the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee In the statement required by paragraph'(a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1.. Abide by the terms of the staterhent; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer In writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

•  1.5, Notifying the agency in writing, vwlhin ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving acluai notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice. Including positionrtitle, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit D - CeiliRcalion.r^axding Drug Froo Vendor Initisis-'1
Workplace Requirements • 6/9/2023

cyoMHs;tiei7o Page1oi2 ..OBle_
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shaii include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the folio^ng actbns, within 30 calendar days of receivirig r^tice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who Is so convicted
1.6:1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

lerminaUon, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabililalion Act of 1973, as
• amended; or .

1.6.2. Requiflng.such employee to participate'satisfactprity in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation .program approved for such pui^oses by a Federal. Stale.' br (peat health,

■  law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through '

.rmpiementatlon of paragraphs 1.1,1.2,1.3,1.4,1.5. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may Insert in the space provided below the sitefs) for the performance of work done Iri
connection.with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (stree.! address, city, county, statOi zip code)'(lt8t each location)

Check, □ iMhere are workplace's on nie that ere not identified here.

,6/9/2023

Date

Vendor Name: southern nh services., inc

DoM8t0M4 by;

Namg'giTA^^'l^e tozeauV
Title; ch.ief Executive officer

CUOHHS/MOMS

Exhibll D Cetlificallon regarding. Drug Prca
WodqMdce Requiremehls

Page 2 of 2

-09

Vendor Initials
Si .

Dale
6/9/2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERtlFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 df-the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 10l!>121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12pftheGeneralProvisions executethefolio^ngCertification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS '

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS • -

Programs (indicate applicable,program covered): ;
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under fllle IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under'Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medlcald.Prograrri under title.XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV '

k -

- The undersigned certifies, to the best of. his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds haye beeri paid of wilt'be 'paid by or on behalf of the uhdersigned. to
any person for influencing or attennpting to influence an o^icer of employee.of.any agency. a Merinber

• of Congress, an officer or employe? of Congress, or an. employee of a Member of Congress in
connection vyith the awarding of any Federal contract, continuatiori, renevyal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan^ or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or 8ub<ontractor). '

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid.or will be paid to any person for
influencing.or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
' en.officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention.siib-granlee or subr
contractor), the undersigned.shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance .with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub«awards at aihUers.fincluding subcontracts, sub-grarits, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) andlhat all sub-recipients shall certifyand disclose.accordingjy.'

This certification is a 'material representation of fact upon which reliaace was placed'when this transaction
' was made pr.^entered into. -Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
iransactiori'llnposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person whorls'to nie the required
-certincation siiall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $'10,000 and not more than SIOO.OOO for
each such failure.

w

VendorName: Southern NH Services, inc

fay.
t.i,

'i 6/9/2023

Dale Lozeau ^
s?; Chief Executive officer

91
Vendor tniibb:Exhibit E r- CertiRcal'ion Regarding Lobbying

6/9/2023
cuoKHs/)ii)>i3 . Page 1 oM • ̂ . Dale
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12649 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters,, and further agrees to have the Coniractdr's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification: ■ , , ,

ft

INSTRUCliONS FOR CERTtFICATION
1. By signing and subrnitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant Is provfding the

certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result In denial
of participation In this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Departmenl of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant tp furnish a certification or an expianalio'n shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transacUon,

3. The certification in this clause Is a material representation of fact upon which rejiance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous cerliflcalion, In addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant leam^
that its certificallon was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances. • .. vi

5. The terms "covered, transaction," "debarred." "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction." 'participant," "J,person," "primary covered transaction,," 'principal." 'proposat,' and ^
"voluritarily excluded," as used in this clause,- have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12'549; 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. ̂  Ytie prospective primal participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter Into any lower tier covered
transaction "with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation In this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause tilled "Certification Regarding .Debarment,-Suspension. Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower-Tier Covered Transactions." provided by DHHS, without modlficaUon, in alt lower tier covered
transactions and in ail solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8^ A participant In a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that It Is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or Involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless It knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency tjy which It determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may. butus not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system qf rewrds
in order^o render In good faiih the certificatton required by this clause. The Knowledge and.i^

skExhibit F - Cerliricatton Regarding pebatment. Suspension Contractor Initialsi
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•fi

informalion of a participant is not required to exceed that which Is normally possessed'by a prudent
person in thb ordinary'course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these Instructions, if a participant In a
covered transaction knowingly enters Into a lowr tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended,' debarred, indigible. pr voluntarily exduded from participation', in this transaction, in
addition to other rem^ies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default;

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS '
i'l. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that It and its

pnncipals:
11.1. are not presentlydebarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared Ineligible, or

• votuntarily excluded hrom-covered transactions by any Federal, department or agency;
11.2. have not vtrithin a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract)-been convicted of or had

a civil Judgment rendered a^lnst them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, atternpting to obtair>, or performing a public (Federal, State pr local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal dr State antitrust
staluteS'dr commission of embeulement, theft, forgery,,bribery. falsification o.r destruction'ot
records, makihg false statements, or receiving.stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise'crlminaPy or civilly charged by a'.govemrnental entity
(Federal, State or IpcaD'wth comrnissiori of any of the offenses eriumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and-

11.4. have,not wlhin a three-year period preceding this'appilcation/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal. State or local) terminated for cause or-defaulL

12; Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statementslin this • .
certincallon; such prospective, participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13; By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract); the prospective lower tier participent, as

defined in 45 CFR Part '76, 'Certiries to the best of its knowledge and'belief that it and its principals:
13.1. ere not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal departrhent or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lowertierparlidpant Is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract),

i4. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by. submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
Jnciud.e.tiilis-clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. InetlgibHIty, end '
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Cbvered Trahsactions,' without mpdificaiiqn In all lower tier covered

:  transaclibns-and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

6/9/2023

Contractor Narno: southern m scrvi'ces, 'inc

OoeuSlsnttf by:

OdiS ■ " Lozeati
Title:

Chief Executive officer

Exhibit F - CehiTiMtion Begdnjjns' Dobqrmenl, SMpcnslpn ConUsctof lnlllals>
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CERTlFICAtiON OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor id'entified in Section 1.3 of the Genera);Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12ofthe.General Provisions, to execute th^ollowlhg
certification: . • "

Contractor, will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with eny applicabte
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which rhay include;

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits ••
recipients of-federal funding under this statute from discriminating., either in emptoyment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis.of race,.color, religion, national origm, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to,produce an'Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

> the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference..the civtl rights obligations of thO Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal binding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race; color,, religion, national origin, and sex. The.Act Includes Equal

j;,'- Employment Opportunity Plan requlremerits; . .

- the Civil Rights Act of 19M'.(42'U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits fecipierits of fedefal financlal
assistance from discriminating or) the basis of race, color,, or national origin In any program or activity);

- the.Rehabllilation Act of-1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794),.which prohlbitsirecipients of Federal firiandal
assistance from'discriniinating on the basis of disability, in regard'to employment and the deiivery of
services or benefits, In any program or'acllvity;

- the Americans with Disabiillles Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C, Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations. cpmmerQiai facilities'; and transportation;.

"the EduMtiohAmeridments of 1972 (20 U.S^G. Sections 1681,1683,1685-86), which prohibits
discrimlnalion-oh the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

-the Age^Jscrlmination Act of 1975 (42 U.S;C. Sections 6106-07). which prohibits discrimination on the '
basis of age in prograrns or activities receiving Federal.financial assistance. It does not mclude
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.Ft. pi. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs);: 28 C.F.R, pi, 42
. (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Noncliscrim)nalion;:Equa,l Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures): Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizationsS; Executive Order No. 13559, which provide furidamental pririciples arld.policy-making
criteria fpr.partherships with faith-based arid neighborhood organizations;,

- 2a-C.F.R. pi. 38 (U.S.. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
brganizatloris): and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C, §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L 112^239, enacted January 2.2013) the Pilot Program for

•  Enhancement of Contract Employee-Whisllebiower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activi'ifes'ln connection with federal grants and corilracfs.

The'Cerliflcale set out below is a material repfesenlalion of fact upon whlch.reliance Is placed when the
agency awards the grant. 'False certlficallon.'or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspiension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or.governrnent wide suspension or
debarment.

—08

E)<ha>ltG Vl
ConifnctwInlilahN--' --V

V'Catficdicnot CctnpllanM.viih porttMng lo Fttftrd TitMnwu «l FvSiv^ou^ CreatoDsni - *
pt«UOtons
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or Stale administrative agency makes a finding of
dlscrirnination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Hiin^an Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Genera) Provisions, to execute the following
certiftcation:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above. .

Contractor Name; southern nh services, Inc

•  DMuSlgnirfby:

6/9/2023 ' I pPltKAlLC
Date ^ ] WmefTOflSTieToxeau

.  chief executive officer

-o»

Ezhil>>l'G VI
Contractor Inillah^

C«n2iaite et v«t3i rt^wneru* peruinlno :9 Faooial NondiofitihMion, Eqwt TieiUnM dT OrQuVutlont
endWhItOeMMWproUUieAS
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE .

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmenlal Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion pi any Indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, .education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal,programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's sen/ices provided in private residences, facililics funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for.inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil rhonetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day aruj^r the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified in Section 1.11 and. 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certlficallorv: - , .

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Prc-Children Act pf 1994.

6/9/2023

Contractor Name; southern nh services, inc

OotwSlQtMd by: •

Date Lozeau ~

Chief Executive officer

[i
Exhibit H-CertiTicalion RegafClitig . ContractOf Initials -i—'-'
Environmenlal Tobacco Smoke 6/9/2023

cu/DHHViiOTU PagoioM ' pate



DocusJgn Envelope ID; 7D8D40FD-DD0CMA89-98BC-337B7A76ACF6

DocuSi^ Envelope 10:5BE7E004-402B<49CB-A9CE-PCF49AB5CC02

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCdUNTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity' shall mean the Stale of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) . Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the sarhe meaning as the term "Breach" In section .164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulatioris.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such terrn in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations. •

c. "Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in-section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations. .

d. 'Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record sef
in 45CFR Section 164-501.

e. "Data AaoreQallon' shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation' in 45 CFR
Section 1,64.501. ' ,

f. "Heallh Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
In 45 CFR Section 164.501:

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.,

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Porlabiflly and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "IndWlduar in 45 CFR Section 160.103
. and shall Include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g). ^

j. "Privacv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United Slates
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information' shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 180.103, limited to the information created or receivpd-by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. %

3/2014 ExhiWil ConUador InUlals^
Health Insurant Pohsbillly Act
Business Assodale Agfeemeni 6/9/2023
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I. ■ "Required bv Law" shall have (he same meaning as the term "required by law" In 45 CFR
Section 164.103,

m. "Secretary" shall "mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards "for the Protection of Electronic Protected
• Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164. Subpart 0. and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not'
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from lime to time; and the
HITECH
Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, Including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate rnay use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management.and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d, below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

■Entity.

c. To the extent.Business Associate is permitted under the Agreerrienl to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from Uie third party that such PHI will be held confidenlialiy and
used -or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreemenit from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification

■ " Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent It has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure^ndto seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Bus! ^^s

3/2014 ExhiWll Conlraetof InillahV——
Heallht lnsurar>ce Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement . 6/9/2023
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted alt
remedies.

e. • If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
sh'ali be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI In violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3)' Obllaatlons and Activities of Business Aasoclate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreernent Including breaches of unsecured
protected health Information and/or arly security Incident that may have an Impact on the
protected health Information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;-

o The unauthorized person used the protected health Information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health Inforrriation was actually acquired or viewed
o The exter^t to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment.in writing to the
Covered Entity.

0. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach fvlotlfication Rule. "

d. Business Associate shall make available all of Its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA arid the Privacy .and
Security Rule.' '

e. ' Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that'receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing' to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, Including "
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business assgpiate
agreements v/rth Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receivij^^Hl

3/2014 ■* ExhibllJ ContfBClof InitialaV——
Health Insurance Portability Ad
Business Assodale Agreemenl ^ 6/9/2023
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who stiall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information. ,

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
.Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at Its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual In order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Wthin ten (10) business days of receiving a written'request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an Individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendmenfand incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

■ I. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for ah accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

). Wthln ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such Information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting otdlsclosures with respect to PHI In accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any Individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business.Associale, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
respor^sibiilty of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall Instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon-as practicable.

I. Wthin ten (10) business days of termlnalion of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by.Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreernent, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been othenvlse agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit furlher.uses and disclosures of such PHl.to thps©'*
purposes that make the return or destruction Infeasible. for so long as Business

3/2014 ExhlftU! • Conlmcio; lnUials>——
Health Insurance Portability Act
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to

■  Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitatlon(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Enlily shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 0r45 CFR Section 164.508. ■ ' '

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522.-
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI. ■

(5) Terrhlnatlon for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate

- Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a tirheframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure Is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secrelary.

(6) y\/llscellaneous
r

a. . Definitions and Reoulatorv .References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein.
shall have the same meaning as those terms jn the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement; as amended to Include this Exhibit 1, to
a Section In the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended. • ■ ^

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as Is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes In the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and slate law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. interoretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be rgeotved
'■ to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA,-the Privacy and Security Rule,

3/2014 ExWWtl Contraclof IniUala^-—
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Seoreoatlon. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circurnstance is held invalid, such Invalidity shall not'affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) 1, the
defense and Indemnirication provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlies hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services southern nh ser^vices, inc
Contractor

1  (/'•jUUA ■

Signature of Authorized Representative SigliaTuVe'orA'uthdrized Representative

Karen Hebert Donnalce Lozeau

Name of Authorized Representative ' Name of Authorized Representative
Division Director

chief Executive Officer

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

6/9/2023 . 6/9/2023

Date , '. Date

3/2014 ExNbtit.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABtLITY AND TRANSPARPNnv
ACT (FFATAI COMPLIANCl !

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awartfees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1,2010,- to report on
data related to executive compensalJon and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
Initial award is below $25,000 but .subsequent grant modifications result In a total award equal to or-over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward'and Executive Compensation Information), the
Departmonl of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following Information for any -
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1; Name of entity
2. Amount of award

-3. Funding agency
4. NAlCScode for contracts/CFDA program number for grants
6. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity . ,
fl. Principle place of performance
e. -Unique identifier of- th.e entity (UEI #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives If:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information Is not already available through reporting to the SEC..

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days. In which
the avrard or award amendment is made. ■ •
The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The" Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2-CFR Port 170 (Reporting Subaward and-Executive Compensation Infomialion), and further agrees'
to have the Cdntractor's representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1:12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply vwlh all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accouhtability and Transparency Act. . ,v

Contractor Name: southern nh services, Inc

-De<w3lor>*4 by:

6/9/2023

DatT Name-^^hhl^'^^^-Lozeau
Title: Chief Executive Officer

ExhlbllJ-CortJflcfllionRegerdlnaihoFcdon)! Funding Contfactor InMalav
AccoonlabCilyAnd Transparoncy Ad (FFATA) ComplSanco
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As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

HLNJBCY0GVM3
1. The UEI (SAM.gov) number for your entity is:

2. In your business or organlxatlon's preceding completed Tiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
toanSi grants, 8ut>-granls. and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

■  , NO ^ YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, ptease answer the foltowing:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your

business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 1.5(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

X
NO YES

.  If the answer to #3 above Is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above Is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or*
organization are as follows:

Narne:

Name:.

Name:

Name: .

Name:

Amount: .

Amount:,

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CUOHK3ni0711

ExhM J 'CorlHlcstlon Regarding mo Fcdorsl Furnllng
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning In this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any simitar term referring to
situations where persons other than authonzed- users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to- personally Identifiable
information, wrhether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach* shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" In section
164.402 of Title .45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" In section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident .

' Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. ."Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" -means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial,, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case-Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also Includes any and all information-owned or-managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
•Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which coiiection, disclosure, protection, and disposition Is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This Information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), .Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives.
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "incident" mearis ah act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy.
■ which Includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or Its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,

• firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge. Instruction, or
consent! Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

-w

■%
V5. Laslupdote 10/09ri8 ^ EjdilWlK Contradorlnhials^ ■
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

rhail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted Pi, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means Information which can be used to distinguish
or. trace an individual's Identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19. biometrlc records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which Is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy -Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at45C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected .Health Information" (or "PHI") has the "same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" In the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health information
unusable, unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
dev^dped or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR '

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Inforrhatlon
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

I a ..
V5 Last update 10/09/18 ExhlbilK Conlraciorlniliols^lir:
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law.; in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has ari opportunity to
consent or otsject to the disclosure. . • .

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those usesvor disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional .restrictions and must not disclose PHI In violation of such additional,
restrictions and'must abide by any additional security safeguards.

.4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User rnay not use computer disks
.. or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS

data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is- encrvoted and being sent to and being received, by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4.« Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted .yia a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mall within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. if End User is' employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and-password-protected.

^  8. Open Wireless Networks, End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

(i
V5. LmI update 1W09/18 , ExhMK Contfociof initials^-—",
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmlttlng via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidentia! Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
Installed on the End User's mobile devlce(s) or laptop from which Inforrnatlon will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol If
End User Is employing an SFTP to'transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent'inappropriate disclosure of
Information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-delelion cycle (i.e. ConfidenUal Data wil) be deleted ever^24
hours): , '

11. Wireless Devices. If End User Is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITJON OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, thb Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. Tfie Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
rannectiori with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply In the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabililles, and Includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In
place to delect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness' and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4.. The Contractor agrees to retain aH electronic arid hard copies of Conftdenlial Data
. Iri a secure location and Identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored In a Cloud must be In a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliani solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker. anti-spam, anti-spyware. and antl-malware utilities. The environment, as a

vs. LMI update icm/IS ExhJbft K Conlractorlnllials
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whole, must have aggressive Intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures Its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the "hosting

.  Infrastructure.

Ei. Disposition . •

1. If the Contractor wll) maintain any Confidential Information on Its systems (or its
"sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a docurriented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination: and will
obtain written certlficalipn for any Slate of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use. electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanHlzatlon, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, •
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitizatlon, National "Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certifrcation to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validatefd. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the Stale and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless othenwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy ail hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

. 3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this "
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential. Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data" wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will "maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

-2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential Information throughout the information iifecycle, .where applicabie, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

vs. Usl.update 1(V09/18 Exhibit K Conlraclor Inlllals
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5.

6.

7.

3. The Conjractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4, The Contractor" will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
iJsers in support of protecting Department confidential information.

If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the "engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an Internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

The Contractor will work with the Deparfmerit to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization p.olicies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s); Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

If the Department determines the Contractor Is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103,-the Contractor will execute a HIPAa Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the

•  agreement. '

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor Ganges.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to Investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to

. prevent future breach and minimize any damage, or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery'from

8.
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the breach, Including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy arid security of Confidential Information, and must In all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies. Including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Securrty Rules (45

■ C.F.R. Parts 160 and 154) that govern protections for individually identiffable health
Information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the conftdentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The wfeguards mu$t provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Infoitnatipn Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https:/ywww.nh.govfdolt/vendOf/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at .the email addresses
provided in Sefction Vl. This Includes a confidential Information breach, computer
security incident; or suspected breach which affects or Includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire nStwork-. .

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified In this Contract..

16. The Contractor miist ensure that all End Users:

a. compjy with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented -to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or Inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times. ,

c. eosure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and passvyord-protecled.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
"receive such Information. v/-

BS
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

.  f. Conndential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from-DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that Is
'physically, and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours, (e.g..' door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, Including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above. -

h. in all other- instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
- disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances Involved.

1. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential-information secure.
This applies .to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight ar)d compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with, this
Contract, Including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein. HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
Is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS,REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at . the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI In
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and In accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306.. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;. ^

i  2. Determine if personally Identifiable informalion is involved in Incidents;

.  3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and .

(i
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VI.

5. Determine whether Breact} notification is required, and. if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, .and contents from amongrdifferent
options,.and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation

.  measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable. In accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20..'

PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer: ^ •

DHHSlnformatlonSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.90v
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